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0.0 0.35 0.08 0.32
0.0 0.5 0.375 0.085 0.42
0.5 1.0 0.40 0.09 0.52
1.0 2.0 0.425 0.10 0.545

2.0 0.45 0.10 0.57

0.02
2021 31 1,363,938.59
309,519.13 1,488,765.39
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
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0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
141,339.13
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20 15
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OECD

2014 10 29
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60 2016
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2021

34,916 6.01
23,087 3.98
8,197 1.41
7,065 1.22
3,421 0.59
1,177 0.20
503 0.09
85,299 14.69
20,518 3.53
19,881 3.42
10,948 1.89
5,640 0.97
4,324 0.74
3,789 0.65
3,016 0.52
2,720 0.47
2,550 0.44
2,155 0.37
1,705 0.29
1,417 0.24
1,317 0.23
1,302 0.22
1,027 0.18
802 0.14
502 0.09
448 0.08
203 0.03
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111,504 19.20
23,469 4.04
9,365 1.61
6,062 1.04
3,731 0.64
259 0.04
20 0.00
13 0.00
12 0.00
49,937 8.60
29,364 5.06
7,273 1.25
6,741 1.16
4,143 0.71
6,117 1.05
4,645 0.80
2,357 0.41
1,009 0.17
1,001 0.17
56,018 9.65
530 0.09
12,617 2.17
584 0.10
90 0.02
584,610 100.69
3,980 0.69

580,630
100.00

63,811
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2021

1 |U.S. Treasury Bills 0.045 | 2021 29 70,097,547 70,100,000 70,100,273| 12.07
2 |Japan Treasury Bills (0.104)| 2021 10 23,133,638 | 2,511,000,000 22,837,257 3.93
3 |U.S. Cash Management Bills 0.025 | 2021 12,599,143 12,600,000 12,599,657 2.17
4 |U.S. Treasury Notes 0.125 | 2023 30 9,893,590 9,900,000 9,897,680 1.70
5 |Canadian Treasury Bills 0.101 | 2021 9,049,271 11,000,000 9,104,476 1.57
6 |Central Nippon Expressway Co. Ltd. 0.616 | 2022 15 7,000,000 7,000,000 7,015,699 1.21
7 |Federal Home Loan Bank 1.020 | 2027 24 7,000,000 7,000,000 6,966,686 1.20
8 |RESIMAC Premier 0.795 | 2052 10 6,516,666 6,516,666 6,515,657 1.12
9 |U.S. Treasury Bills 0.020 | 2021 6,299,871 6,300,000 6,299,968 1.09
10 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.900 | 2027 26 6,297,559 6,300,000 6,241,063 1.07
11 |Federal Home Loan Bank 1.115 | 2027 26 5,600,000 5,600,000 5,591,188 0.96
12 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.830 | 2027 10 5,500,000 5,500,000 5,437,331 0.94
13 |Charter Communications Operating LLC 1.826 |2024 5,163,263 5,100,000 5,246,932 0.90
14 |U.S. Treasury Cash Management Bills 0.020 | 2021 14 5,099,703 5,100,000 5,099,851 0.88
15 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.960 | 2026 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,954 0.86
16 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.850 | 2027 17 4,900,000 4,900,000 4,844,569 0.83
17 |Israel Government Bond 5.500 | 2022 31 4,499,570 14,200,000 4,609,084 0.79
18 |Fannie Mae 0.875 |2026 12 18 4,498,958 4,500,000 4,472,942 0.77
19 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.920 | 2027 26 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,461,942 0.77
20 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.750 | 2026 24 4,300,000 4,300,000 4,281,173 0.74
21 |QNB Finance Ltd. 1.235 | 2022 12 4,067,817 4,100,000 4,107,893 0.71
22 |HSBC Holdings PLC 1.407 | 2025 11 4,021,584 4,000,000 4,083,133 0.70
23 |U.S. Treasury Bills 0.033 2021 10 3,899,549 3,900,000 3,899,844 0.67
24 |Finsbury Square PLC 0.849 | 2070 16 3,570,950 2,725,604 3,875,137 0.67
25 |Dilosk RMBS No.4 DAC 0.197 | 2060 20 3,577,813 2,966,339 3,632,739 0.63
26 |Standard Chartered PLC 1.260 |2023 10 14 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,534,076 0.61
27 |Towd Point Mortgage Trust 1.636 | 2060 25 3,451,722 3,395,465 3,444,182 0.59
28 |U.S. Treasury Cash Management Bills 0.020 | 2021 28 3,299,782 3,300,000 3,299,891 0.57
29 |Bank of Israel Bill - Makam (0.029)| 2022 3,231,572 10,600,000 3,261,664 0.56
30 |Occidental Petroleum Corp. 1.606 | 2022 8 15 3,017,736 3,200,000 3,177,003 0.55

2021

2021
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2021

2017 31 24,770,876 2,722,319 101.50 11,155
2018 31 52,767,817 5,799,183 103.03 11,323
2019 31 109,790,959 12,066,026 104.87 11,525
2020 31 194,300,838 21,353,662 106.12 11,663
2021 31 357,325,045 39,270,022 108.33 11,905
2020 217,455,413 23,898,350 108.08 11,878
10 228,988,344 25,165,819 108.32 11,904

11 240,799,164 26,463,828 108.01 11,870

12 262,112,748 28,806,191 108.15 11,886

2021 274,527,834 30,170,609 108.38 11,911
384,875,270 42,297,792 108.24 11,896

360,711,781 39,642,225 108.35 11,908

350,168,671 38,483,537 108.33 11,905

360,268,645 39,593,524 108.33 11,905

352,413,883 38,730,286 108.23 11,894

358,190,142 39,365,097 108.12 11,882

370,901,791 40,762,107 108.15 11,886
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2017 31 2,351,943,111 10,061
2018 31 8,298,729,600 10,050
2019 31 9,299,823,921 9,987
2020 31 6,173,046,183 9,902
2021 31 5,451,082,407 10,073
2020 5,900,054,814 10,072
10 5,807,753,667 10,091

11 5,419,170,333 10,060

12 5,627,137,878 10,066

2021 5,573,297,335 10,085
5,517,404,487 10,070

5,893,409,328 10,079

5,345,185,578 10,075

5,436,029,216 10,073

5,805,228,501 10,063

5,614,344,525 10,051

5,712,176,563 10,053
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2017 31
2018 31

2019 31 53,255,585 4,270,033 100.57 8,064
2020 31 67,759,817 5,432,982 100.86 8,087
2001 31 75,852,669 6,081,867 102.77 8,240
2020 62,136,102 4,982,073 102.66 8,231
10 63,159,469 5,064,126 102.89 8,250
11 58,715,026 4,707,771 102.60 8,226
12 63,004,780 5,051,723 102.68 8,233
2021 66,383,371 5,322,619 102.87 8,248
73,054,491 5,857,509 102.72 8,236
76,983,430 6,172,531 102.82 8,244
78,071,993 6,259,812 102.78 8,241
77,391,712 6,205,267 102.77 8,240
75,492,512 6,052,990 102.66 8,231
74,538,690 5,976,512 102.55 8,222
76,156,299 6,106,212 102.57 8,224

1.50

1.51

1.79

1.19

2.08

100

100
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0.61

0.11

0.63

0.85

1.73

100

10,000

0.57

0.29

1.89

100

100
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319,663.840 75,612.492 244.,051.348
(319, 663.840) (75,612.492) (244,051.348)
474,545.275 206,442.167 512,154.456

(474,545.275)

(206,442.167)

(512,154.456)

1,122,566.281
(1,122,566.281)

587,802.245
(587,802.245)

1,046,918.492
(1,046,918.492)

1,501,616.986
(1,501,616.986)

717,612.501
(717,612.501)

1,830,922.977
(1,830,922.977)

2,869,597.921
(2,869,597.921)

1,401,978.287
(1,401,978.287)

3,298,542.611
(3,298,542.611)

316,834.453 83,074.972 233,759.481
(316,834.453) (83,074.972) (233,759.481)
810,474.837 218,499.580 825,734.738
(810,474.837) (218,499.580) (825,734.738)
617,414.043 511,980.377 931,168.404
(617,414.043) (511,980.377) (931,168.404)
98,733.129 406,489.661 623,411.872
(98,733.129) (406,489.661) (623,411.872)
240,039.008 322,317.176 541,133.704

(240,039.008)

(322,317.176)

(541,133.704)

() () ()

() () ()
530,693.000 1,162.000 529,531.000
(530,693.000) (1,162.000) (529,531.000)
312,815.000 170,511.000 671,835.000
(312,815.000) (170,511.000) (671,835.000)
489,065.000 422,801.000 738,099.000

(489,065.000)

(422,801.000)

(738,099.000)
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4.7

10

4.7

USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank

Secrecy Act
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60

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
NYSE

NOCP
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BMA
BMA

2001 100

31

5,000 1972 Exchange Control

Act 1972 BMA

75

100
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2019 2020 31
2020 2021 31

131

23 103

2021
31 UFJ 109.90
80.18
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2021 31
2021 31
584,700 64,259
0 0
6 1
675 74
0 0
2,492 274
0 0
501 55
0 0
TBA 0 0
12,305 1,352
1,190 131
0 0
601,869 66,145
0 0
0 0
0
129 14
2,737 301
5,046 555
5,200 571
TBA 0 0
0 0
7,743 851
0 0
1 0
123 14
0 0
0 0
28 3
132 15
0 0
100 11
21,239 2,334

580,630 63,811
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579,610 63,699
0 0
0 0
(151) 17)
0 0
58,479 6,427
49,567 5,447
357,325 39,270
738
541
3,299
79.23 8,707
102.77 8,240
91.60 10,067
10,073
108.33 11,905
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7,233 795
21 2
7,254 797
185 20
189 21
990 109
208 23
173 19
1,109 122
42 5

43 5
224 25
41 5
100 11
3,304 363
3,950 434
4,558 501
0 0
(1,279) (141)
(2,270) (249)
1,318 145
2,327 256
8,810 968
0 0
(208) (23)
(932) (102)
(45) ®)
7,625 838
9,952 1,094
13,902 1,528
0 0
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3,950 434
2,327 256
7,625 838

13,902 1,528
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
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150,431 16,532
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66.95 7,358
@) 0.43 47
11.85 1,302
12.28 1,350
79.23 8,707
(b) 18.34
©) 1.89
58,479 6,427
0.91
0.90
0.57

0.01
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91.91 10,101
©) 0.72 79
(1.03) (113)
(0.31) 34
91.60 10,067
(b) (0.34)
© 1.73
49,567 5,447
0.78
0.77
0.76

0.01
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106.12 11,663
(@) 0.56 62
1.65 181
2.21 243
108.33 11,905

(b) 2.08
357,325 39,270

0.91

0.90

0.52

0.01
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5,000
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0 3,226

200 1,802
19,482 100,873
589 246
1,062 481
22,194 143,165
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JITF
2021 31 2021 31 2021 31 2021 31
16 1,655 10 1,103 333 13,075
4,526 81,947
an|  (7.642) @l  (5,094) @17 (28,250)
(10,360)|  (186,147)
68|  (5,987) B9 (3,991) 384 (15,175  (5,834)  (104,200)
2021 31 2021 31 2021 31 2021 31
88 5,587 38 422 390 7,826
134 4,012
5 404
13 835
29 1,566
47 644
37 1,139
@171) (10,802) an)| (1,922 G| @,627)
(270) (8,150)
(®) (581)
@4 (1,648)
(50) (2,806)
(3,029)|  (44,761)
(68) (2,098)
(83) (5,215) (3,188)  (51,444) @34 (1,500) 309 6,199
2021 31
489 38,036
161 16,732
50 4,921
5 526
240 22,516
2,870 310,406
“23) | (32,168)
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(41) | (23,433)
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1,243 136,529
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US GAAP
2021 31
2021 31
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2021 31

TR S ERTE
(=Rl [ F-Hjifi)

SET T raa

AorCap Ireland Capital DAC
3. o00% dise 05,726,202 i

4 A00% due 12716,/°202]

4. G25% due 07,/01/2022

AIA Group Ltd

0. T0T% due 09,/20,/°2021 1,
Air Lease Corp.

2 T60% due 01/15/2023

Ally Financial, Ine.

a1
S1

&8

3

y TG

g

4. 125% due 021372022 TO0 718
Aozors Bank Ltd

B B0 dse 091/07/2021 To0 T8
Aviation Capital Growp LLC

0. 556% due O7,/30/2021 1,400 1, 400
L 141% dise 06,01/2021 400 400
28T5% dwe 01/20/2022 1, 700 1, 721
Avolon Holdings Fusding Ltd.

BTSN due 02/15/2025 B0 618
5 500% due 01152023 =M 531
Banco Samtander Chile

1. 335% dise 11728/2021 L] B2
Barclays. PLEC

1. 536% due 05 16,/2024 B0 Gl
1L 837% due 06/15,/2023 ALD 1, 000 TET
BOC Avistien Litd

2AT5% due 09/ 15,/2021 5 1, 700 1, 703
2. 7500 due 09718,/202 plalll] 204
30000 due 05/23,/20% B0 B13
BOC Aviation USA Corp.

1. 625% dise O4.7290/2024 GO0 504
Brimmor Operating Partnership LP

L. 26% dse 02012022 1, 000 1,004
Cantor Fitzgerald LP

B B0 due 06172022 BOG B4G
CIT Group, Tne,

B 000 due 08/15,/2022 2, 300 2,418
Citigroup, Tne,

1. 165% due 06,01/2024 HEH 304
1. 256% due 06/17/2024 2,600 2, B4
L TES% due 10527/ 2023 AlD 2, 000 1, 586
Crodit Agricole 5. A

L 237% due 003/32,/2024 5 1,400 1,417
Credit Suisse Group AG

Lo A24% due O612/2024 1,500 1, 523
21038 dise 085,05,/2006 ] 1. 02y
Danske Bank ASS

LIT1% die 12/083/2023 2, B0 2, 815
I 244% due 097122023 1,200 1,214
3 001% dise 09,720,202 1. 600 1. 611
Deutsche Bank AG

O B0 due 05,/28/2024 (o) ] =01
First Abu Dhabi Bank PISC

L. IHF% dise 04/ 16,2022 3. 00 3, 016
GA Global Funding Trust

L. 625% due 01/15,/2026 A0 105
Goldaan Sachs Group, Ine,

OCB01% due 12/09,2028 =] (1]
L 1T6% due 07,/ 24/2023 400 103
L O3 due 10/28,/2027 pal ] 211

148/381



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31

TR S Lhg*

(ML) (FHft)
Hana Bank
0. 8% due 10/02,/2082 ] 1, Ton 5 1, T
HSBC Holdings FLC
Lo 1 duo 027162024 Al 2, 6 2,017
Lo ADT% due 0351172025 3 A, B0 4. 083
15H Portfolicaanngemont Aock
0. 4800% due 1151972021 BOO B0
ING Groop KV
L et e OH1/0172027 1, Zoo w211
International Lease Finance Corp.
B 625% due 01/15,/2032 1, 10k 1, 153
JFlorgan Chaso & Ca,
1. 063% dwe 072372024 pail 1] 203
LensoFlan Corp, NV
BTN due 10S2472024 B0 632
Lloyds Banking Group FLC
L00T% due 11507,/2023 300 311
Mirao Assot Securities Co. Ltd
4 EE5% due 11007/2021 AHy Wa
Mitsubishi HC Capital, Inc.
2 662% due 0919,/2022 1. 500 1,538
Mizuho Financial Growp, Inc.
0. 77T% due 05,25,/2024 2,400 2,413
1 034% dise 091372023 1, 500 1,511
L 17T8% dise 0710072024 500 506
Nationwide Building Society
1 62E% due 04/36/2023 o] 300
NatWest Group PLC
L T51% due 06,25,/ 2024 1, 00 1,022
Nemura Boldings, Inc.
1. 551% due 0716,/ 2025 2,500 2,546
2645% due 01/16,/2025 2, 000 2,101
MNardoa Bank Abp
L OTE% due 08,/30,/2053 1, 300 1, 517
ORIX Corp.
T 00 due 077182022 (Z511] BEE
3. 200% due 01,19/2022 200 200
Pacific Life Global Funding IT
0. 030% dise 06/ 04,/2026 BO0 B2
Park Aercspace Holdings Lid.
4. 500 due 03/ 15,2053 L] 315
5. 250 due 08/15,/20:2 2, 600 2,734
Piper Sandler Cos,
4. T40% dwe 10/ 15,2021 200 201
5. 20400% due 10/15,/2023 GO0 600
GNE Finamce Ltd.
1. 176% due 0502,/2022 1, GO0 1, 606
I 230% die 02 122022 4, 100 4, 108
1. T92% dus 0270173023 Al G20 51
Santander Holdings USA, Inc.
1. 450% due 1200,/2021 § B00 916
Santander UK Group Holdings PLC
L 085 dise (031572025 3,100 3,123
3 3T3% duwe 01005,/2024 1. 100 1, 150
5L Green Operating Partnership LP
Lo L% due 08/ 16,/202] 0 300
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i (5 Lhg*

(ML) (Fft)
Standard Chartered PLC
1250% due 10/ 1472023 L] 3,500 H 3,5
3 TESE due 05212025 00 b 1]
Stato Bank of India
4. 000% due 01242022 400 108

86, 178

ppowm
T-Eleven, Inc.
0 625% duse 02 10/2023 B0 B01
O SO0 due 02,/10/2024 BHY 600
Arrow Electreaics, Inc.
3. 500% due 04S01/2022 600 612
Bayer U.5. Finamce I1 LLC
L. 1594% due 12/15,/2023 1, hom I, 116
Borry Global, Ime.
4. 575% due O07/15,/2028 1,400 1, 481
Boeing Co.
L. 167% due 02/04,/2083 1,500 1, 507
1. A35% due 02042024 2,100 2, 107
I 875% due 06152023 700 716
4. 60 due 0501/2023 1, GOD 1, 710
Central Nippen Exprossway Co. Ltd
0 G16% dise 02015,/2022 7 000 7, 018
0. 00 due 03,/03,/2022 00 301
ES6TH die 11/02/2021 1. (00 1, Gy
CE Hutchison Intorpaticoal 16 Ltd
1. B75% due 30052021 550 B52
Dolta Air Lines, Inc.
3. 625% due 0G/15,/2022 EO0 BL3
Emorgy Transfer LP
5000t duwe 10,701 ,/2022 o0 KR
Fard Moter Credit Co. LLC
L DG due 10/12,/20:2] 1, D00 1, 198
3o 219% due 01/00,/2022 700 708
3 0% due 01072022 400 1
3 B1T% due 1071272021 B0 B06
b. 596% due 01/07/2022 400 410
BoBTEN% due (8,/02/2021 3, 100 5110
GATX Carp.
0. 896% dise 11,/05,/2021 1, 000 1, o0z
Gonaral Mills, Inc.
B A0S due 10015,/ 2022 400 31
General Motors Co.
1083% dise 05110072021 400 401
General Motors Financisl Co., Ine.
L. 275% due 11/06,/2021 2, W00 2,811
L T36% dise 01/ 14/2022 154 135
Heathrow Funding Ltd.
4. 875% due 07/15,/2021 500 02
Hewlatt Packard Enterprise Co.
0. 0% due 10/705,/2021 GO0 B0
Hyundai Capital America
Lo 13 due O7,/08,2021 LA72 1,173
L1500 duse 1110/2022 1, To0 1,711
L3T5% due 027002023 00 s
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S (S L5 e ]

(TN (Ffiy
Hyundai Capital Services, Inc.
30008 due 08731205 4 00 5 617
Imperial Brands Finance FLC
3. 125% due O7/26/2024 1, 300 1, 350
3. To0% due 07,°21/2022 1, 300 1, 338
Eraft Heinz Foods Co.
0 9E2N due 081072022 1, 100 1. 100
Lennar Corp.
4. 125% due 01152022 HoUH HH
4. 7500 de 1151572022 1,538 1, 615
BTSN due 10/0]/2032 F 318
Marriott International, Ioc.
3. 125% due 10/15,/202] EOO B3
MG Resorts International
7. TB0% due 00015,/2022 1, 700 1, 782
Microchip Techmology, Inc.
0. 083% dise 09,701,/2024 0 S0
Kissan Motor Acceptance Corp.
O B3 due O7/13,/2022 2,500 2,504
0. 883% due 09,/28/2022 2, 00 2. 04
LOTR% due 01/13/2022 1, 200 1, 203
2000 due 09/28/HE B0 ElY
W BY
BRTER due 0901/2022 0 312
Sabine Pass Liquefsetien LLC
Go250% due 03/15,/2022 1, 000 1, G300
SMBC Aviation Capital Financo DAC
Jo000% due 07/15/2022 (] G
30500 due D4/ 15,/2024 1,450 1, 543
4. 125% due 07/15/2023 400 125
Sutter HBealth
Lo 321% due 02,15,/2025 (L 101

58, 308

. L
ATAT, Inc.
1. 275% due 09192023 ALD B0 90
CanterPoint Energy Rescurces Corp.
0 G21% duse 0002/2023 5 1, 300 1, 301
Charter Commmications Operating LLC
L B26% dise G2,01/2024 5, 100 B, 247
Dissondback Emorgy, Inc.
0. 000% due 032472023 B0 B0
Israel Electric Corp. Ltd
BTSN dise 06212023 400 148
Oecidental Petroless Corp.
L BO6% due 08/15,/2022 3, H0 8
0GE Energy Corp.
0. T05% due 05,/26,/2023 BOO 801
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.
1. 670% dise 06,/ 16,/2022 3, 00 3, 001
L. 750 due 06, 16,/2022 2,400 2, 400
30500 due 061572023 100 1M
JoA00% due 0815,2024 o0 11
3.7500% due 02715/2024 100 105
3 850% due 111572023 100 106
A 2500 due 08,0]1,/2083 0 S8
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5 1 LT ]

(TN ) [ Ikdir)
Relinoce Industries Ltd
B 400% due 027142022 H B0 1 819
Saudi Arabisn 01 Co.
L. 500 due 11242023 20 2
5K Telocom Co. Ltd
ETE0N due B4 16,/2023 1, 00 1. 038
Southern California Edison Co.
0L B0% due 04/01/2024 (L 1. 005
Sprint Commanications, Ime.
G 000% due T1015/2022 40 425
Sprint Corp.
T 1255 doe 061572024 100 I15
7. 150% due 091572021 7 712
¥alors Energy Corp.
I 334% doe 097152023 1, 0} 1, 403
Yerizon Communications, Inc.
0. 500% due 03202006 1. 400 LA27
L. 3500 due 02/ 172023 AUD 1. 800 1. 401

26, 47T

Hhiwart 169, 553
(Gl 3167, 901)
Dwuphin, Pennsylvania, Pennsylvenin Higher Education Assistance Agency Revenus Bonds, Series 2008
0. 3068 due 10/25,/2006 i 249 247
Sacrasesto, Californis, Gemoral Obligation Bonds, Series 2017
0. BRTR due 301247 200 200
Salt Lake, Utah, Utah State Board of Regents Revenue Bonds, Saries 2007
08425 due 01/25/2067 144 137
bl gty 584
(GBI 5584)
oo |
Freddie Msc
E 0008 due 09/25/2045 525 a3l
(eSS 3535)
Fannie Wae
0L B7S% due E2018/2006 4, 500 4. 473
0. 892% due 03/25,/2028 10 106

328 due 04/25/2023 1 1
Fodoral Home Loan Bank

0. 750 due 027 24,/2026 4. 300 1, i8]
. 5305 due 02/10/2027 5, 500 5, 437
0. B50% due 02/17,/2027 4. B0 1. 515
0. 500% due 02,/06,/2027 6, 30 . M1
0. G20% due 02,/ 26/2027 4. 500 4462
[, 9600 due 00,06,2026 5, 000 5, 0]
L. 000% due 03/23,/2026 1400 1,401
V. 0208 due D22/ 202T T, 000 G, w7
L 0T due 05,/28,/2006 1, 0 1, 0]
L 115% due 02/25/2027 5, 604 b, Bl
Freddie Mac

0. 465% due 03/15/2007 168 754
0. 465% due 10/35/2037 1. 058 1, 062
. A65% due D8/15/242 525 533
0. 5ISN due 001520400 467 193
0. B00% due 10/I7,/2026 1, 5O 1. 483
5000 due 10/25/2048 255 266
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2021 31

50 B

(T M)
Ginnio Mas
0. 5608 due 03/20,/2061 1 Bl 3 Bl
0L BIO% due 08/20,2066 "“ o
0. B0 due 05/20,/2066 138 141
0. 9605 due 07/ 20,2066 7l Te
0o doe 11/20,/2066 153 156
1. 080% due 117202067 s g5
* 5000 due OS50 2040 104 110
2 S00% due 1D/20,/2049 129 135
A [RET 56, 018

L5 Treasury Notes

0. E25% due 04,730,/2023 o, 000 o, wal
0, THON due 017312028 2, 800 LT
RERBE TERR A 12, 617
(FhIRE $12, 648)

B i st 5 EER 16 5%

ACE Securities Corporation Home Equity Loan Trust

DURTIN due B4/I5/2034 309 04
ACRES Commercial Realty Corp.

LB01% due 04717/2007 1. 025 1, 027
AREIT Trust

L LI8% due 097 1472006 50 |
27218 due BLS15/2037 837 .2 )
Atrium Fetel Portfolio Trust

L. 051% duc D6/15,/2035 T Tl
Avon Fimance Mo, 2 FLC

O s dune 0890 00,°2048 = 1. BE1 2 676
BAMLL Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust

L. 1518 due 04/15/2036 i §0e) e
1. 3018 due 03/15,/2034 404 401
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage Trust

L IB1% due 09)15,/2036 458 457
Bear Stearns Adjustable Bate Mortgage Trust

2L B00% due 0425,/2003 5§ i
E RN due 08/25/2053 = 3
Bear Stearns Asset-Backed Securities I Trust

0 5008 due 06/25,/2034 1oz 47a
Bear Stearns Second Lien Trust

LA42% due 01/25,/2036 55 =
Beast Mortgege Trust

L. 300% due 03/15/2036 2000 2, D06
Erass Mo, 8 FLC

0. B56% due 111672066 176 177
BX Trust

(. B01% due 0071572004 &, A el 1l |
Canterbury Finance Ko, 1 PLC

L. 3o due 05, 16/2056 B 1. 000 L 432
Citigroup Mortgage Loam Trust

3 228N dup 09725/ 2050 $ 165 156
Citigroup Mortgage Loam Trust, Inc.

0oBI2E due 11/25/2036 208 .
COLT Mortgage Loan Trust

1. 255% due 09/35,/2060 610 613
Comercial Mortgage Trust

0. 728% due 03/10/2046 o 32
Comtrywide Asset-Backed Cortificates

0L BTH due 08/35/2036 144 148
Crodit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust

0. B51% due OT/15/2032 304 2ot
1. To6% due 1202772060 1. 10 1. 102
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TR S Lhg*

(TN (Fft)
2 086% due 10/27/2054 3 G40 3 646
3. 322% due 10/25/2058 168 170
(5 First Boston Mortgage-Backed Trust
O B32% due 10,/25,/2034 Z 2
Dilosk FMBS No. 4 DAC
O 10T e 02202060 ELE 2, i 3, 633
Earopean Loan Condait No. 36 DAC
1 000 due (201772030 Gty 1,222
Finance America Mortgage Loan Trust
0. 01T due 08°25,/2034 H 154 153
Finsbury Square PLC
O B0 due 06162070 GEF 2,728 3, 875
1 ME% due 06/ 16,/2069 1, §28 1, 604
1. 05 due 12/16,/2068 1,385 1, 580
Firstmac Mortgage Funding Trust No.d
0. BO9G% due 03/08.°2049 3 =25 225
Fromont Homo Loan Trust
O F2T% dse 01/25/2035 ok 300
GCT Commarcinl Mortgege Trust
0. 01% dise 02015/2038 500 BO1
Geagarto PLC
0. 000% due 12162067 GEF' 1, 00 1, 425
5 MortgageBached Securities Corp. Trust
L. T50% dise §2,/25/2060 i 2,820 2, BI5
Bawksacor Mortgege Funding PLC
1. 10K e 05725,2053 GEF G2 05
Hawksmoor Martgages
L0 e 05,25,/ 2063 1,082 1, 455
Hemeward Opportunities Fund 1 Trust
1. 657% dise 065,/25,/2065 § 350 353
LY Trust
Lo 100% due 11/15/20346 25 26
Impac QB Trust
0. 342% due 05,25,/2035 1,161 1, 138
0. T32% due 09/25,/2035 142 145
JPlcrgan Chase Cossorcisl Mortgage Securities Corp.
4. 12N duee OT/05,/2031 1., Oy 1, 64
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
1. 100% dwe 06715,2032 24 25
1. 551% due 12/15/2031 et b
A1 due 06/15,2035 185 186
Lanark Master Issuer PLC
0. 020% dise 12227205 400 101
Legacy Mortgage Assot Trust
FoAES due 05 25,/2059 1] GEY
BTB0% due O4/25/2050 HETES bt ]
London Wall Mortgage Capital PLC
0, 9E% dus 117152049 GEP 108 15
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust
1. 06T% due O4/25,/2085 3 ETD T
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
B TOES due 09252004 144 141
WF] Ltd,
L.222% dise 12°25/2034 50 260
E151% dise 07/ 15,2035 L] B10
WF1 Multifamily Housing Mortgange Loan Trust
0. 951% dise 07/ 15,2036 2,500 2, 504
WFA Trust
1. 381% due 0425,/ 2065 9556 il
L AT die 00252065 (5. Bib
Mill City Mortgage Loan Trust
L. 125% due 11252060 1,34 1, 353
TR0 dwe 082552054 S 26
Morgan Stanley Assot-Backed Securities Capital I, Inc. Trust
0. 2% duse 05,25/ 2024 i 51
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T a5

(TN (Fft)
Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust
L L0% due 05/ 15,/2036 5 T i BT
How Residentisl Mortgnge Loan Trust
D.1% due 09/°75/2058 1, 0 1, 0o
LTBON due 07/25/208% 2,47 2, 460
L7500 dwe 11/35/2059 2,018 2, a0
oo dwe 12252057 1y 113
A 500 due 06,/25,/2058 176 L1
Nemurn Resecuritization Trust
2. 005% due 10/ 20/2026 B3z G35
HovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust
0. T52% due 01725/20346 Fa ] n
Permanent Master lssuer PLC
0. T doo 071572058 00 oLl
FFP Ltd.
LGS due 0471472036 710 710
L TA8% due 04/ 1472037 1, 00 1, 33
Polaris FLC
L 20 due 052772057 GHE 1, 052 I, 453
Frecise Mortgage Funding FLC
O 079% due 10162056 alG 1, 306
Pretium Mortgage Credit Partoers I LLC
208 due 0972772060 i el 1t
Regidential Mortgage Accoptance Corporatiem FLC
0. TR due 06/ 12/2046 GEF 351 R
Rosidential Mortgage Securities 31 PLC
1. 284% due 092072065 144 205
Rosidentinl Mortgage Securities X2 PLC
L 20 due 06 20,°2070 458 BAT
RESIMAC Premier
0. PO5% due O7,/10,/2052 5 6,517 6, 516
Ripon Mortgages PLC
O EE]S due 087202006 G 1, 586 2.2
Silverstone Mastor Isswer FLC
0. THER due 012172070 3 127 127
0. 7% dwe 01/21/2070 GEP =] 172
Stapwich Mortgage Loan Co. LLC
33T5% due 081552024 3 193 195
Stratton Mortgage Funding
0. la% due O7,/30,2080 GEF 436 (2344
Stratton Mortgage Funding PLC
0% due 00 12/2062 168 213
L. 2450% due 05/25,/2051 107 B8l
Structured Asset Investment Loan Trust
B BAZ% due 09252004 £ 1,524 1,785
Teurus (K DAC
0. D00 due 06,717/2031 GEP 1. 700 2,418
Tharaldsen Hotel Partfolio Trust
L 00 duse §1/°11/2034 3 E10 BOG
Towd Foint Mortgage Funding
O BS% due 07,720,/2045 GER 1, 208 1,717
Lo 249% due 022072054 497 710
Towd Foint Mortgage Funding Auburn 14 FLC
0. 4% dise 05,/20,/2045 ] 1,524

Tewd Polmt Mertgage Funding Granited FLC

I 111% die 10,/20/2051 194 7
Towd Point Mortgage Trust

boSh due 05, 25,2058 3 419 23
Lo092% dwe §0/25/2059 4322 428
LG duse 04025,/ 2060 3, s 3,04
LTI due D1/25,/2060 L1 1, 215
3. 7500 due 057252054 [ 720
UBS-Barclays Cossercial Mortgage Trust

0. 555% duwe 04,/10,/2046 1 200
Y Fionoce LLC

L 201% due 09 15/20036 88 58
Lo 210% dise D6/ 16,/2036 2,000 2, 00
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(LA {F-0ee)
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust
0 9L dus 121372031 5 50O 1 493
1. 151% dwe 07/15,/2046 =B 205
4. 218% due 07/15,/20:46 LU L v
WFRES Cosmercial Mortgnge Trost
0. 891% de 1271572045 i Gk
V-V Ay P ESSH 97, 458
(R 594, 225)

e a0 o fEWR 13 6%
A0 Bridge Asset Financing LLC

2021% die 08152040 1,468 1, 475
AMMC CLD 16 Ltd

L 106% due 047 14/2029 B0 02
Anchorage Capital CLO 6 Led

1. 2% due OF/15,/2030 2, Wy 2, Gy
Arber Realty Commercial Real Estate Motes Lid,

1 251% doe 05/15/2037 F00 00
Atrium XII

LIRS due 0472252027 o S8
Black Dismond CLO Designated Activity Co.

SR dus 10032029 BET 58T
Baspor UK Finance FLC

0. 549 dise 12,/20,°2030 GE 1, D 1, 420
Cairn CLO IV BV

o GOOM dise 0473012031 EUR 2, 2,482
Carlyle Global Market Strategies Huro CLO DAC

0. TR due 09/21/2029 patig 362
Catamaram CLO Lid.

1. 280r% due 01/18,/2029 i 2.282 2,255
Cathedral Lake CLO Lid.

L O3S due 00716202 U] GO0
Chesapoake Funding 11 LLC

320 due 08/15,/2030 | 2
Commercial Industrial Finance Corporation Punding Ltd

O, 000% due 10,724,200 2. 500 2, o0
1 006% due 10/25,/2027 T &37
Contego CLO IT BY

0. 3659% due 11/15,/2026 ELR B14 748
Cantego CLO IV DAC

0. G0 dise D1/ 23/2030 4000 157
Dall Equipment Finance Trust

20600 dwe 06/22,/2022 i 517 vt
Darchester Park CLO DAC

1 08 due 04202028 12 presd
ECMC Group Student Loan Trust

O B42% due 027272068 BOE 511
L. H4Z% due 06/25,/2087 q10 Sl
EFS Yolumteer LLC

L O26% due 10/25,/2005 100 100
Fair Oaks Loam Funding IT DAC

L 00 due OF,15/20:3] EUE 1,800 2, 193
FirstKoy Homes Trust

L 266% due 1071972037 5 1, it 1, &y
Flagship Credit Auto Trost

2,500 due 10162023 ai ai
Fard Credit Floorplan Master Owner Trast A

B T01% due 09)15,/2024 (0] B
Gallatin CLO 1X Ltd.

1. 236% due 01/21,/2028 W17 917
GLS Auto Recedvables Issuwer Trust

0. 6590 due 10/18,/2023 i 58]
Haleyon Loan Adviscrs Punding Ltd

Lo 10 due 042002027 137 137
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(TN (Fft)
HERA Commercisl Mortgage Ltd
1 145% due 02/15/2038 E] 200 5 200
Invesco Euro CLO 1 DAC
0. G50% due 07,/15,/2031 EUR 500 BT
Jubileo CLO BV
0. G10% dse 041572030 2, 00 2,436
0. G5O dise O/ 15,205) 1, Do 1,217
LonnCore Issuer Ltd.
Lo23% due 05/ 15/ 20346 i o0 00
LF Credit Card Asset-Backed Securities Master Trust
L GBL% due 02/20,/°2024 BaE &0
Man GLG Eure CLO ITT DAC
0. 6RO due 10,15,/2030 ELR o LE] 1, 094
Marathon CLO ¥ Led
L0 duse 11/21/2027 5 04 (1]
Marble Point CLO X Ltd.
L 22 due 10/15,°2030 3, 000 &, oon
Marlette Funding Trust
& 130% due 07/ 16,2029 160 16l
Master Credit Card Trust 1I
0. 5878 due O7,/21/2024 HAH] B3
MidOcean Credit CLO II
0. 0% due 01/29,°2030 2,100 2, Bag
Midocean Credit CLO ¥III
1. 205% due 02/20,/2031 1, 700 1, 700
Mountain Yiew CLO LLC
1. 2T4% due 10.716,/202% T 00
Mountain Yiew CLO X Ltd
L 00E% dwe 101352027 (EEil] Gt
Havient Private Education Loan Trust
L 101% due O/ 15,2064 1,765 1,779
G50 due 12/15/2028 abk af
Havient Private Edocation Refi Loan Trust
LT due 09716,/20049 BOE B4
L3 due 011552068 1,518 1,531
LG50 due 05,15,°2008 1,605 1,637
Helnot Student Loan Trust
0 THEE due 089272038 1, 70% 1. 703
O B09% due 09,725,/ 2065 [BE] 114
0. B92% due 08,25,/ 2067 4 B0
O 2% due 02252066 1.726 1. 726
0. 992% due 0617/ 2067 1423 1. 446
04K Hill Burepean Credit Fartmers YII DAC
O TA0% due 10,/20,/203] ELR 1, 6 1,850
0CP CLO Ltd
0. S84% due O00/15,2027 i 155 155
Onolain Financial Issuance Trust
200 due 09714,/2002 1 1
Palmer Square CLO Lid
L. D06% duse 08, 15,2006 pall]
Penarth Master Issuer FLC
0. 635% due 07/ 18,/2023 1, BDG 1. 801
0. 835% due 07/18,/2023 200 200
Peppar SPARKZ Trust Mo.3
1. 055% dise 088,17 ,/2028 AR 1,514 1,137
PFS Finnncing Corp.
0. 651% due BL/15/2024 5 o] 03
O B3 due 08152024 A 402
SLC Student Loam Trust
O 216% due 05/15,/2020 152 152
0. 2040% due 037152027 Fz ]
SLM Student Loam Trust
0. 266% dwe 01,/26,/2026 b1 -1 205
b 6o6% due 127152027 a3 do
L 6TE% dwe 04/25,/2023 151 152
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i (s Lhg*
{FNLf) (F-uift)

SME Private Education Loan Trust
0. 352% due 09/15,2054 H 64 H 264
S215% dwe O7/15/2053 1,042 1, DG6
1. 600 due 09,15,2054 BO0 04
SoFi Consusor Loan Prograa Trust

2_000% dise 0525/ 2028 133 134
J000 dise O4252028 M 33
3. 2400 due 02/25,/2023 B ]
SaFi Professional Loan Program LLGC

LM% due D1°25,/2009 19 19
2. T30 due 10°27,72036 L] 67
Sound Podnt CLO XIV Led

1. 163% dus 01/23/3029 1,477 1,435
Sound Point CLO X¥ Ltd.

0. D00 due 01/23,2029 32, Wi 3. BuZ
Sound Point CLO X¥I Ltd

1. 156% duse O7./25,/2030 2,400 2, Wl
Tikehau CLO BY

0. G00% due 08/04/2028 EUR 720 BT
TRTX Issuer Ltd.

1. 251% die 101552034 i 1, 0 1, GO0
Upstart Securitization Trust

2O654% duwe 012152030 i b
EBOTE due 09)20,/20: 4 £ L]
Yenture 36 CLO Ltd
0.0000% dise 04202032 () 2,700 2,700
Venture XVII CLO Ltd

L. 0G4% due 04015/ 2027 B B
Venturs XEVI CLO Lid

L. 288% due 012072029 T T
Tz b oot ERSH T8, 356
(FMEE 577, T53)

Expori-laport Bank of India

1. 195% due 0821/2022

International Bank for Recomstruction & Dovelopmont
06500 dise 021002026

0. B50% due 02102027

Israel Government Bood

g
g

88

0. 050 dise 11/30,/2021 15 4, W0 1, 508
b 5Mr% due 01/31/2022 14, 200 |, BOG
Qatar Goverrment International Bond

LATSN due DET2/202] i 1, D00 1,001
Saudi Government International Bond

L 37E% due 10/26/2021 1, 000 1, C0f
U AN 15, 128

[ METEE 515, 028)
T e

r— S fie s i ri— 3%

Conagra Brands, Inc.
O D0 due 060172021 {c) 1, on 1,

g

|

Pacific Caz &k Eleetric Co.
1. 568% due 11/15/2021 1. 00 1. 0

L
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35 T EYEE
{ FHLE) [ Ikgie)

e b LRl o i K-
CIMIC Growp Ltd. () (o)

0. D00% due 061172021 5 2,345 3 il
0. 000% - duoe OF.709,/2021 1,073 1. D64
s.41L

Australia and New Zoalsnd Banking Group Ltd.

(0, 2000%) doe 06,/01,/2021 ALD o6 i |

0. 005% due 06,/01/72021 i 248 246

Bank of MNova Scotia

0. 005% due 06/0072021 a8 48

0. 0I0% due 06/01/2021 CAD =7 e

BN Paribas Bank

(0. 5508} due 06,01,/2021 K 2 ]

0. DOG% due 06,/D1/2021 D T b

0 DOB% due 06,/01/2021 3 22 20

0L 010% doe 0600152021 CAD 30 25

Citibank N. A

0. DO5% due 06,01 2021 i 13 134

D85S Bank Ltd,

(. DOBS due 06,/01,/2021 13 13

Dnf Bank ASA

(0, TR} due 06,/01°2021 ELR 2 3

0. 005% due 06012021 § £l a

HSBC Bank PLC

(0, TR0} due 06,01,/2021 ELR 16 19

0. GO5% due 06,/01/2021 GEF 0 1

JPMargan Chase Bank N, A

0. 00B% due 060172021 5 268 068

Royal Bank of Canada

0, 000% due 06012021 CAD 230 191

Sumitoms Mitsul Banking Corp.

(0, TEO%) due 060172021 EUR 1% 2

0. 005% due 06/01/2021 H 105 108

0, 0O5% due D6/D1/2021 GEF HL 55

Sumitomo Mitsuyi Trust Bamk Ltd

0, 005% due 06/01/2021 3 126 126

. OG5S due 06,/01/2021 G 226 320
1, 919

0 101% due 08/05/2021 (c) CAD 11, 000 . 104
=3 = A-HI R 00

(0, 02em) due 020272022 {d) ILs 10,600 3, m2

(0, 022%) due 1043072021 {d) 7. 900 2,431

00 due 04/06/2022 {c) 1.200 69
6, 062

EEZ 08 g

(0 104%) dioe 081072021 {c} ¥ 2,511, 000 23,830
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2021 31

i (s LT

(-l {Tupigay

0% due D6/01/2021 () -1 2, 000 E 2,000
00008 due 07/08/2021 {c) £ 50 it
0.031% due 1050452021 {e) () 2,30 2,200
0 033% due 10/707,/2021 {c} 3,900 3,900
O 04F% dibe 0B726,/2021 de) () 3,000 3. 000
O 5% dipe 06,/29,2021 (d) 70, 100 70, 1060
&7, 500

=T E AR A (o)A T

Oo020% dise 0571472021 5, 100 5, 100

0, 020% due 09/28/2021 (b 2, 300 3300
0. 025% due 09/07/2021 12, 600 2, 600
21,000
SR 154, 435
(AR 5154, 531)
SRAEESEH () 100.7% ) 584, 700
CHuWEE 5579, 5100
BT U 45
() (g} (0.4%) (2, 185)

(SRR AR I 70, M $(161))

FOROREES LR, S 0. 0% (1, B85

SR 100, 0% ] B0, 630
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2021 31

R A IR EE ST R s SRR (e« TR,

o EoARE, TUEARICEEEA SO RS ERL TS LB,

a) 202048 5 31 HWAEDRMPAZIOEIC | 5 ETAEIENGHORSL, HBICRIT SHEMDS. 5%, %) AITHITE0. 15, 74 v il
3B 5E 6, BRICBITET. 6%, BIUHEESEDLT. KELHSFOROECE VRRINS,

(b) RATHERFEER,

(€} o—ers, WML TOMED £RT,

@ r—itid, WA TORRTEREY 2%+,

WM E EfE I AN S
LS C . Vil Vit 2 MR Vil : Ve AN B W
CIMIC Group Ltd 0, 00 06,/11.,/2021 02/aL 2021 i L f o 2M L1
CIMIC Group Led 0, D0 07,08, 2021 022302020 1. D&% 1, 8% . 18
st wche kank AG I BhE% Oo/ 28,2004 05,25/ 2021 SO0 albl . (%
I R PR E - T § 391 § 3,812 0. 6T%

AN L e OROR MR OfE

HTIE G N30 A R THAMR, faf o PR A, 973 F AT, MBTFERTLI, 38 TR o, TRMAREL, SRR An s, S
WL 3l DO L i e = B S,

(F)} ST U 57 o TEE . PR N AT TR E RN TPR RO b S AR U AT s TR

_

WEIEMA FMMEE RIS

e it LA EE) HER (M=) B ol
FMonth Canads Bank Acceplance December
Futures Long 1272022 424 H] (242} 5 0 L] 18}
F-Manth Canads Bask Acceprance Mlarych
Futures Leong 032023 i () Q {17}
I8 Tressury 2-Year hote September
Futures Shart 09/ 1021 7B ] Q ¥}
L& Fl'l.'u.'-u!} E-Yeuy Nate &-ph-hler
Futores Short 05/ M2 OO (7w u] {35
L5 Tressury Ultra 10-Year Note
September Futures Short 09/ 2021 188 (14} 0 L6

3 {man 3 0 3 (1290

EEm Mme ERAEE EREe

i Pl =eHE (A8 mEwes o (i) oy K
COX, 16-35 Index OOM  I2/NU2025 5 L.T00 8 [ 5 12 3 2 § 0
COX, 1G-36 Index 1. (0% 06/ 20,72026 o, B0 155 1] 2 0

[] =t | [ P ] 1 3 0
Fh WA wEMEE, 22 EhESE
SEER SR TR [ ] (A7 B./%) ek B () 74 fa i
£ I-Womth USD-LIBOR 0, 000% 01/ 1372003 15900 3 23 3 = ] 2 i it
AD 2 TREGEN 5 23 5 [ [ 3 [
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2021 31

FUF £ I LA U 7 IR PN L D ST Y T o T

EUFrL. 2021 RGN 31 RRETES EHE M U o4 o RRAG 2 LR ARG Rk A ST U U o i R L DO RARER ST
D

202045 A 31 ABE, 2,402 % FAodled, TECLGERT I 7+ FHLS LURPNE oS L2 547 1 9F  THE0EER
ELTBARGATY S, 7245 =BS5S ENRMIC-o0 TR, HEEN T 3BE0ES (vA -8R SEM0Z

&,
T U oF s R T ) AF g AR
EREd EREG
EHE HE B A
W AT #A ATy
_ ¥y KW i it FFrmr uH it
BT U o FERALE R
BPEEOHREES
T )T TSN $ 0 % [ B3 [ 0% (128 § 0§ (12

P AT o E g DN RTED, EORT o REeRETER SRS L SRS ERE, TR () A
A ORERRCR L EEE T o T F o DR LCRSAFL SR, BEEEEG L L Y b ARSI S R T D
A, BRI (B) BECRESSBRMEEEELE T b ARSI S RS OR LM R Lokt e R e L L Qi
EEAOEETEL D,

- WEDAY » TRAGRATER S L ZIZAERAEE RS, Ty KRR e T2 a0t FLLTER I, i
M T rira O VFE LORRTS 2 S 88 SR A,

- Bde&® by b FFbibh s AT TRBIZYE T, SBESEURREIE, BT e R e U2 OB S T O
ORRERL L, PP FUAT oS o ToIRIFAN (ERRMIPEE L WEERTE & me=X LSS h AT e TR
CMETA TS S RSP, SR D o S T b R L e G T ST SeMEOHEE, L7 b2 RSEO R R
e, BLUSRRORETER S L 2 CEERRHTO Y 22 6 L IS e (A A3 e S o e A
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. DRGARIZATION

Each Fund disoussed in this repart {each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds” ], which atso indwdes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class” and coffectively,
the “Classes”™), 1 a series trust of FINMCO Bermuda Trgst (the “Teost ™), an operrended unil tngst establshed undet the Linvds af Bermrada a5 & mulli-Senes s [T |
10 & trust deed executed by Winchester Global Trust Compamy Limited on Auqust B, 2001 (25 amended from time to ume, the “Trust Deed”™) Efectve & of the dese
of business (Eastern tme) on September 29, 3017, Maples Trustee Sendces {Bermuda) Limied (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 trustes of the Trust. Pacfic Imeestment
Management Company LLC ("AIMCO", the “Manage:”™ o the "Imestment Adviser” ) i the sponsor of and was responsible bar stnucturing the Trust

The Toust i subject to requlaton and supenveaon a5 peovaded Tor in the Investment Funds Act 006 and related rubes relating 1o standard funds
The terms. of the Trust Deed confer upon the Tnustee, wath the consent of the Manager, ke powes, in the future, to establish Turther funds in addtion to the Funds
currently in cpevation as of the date of thes report

References 1o whiholders (each, a "Unsthalder™, and collectvely, the "Unitholders™ ) in, or units of (or an imeestment in), the Fund shall mean Unitholders of the Fund
whi hodd units, or classes of units (a5 applicable), which are attributable to that Fund

Thee Funds paesentid i thes iepoet ae sbed Bl

Fund Dffarsd o
| AAMCD Barmuis Forngn Low Dssuton Furd [tHmed maly 1x haeds wirh @ Fund of Funds® vnactone, a3 defiosd o the reles af tha Invesoment Toat
AMED Berrsats U5 Lerw Duratess Fad fepurtan, Japen, o 13 tends with & Beul sbvciv @ ey alhet pradones
AMD] Emergeg Marke Sond Fond (ATH
PIMCD Ertrgg Markeds Borsd Fusid [Ve-Ridgind |
| AMCD Ervarging Markts Soned Fond 1|
AMCO Ewed Toml Ratei s Fasd DS 16 ftinl oiriion o S by vy of pubilic sitecsg thioogh § Seirbatal w Japin, $ad sy
ANED Al Awrorm Ferd b effored i ether swemtoe o3 e daoomen of the Masager
| POMICD Sy Torres Soraiy® Ofteeed 1o el seriinr of Japae by iy of pedic aftng Thioush o dqimitst padiad o tabi
tandng compary m Japan, 9 may be offered t ocher v o a the denenon of the banager
1 AMCD Ersprging Markts Sosd Funad | M Dﬂnu&rmndwhm 18 3w bt B el ng, P b vibele e sk Fondy
" it BT e A gy e il Yy 0 S o, i i o O ol ¥ “m sty Aty Jg LAl e b e e tunt o By % itk
i r D D e 2 d iy e fod 1 e I iy A ¥

Units of the PAMCD Ewe Total Retumn Fund, PMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUD, IPY, and USD Classes of PIMCD Short-Term Strateqy have been registered under the
Finandial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan: Units of each of the remaining Funds and the C {USDY, J {87Y), and ) (USD) Classes of PIMCO Shor-Term Strategy
hivve nat been and ace not cusrenthy expectad to be registered under the Finandal Enstruments and Exchange Lawe of lapan Aceordingly, such Unis af these Funds may
notbe, dicecthy or indirectly, offened in fapan or 10 amy resident in Japan, except in compliance with applicable lapanese laws and regulations

2. BIGNIFIC ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The follcwnng is a summany of sigriicant acccunting polices conststently folowed by the Trust in the preparation of is fnancial statements in conlormity weth
accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America ("U'S GAAP™) Each Fund i treated a5 an imsestment company under the reparting
requzements of U S GAAP The preperation of financal statements in acoardance with U5, GAMP requires management o make estenates and assumplions thag
affect the reported ameants of assets and Babilities and disdosure of contingent assets and liabiliies at the date of the financal statements and the reported amounts
of eereaded and decieates in el asiets from cpitations durs the mpocting pahod Actual niudts oould diffes feam thode eatimatet

|n] Acqmired Fends The Trustes and the Manager 11.7".1:;\-!; all ar a porhon ol the assets of FIMCD E'ﬂ?iljlr‘l;' Markess Bond Fund UMFY, PIMCOD En'.u:fq:'lg Matkets
Bond Fund (Yen-Hedged), and FIMCO Emeging Markets Bond Fund Il {each referted o heréin &2 8 “Fund of Furds” or the " Acquiting Fund”, which mvests in ogher
Funds) 1o the respecte credit of the PIMCO Emerging Markess Bond Fund (M) (relered to hersin as an " Aogquired Fund(s)™) Ay assets so applied wall be beld w such
Acpired Fund(s) as o recemved directly. Whese assets are so applied, the Aogueed Fund(sh will recond the issue of units 1o the relesant Acguaring Fund at the tssue price
per unil of such units and will repurchase such units at the repunchase price per unit of swch units at the time of repurchase.

Ratios shown in the Finanaal Highlights do nat indlude expenses of the Acquired Fund(sh, See Note 9, Fees and Experses, for Burther information regarding fund fees,
5 applicable

[b] Securities Transactions and Invesiment lnsoma Secunties iransactions ace recarded as of the rade date for fnancial reporting purposes. Securibes purchased or
sold on a when-issued o delayed-delieny basis may be settled beyond a standard settlement penod tor the secunty after the trade date. Realzed gains and bosses
fram securities sokd are recoedisd on 1he identified cont basis. Draidend mcome i secorded on 1he ex-daidend date, except certam dridends fram famign secuntiss
whete the et-drndend date may have passed, whach are recoeded a3 soon &8 b Fund is infaimed of the ex-dradend date Interest income, adjuited for the accnetsn of
discounts and amortzation of premiums, is recorded on the aocrual basis from settlement date, with the exception of secunites with a forward startng effective date,
whene interest income & recorded on the actrual basis from eflectve date. For convertiblie securities, premiums atiibatable to the comversion Taatues are not
amorized Esimated tax Habilines on cemain foreign seowites e recorded on an accrual Basts and e reflected a3 companents of anterest income or net change in
unrealred appreciation (deprecation) an imvestments on the Statements of Operations, as approprizte. Tax babdities realized as a result of such secunity sales are
meflected 25 3 component of net realized gaim (kess) on investrwents an the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and losses on mostgage-related and other
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asset-backed securities, if any, e recorded a5 components of imenest income
on the Statements of Operations. Debt cbligatians may be placed on nga-
aceneat stabus and related intesest income may be reduced by ceasing cunrent
acmals and waiting off interest recefvable when the colection of all or a
porticn of interest has become doubtful based on consstently applied
procedures A debd obligation is reenoved from non-aconaal sabus when the
issuer resumes interest payments of when collectability of inberest is probabde

le} Caxh and Foreign Corresey The Bnancial statements of each Fund are
presenied wsing the currency of the primary economic emironmend in which 1
opérated (the “lunctional cutrency” ) The functional catrency Sor each of the
Funds is fisted in the below table

Thee marked valoes of forsign secunties, oxnency holdngs and other assets
and liabilities ace translated o each Fund s functional cutrency barsed an the
current enchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of securities
and income and expense it denominated in foreign cureencies, if any, ae
transtated into each Fund's respective funcional oemency at the eahange
rane in effect on the transaction date The Funds do not separately repon the
effects of changes in boreign exchange rates fram changes in market prices on
secuities held Such changes are included inmet reaized and net changes in
unreaized gain oe loss from envestments an the Statements of Opesations

The Funds may imvest in foreign currency dencminated seowities and may
engage in foreign curmency ransactions either on a spot [cash) basis at the
rat prevailing in the curnendy emchange market o the time of thicugh a
Ferweard forengn currency contract. Realized foreign exchange gaind of losses
ansired Trom safes of spot foreign cumendies, curency gains or losses realzed
bebaeen the trade and settlement dates on securities ransactions and the
difference beceeen the recorded amouss of dnidends, inserest, and fotegn
withholding tases and the Bunctional uemency equivalent of the amounts
actually recesved or paid are included in net reafized gain or boss on foceign
Currendy Lrankactons an the Statements of Operations. Met ureeabzed foreign
exchange gains and lodses ansing from changes in foseign exchange rates an
foeeign dencminated assets and labdities other than imvestments in secuities
held at the end of the reporting periad are mchuded in net change in
unrealired appreciation of depreciaton on Rareign currendy assets and
ligbiities on the Statements of Operations

The Wet Asset Value (" HAN") and total reterns of certain Funds {or Classes
theteol, a5 applicabde) are presented in the currency Jor which the NAY is
reported (the “MAY curency”) as detailed in each Fund's Ofleding
Mesmararsdum (the " Olfering Memarandum™). For the putposes af the
preserdation of the NAY and the total neburn in the MAY wrency, the
beginning and ending NAVs ane converted using the perind beginning and
ending exchange rases, nespectively, and dainbutions ane comerted wiing the
exchange rate at the time of the disinbution. See the Tollowing table for the
NAV aumency of each respective Fund

Functionsl
Fundilinsr: WAN Curncy o

PRMCT Bermodds Focmga Low Dlasation Fusd Japanen yn 115 doar
PAMACT) Bermicdla 11 5. Low Diration Fund Jdapanew yen U5 dolar
_PAACI Exrgeg Markats ol Furd LITR e
PSNACTY Emergng Markts Bondl Fund (WS 5. dolor 125 dolar

= 1ED
PRMCT Emergng Markoss Bondl Fund [YenHedgedd | apaneem yen 115 dolar
PAMCT) Emergag Markets Boasdl Fund Il Jazane yen 5. dodar

& JIBRL

= JIDAj

s JINR

R

FordiCle WA Gy
e JITAY] Jopanese yen US dollar
= JiZARI Jaganans yen U5 dollw
[PRCH Eues Tersl Rseom Fund [ [
IPIMCD Real Renam Fuad U5 otk U5 dofla
FIMCD Short-Term Strategy
O ] besiralan dofiar US: dolar
+ LD U5 doltar 115 doller
« Jim St yen U dolte
s JilEN Jepanize yen UE dolla
- S Japanmse yen UES dollw
L] U5 dallar IS dollar

{0 Multieluss Oparutiona Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
righss o the assets of the Fund equal o that of cther Classes of the same
Furd, except for specific assets and gains and losses desgnated 1o a Class
eelating to curmency hedging operatiors. Income. non-Class specfic espenses,
and non-Class specific reakzed and wreealized capital gaing and losses ae
allecated so each Clads of units based on the relasne net assets of each Clags
af the respective Fund Class speaific expemies currently inchade
management, advisory, administratre, agency, and distrbution fees, where
aplicabhe

fa) Distribution Palimy T followeng tatde shows the anoopated fregquency
ol darnbubions for exch Fund Dettirbsutions Tram sack Fund iy e disclaied
and distributed to Unitholders anly upon the autharization of the Manager
which authonzation may be withhekd at the Managers disceetion

Deelared Duily and Paid Manibly:

PMCD Een Tatal Return Fusd

Declared and Paid Monthly:

PIMCD Emasgesg Markets Bond Fund LITR
PIMCD Ervrgeng Maskets Bone Fund [¥en-Hadgedi
PMCT Emerpeng Markets Bond Fund Il
PMCD Bheort- Term Strartngy

= JUP

» JEUSDN
PIMCD Berrmuds Fotege Low Ducation Fund
PIMCD Bermuda U 5. Low Durtion Fund

Declared and Pald Annually:

PN R Return Furd

PNCD Shoet-Term Strategy
« AN
=  Clusoi
o JRY
w 5D

The Masager dors 5ot expect io declare distribwiions with reapeet (s chin Furmd
e Clagees thereod, if applicablel but may, in it diseretion, deslare and pay
s tribations te the Unid 1 any time.

FAMCL: Emesgeng Mashist Bond Fund i1

Distrbatives, o any, will genevally be made from the rebevant Fund's for
Clast’s, if appbcable) nes investment mcome Bn additnon, the Managet may
sutharize the péryien of net realoed capaal ganng pvnlabie {or distrbution
Addiional detnbutiorns may be declared & the Manager deesrs aoproprate
Dizstrbartions paid with respect to amy Fund {or Class thereof, if applcable)
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will reduce the NAY of such Fund (or Class thereol, if appbcable). Az the
discrition of the Unitholders, Cash distrdutcang Trom a Fund {or Class themeed,
if applacablel may either be reimeested in addtional units of a Fund (or Class
thereaf, # applicable) or paid 10 a Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the HAY cumency of the Fund, Each Fund (or Class thereof, if
applicable) may declae further distributions if considered necessaey in arder
to maintain a reascnable level of distributions for a Fund for Class theneal, i
applicabie) In the sent that thene is inadequate net ingome and net cealoed
capital qaing to pay o distribistion of a Fund (ar Class thereal, if sppbcable)
requied by the Offering Memaorandum, the Manager may pay a distributson
consisting of a portion of the capital of sch Fund (or Class therecd, if
applicable). Distrbations not collecied within o years from their due date

wall lapse and will dorrue 1o the benefit of the televant Fund [or Class thereaf,
if applcable]

[f] New Acesuntimg Pronowseaments and Regulatory Updates 1n Mach
2020, the Finandal Accounding Standands Board (" FASE™) sssued an
Awounteng Standands Update (TASU™), ASU 2020-04, which prondes
optanal quidance 1o ease the potental socoanting busden msoosed with
transitaoning away from the Londaon Intesbank Offered Rate {"LIBOR"} and
gther reference rates that ane expecied to be discontined. The ASY is
effectve immedately upon release of the update an March 17, 2000 thicugh
December 31, 2022 A2 thes time, management i evaluatng the implications
of these changes on the finandal statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Ia] Investesent Valuation Policies The price of a Fund's unds s based on
the Fund's NAY. The NAV ol a Find, or each of its Chantes, as appicable, i
deteemined by diiding the total value of pontfolio imestments and other
assats attributable to that Fund or Class, bess any lisbilities, by the total
nursber o units autstanding of that Fund o Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Diary {ars dhepenibied in thee cutrent Offersng Memorandum of the

Tnusth, Fund unets are onfinardy vafued a5 of the dose of teqular rading on
Ihe Mew York Stock Exchange ["NYSE Close”). Information that becomes
kngven to the Funds of thew agents afier the time a5 of which NAY ki been
caloufated on a particular day will not generally be used to retroactvely adjust
te price of a security or the NAY determined earlier that day. Each Fund
reserees the nght 10 change the time a5 of which s MAV & calodated i

the Furd closes eahe

For purposes of calouating NAY, poetiolio seowities and other asets. bor
which matket quotes are readdy availabile are valued at market value Markes
wilue i generally detemined on the basis of affscial closing prices or the Last
reparted sales prices, of if mo sales are reported, based on quotes obitained
from established market makers or prices finduding evalisased prices) suppled
by the Funds” appeeved pricing semvices, quatation repoing systems and
other third-party scurces (togesher, " Pracng Senaces™) The Funds will
normally use pricing data or domestic equity securities recerved shorhy akter
thr WYSE Clode and do nat nomatly take inlo adcount rad 1), Charanti of
setements that take place after the NYSE Close I markes value paicing &
used, a foreign {ron-L S | equty seourity traded on a foreign exchangs o on
more than one exchange is typically valued wsing pricing information from the
exchange considered by FINCO to be the primany exchange A foreign (non-
U.5.) equity security will be valued as of the dose of trading on the foreign
exchange, of the NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close acours before the end of
trading on the foreign exchange. Domestic and fosegn [ron-U S | faed
income securities, non-exchange traded dervatives, and equity opticns are
nermally vabued an the basis of quotes cbtained Brom biokers and dealers or
Fracang Senvices wsineg such data reflecting the prircspal markets Toe those
securities. Prices obtained from Pricing Sesvices may be based on, among
other things, dormation provided by market makers or estimates of market

values cbtained from yield data relating 1o mvestments or seoutities with
b chasacsemstes. Certain fed income securties purthdsd o0 3
defaped-delvery basts are marked ta marke daily until sethement o the
ferwaed settlement date. Exchange-traded options, exoept equity opticrs,
futures and options on Tutunes are vaiued a1 the sefthement price determined
by the relecant exchange, quotes obtaned fram a quatation reparting system,
established market makers or pricing senvices. Swap agreements are valued
an the basis of market-based prices supphied by Pricing Services o quaies
clstaired from brokess and deglers. & Fund's imsettments in cpen-end
management investment companees, ather than enchange-traded funds
{"ETFs™), are valued at the MAWS of such imwesiments

H a Foreign [non-U. 5.3 equity secunty’s waluse has matesially changed after the
chose of the securty's primary axchange oo princpal market but befare the
MYSE Close, the seurity may be walued a1 Rar valiee based on procedures
ettablished and approved by thie Manager Foceign (pan-40 5 ) equety
securties that do not trade when the NYSE & open are aloo valsed a1 fae
value, With respect to borsign (non-L1.5 ) equity securities, a Fund may
deteirine the Lar value of imsestments based on infamation provided by
Pricing Senvices and ether thind-party vendars, which may recommend fas
value or adjustments with relerence 1o other securities, indices or assets In
oondcen ™ wherthes fair valisaton is requingd and in ditermining Lau

valued, & Fund may, Benondg athes thengs, cansider significam events (which
may be considered 1o clude changes in the walue of U5 securities or
securities indices) that oocur after the close of the celevant market and befoe
the MYSE Clode A Fund iy whkze madeling took paowmded Iy I||||d-p.'rl'|-
vendoes to determine fair walues of foreign (non-L1 5 ) securities, For these
purposes, any mosement in the applcable mherence index or imstrument

1" Béstr tuqi,'-.-f':lb-r'.‘.vw'l he aetnr clode ol the .'.(:lph:'.ﬂ‘.ll:' !"t!:P:{Jn kil
and the WYSE Chese may be deemed 1o be a significam event, prompaing the
application af the pricing moded {etfectively resulting in daily far

valuations), Foreign exchanges may permai trading = Toregn [rondl 5 )
equity securdbes on diys when the Trust i not open for business, which may
eesult in a Fund's portholio investments. being affected when Unitholdess are
unable ta by o sell uts

Seniof secured Roating rabe koars for which an acive secondary market exsts
1 a teliable degree will be valued a1 the mean of the last avalable bidlask
puites i the matket Sor such koans, as provided by 2 Pricing Senvice. Senion
Secuied |h.1:."-q ez boand bar whech an actee secondaty markel 3o nod
st 10 a reliabde degree will be walued at Fair value, which is intended to
apprenimate market value: Invaluing a sensor secured Tloating rage loan at
Tarvalue, the Tacions conmdéred may include, but 2 not limied 5o, the
Tollowang: (2} the credtwanthiness of the bormower and any stermediate
partbiopants, [b) the tenms of the loan, {c) recent prices in the market for
semiad lpans, o any, and (dh recent prices ; the market Sar vk ruments of
samibar quality, rate, period wl next inberer sate resel &nd matunty

Irrvestments valued in currences other than the functional owrenty

af a Fund are converted 1o the Tunictional currency using exthange rates
chiaired fiom Fricing Senoes. As a result, the value of such moestments and,
in tuen, the NAY of the Furd's ursts may be affected by changes in the value
of curmencies in relation to the functional currency. The value of imvestments
waded in I'qn'agn markets of derammnated i curtenoesd other than

the Functional currency may be affected siynificantly oo a day that the Trust s
nat apen for business. As a result, to the extent that a Fund holds foreign
{nen-Ll S Y imeestments. the walue of thase maestments miry change a times
whee you cannod puchase, tedeem oo exchange wats and the value of such
irvestments will be reflected in the Fund's next caboulated MAY

Tevairnenls for which ket quilties of ddkel-baged valualoes ane fol
eeadily available are valued o Far value 35 determined in good fath by
thie Manager or pevsces acting at their dimction. The Manager has adopted
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mathods dor valuing securities and other assets in ciroumstances wherne
marked quotis ang nat feadily peaiflabde, and has delegated o PIMCO the
respansibility for applying the far valuation methods In the event that market
quetes of. market based valuations are not readily availsble, and the securty
of asset cannol be valued pursuans to a Manager approved valuation
method, the valee of the securty of Zset will be deteemined in good fath by
the Valuation Committee: Market quotes are considened not readily available
in arumitances wheee theve is an abeence of curnent or reliable markes-
based data fe g, wade informamion, Badlask infarmation, indecative sarket
quotations {"Broker Quotes”), Pricing Senvices' prices), indudng whe
evenis pocur after the dose of the retevans market, but prior 1o the NYSE
Close, that matersally affect the values of the Furd's secuntes of 36t In
addition, market quates ae considered not readdy available when, due 1o
extracedinary orcumstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
secufines trade do not open lor trading foe the ennre day sod no ather
markeq prices are avarlable The Manager is responshie for monitading
significant events that may matenially atfect the values o the Fund's secunities
of assets and for determaning whether the value of the applicable secunties or
assets should be reevaluated in light of such significant events

‘When a Fund uses Lai valuation to determine the vafise of a portiolie seowity
of othet asset for o qf-;.'l-fnl.lllr.\-].'::. MAY, such mrvesbments will not
be praced on the basa of quates from the primary maket in which they ae
traded, but rather may be priced by anather method that the Manager o
persans. acting at thes direction believe reflects bar value Fair valuation may
i jubpectned dedeimingtiong about the valoe ol & sicundy, Winhe

the Teust's poficy is intended to resuit in 3 caboulaton of a Fund's MAV that
Fairty reffects security values as of the time of priang, the Trust canmat ensure
that e vaboes determined by the Manager of pidions acting af their
direction would acowately 1eflect the price that a Fund could obtain for a
security if it were to dispose of that seourity as of the time of pricing {for
stance, in 8 Jorced or distteised £a0) The prices ised by a Fund may dfler
Tram the walue that would be reabzed i the securities wene soid

[b] Fair Value Hisrarchy U5 GAAP describes fair value as the price that
 Fund would receve 1o sell an asset or pay to transher a liabikty in an onderly
transaction between marked particspants at 1he meadunement date It
establibes a Tar value heeraechy that prioftzes inputs to valuation methods
and requires disclosure of the far valee hierarchy, separately for each majo
categony of assets and liabilties, that seqregates fairvalue measusements into
leveds (Lived 1, 2, or 3} The inputs of methodelogy wed Tor valiing securities
are pot pecessanly an indication of the risks associated with imsesting in these
securities. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are defined as foliows

# Lenel 1—0uoted fpreces in B maket or q'x'.f'.:lr.qe-ﬂm whenineal st
and liahilitles,

= Level P=="Sigreticant other observable inputs, which may indude, but ae
fiod limited to, quoted prces bor samilie assets or habiites m markets that ace
actie, quoted prices for sdentical oe similar assets or liabilibes in markets that
are nat active, inputs cther than guated prices that are observable for the
asdets of babalitei Ciuch i inbesE 1a%es. weld cutves, volathmis, pedpiyment
sngady, bogs severines, oedit isks and defaudy raes) or other market
cofroborated inguts

* Level 3—Sigrificant unobservable inputs based on the best information
womlable in the orumdtances, 10 1he sxtenl ahdenable inputs are fat
avalable, which may include assemptions made by the Manager or persoes
acting at their direction that aie used n determining the fair walue of
HrAEAmen e

In accordance with the requinensents of U S, GAAP, the amownts of wansiers
inand out of Level 3, & maberial, are disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Imaetmins far aackh mespecineg Fund

Foe Fair vahaations using significant unobservable inputs, U 5 GAAP requdres
o cechosie randfens o and out of Level 3 of the Fair value herachy and
purchases and msves of Leved 3 assets and liabilities during the pencd
Additionally, US. GAAP requires quantitative information regarding the
sgnificant uncbservable nputs used in the deserminasion of fair value of
assets of liabiliies categerzed as Leved 3 i the Far valoe hierarchy. In
acooedance with the sequirements of L 5. GAAP, a fair value hieranchy, and i
eatenia, details of significant wnobsenvable inputs, have been induded n the
Maotes 1o Schedule of vestments for each segpecte Fund

e} Waluation Technigues and the Fair Value Hisrarchy

Lavel 1 and Lavel 2 irading assais snd trading liabilities, at lsir valos The
wvaluation methods (or ™ techmiques” ) and sigrabcant inputs used in
detarmareng the Tair values of porifalo securnies of ather assets and habilioes
categorized as Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Fixed incomse securities including corporate, convertible and municipal bonds
and notes, U3 gowernment e, U5 wedmury chigations, Sowetesgn
Baues, bank baans, corvertible prefered securies and non-U 5. bands are
nomeally valwed on the basis of quotes obtamed from brokers and dealers ar
Pricing Serviocs that we bioker-dealer quatations, reported Srades or
valuabon estirmates feom thedr internal pricing models. The Pricing Sennices
imtermal models use inputs that are observabile such as isswer details, nterest
rates, yield ourves, prepayment speeds, oredit nsksispreads, default rates and
quobed pices Tor similar ety Securites that use amilar valuatan
techracues and inputs a5 desoribed above are categorized as Level I of the
{air vakue hlrlar{h]'

Frooed i Secunties purchased on i delayed-delneny basis o a5 a
repurchase commitment in a sale-buyback trarsacton are marked to markey
daily untd settiement at the forward settlement date and e categorzed as
Ll 7 af the fair walue batrandy

Mertgage-relaed and asset-backed secuntes are usoally msued 2 separate
tranches, or dlasses, of securities within each deal These secunties are also
roimaly walued by Precing Sennces that use broloed-deafer quetations,
eporied rade of valuation estmates from ther intemal peicing madels. The
pricing madels for these seoubes wsually oonsider tranche-ley L

cument market data, estimated cash flows and market-based yield spreads for

exch tranche, and incorparate deal collatersl perfarmance, as availabde
Mertgage-related and assel-backed secunties that use smdar waluation
techriques and inputs a5 described above are categoried as Level 2 of the
{air value hietan toy

Cammon siocks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and financal dervative
irstruments, such as futwes contracts, nghts and wamants, or oplions on
fututes that are traded on 4 rational seourities exnchange, aig itated o the
Lt reponed sale of serlesment price on the day of valwation Te the extent
these securities ane actively traded and vatuation adjustments ase not applied
they are categorned as Level 1 of the Tair value higraschy

Ieveesaments valued (denominaced) in currendies other than the funcoonad
currendy of a Fund are comverted o the functional umency using exchange
rabes {owmendy spot and fonward rates] cbtained om Priang Serdces. As a
eesult, the WAY of & Fund's urezs may be affected by changes in the walue of
curendes in relation 1o the funchenal currency. The value of secunities fraded
in {oregn markeds or denominated in curmencies ceher than the fanctional
curtency may be affected sigraficanty on & dirg that the Trust 5 not apen for
business. Valuation adjustments may be aoplied to cemain securities that ane
solely traded on a Toresgn exchange to-account Tor the market movemen
between the close of the boreign market and the NYSE Close. Thete securities
are vahued using Pricing Sendces that corsides the cosrelation of the rading
pattems ol the foeeign security to the intraday trading i the U S markets for
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imeestments. Securities wing these valuation adjustments ae categored as
Leved 2 o thee Taar varkue hietarchy, Prefecred securities and other equities
traded cn inacthe markets of vahsed by reference 1o smilar instrumsents are
abso categorized as Level 7 of the fair value hierardwy

Equity-briced secunts an valued by 'rl'merr:un] ehie Ll miparted Lie of
settlement price of the nked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange adjustments are applied to the last reparted price to
goerer the bnked (-].I-I':,"‘\. trading curency 1o the conbract s seitling Curtengy
These imetments ane categoeized i Level 2 of the far valoe beerarchy

Imvestmends in registerad open-end imvestment companies {other than ETFs)
waill bee vl ued based upon the MAVs ol such imvestments and ane categonzed
as Leel 1 of the fair value hiersechy Imvestments in unfegrsteted open-end
imeestment companies wall be caloulated based upon the WAYs of such
imvestments and are considered Level 1 provided that the NAWS ane
obiecvable, caloylabed dady and gee the valye at whach both potchases and
salies will be conducted

Valuation adjosiments may be apphed 50 cevtain exchange traded hutunes and
eptions to accound for markel mevement between the exchange settlement
and the NYSE close These secunties are valued wsing quotes obtained from a
quctation reposting Sysiem, established marker makers or pricng sendces
Faangial dermeatnees using these valuation adurtiments ahe {.:lm;uel.'m‘.’ E
Lewved 2 of thee fasr varlue hissarchy,

Equity exchange-iraded options and owver the counter financal derrvative
instruments, such s fonward foreign cunency contracts and options contracts,
diree their walue Fiom underying asget proes, indices, nelenence fates, and
other inpauts or a combination of these factors. These contracts ate noemally
walsed on the basis of quotes cbiained from a quotation reporting system,
eqtabkabid madker makert of Fiicing ql.'l\"ll:l:‘-i[ll&l'll.]:"r determined a af the
WYSE Cherse] Depending on the product and the teems of the transaction,
fnancial derivative instruments can be valued by Priang Senvices using a
senes of tec hniquis, .Tluqu wmglation phicing models. The pricing et
i inpins thal afe obdened fram actroely quabed markets such a5 quated
prces, issuer details, indices, bidfask spreads, interest rates, implied
woratilties, yield curves, dnadends and exchange rates Finanoal demvative
instisments that wse similar valuation techeiques and mputs a5 described
above are categorzed as Level 2 of the fair value herardny

Centrally cleared vandpes and over the counter swaps detve their value fom
underiying el prices, indsi, refierence rabes, and oghes npls or &
combaination of these factors. They ae valued using a broker-dealer bid
quitation or on market-based prices provided by Pricing Services (normally
deteemnined as of the NYSE Close), Centrally cleaned swags and oves the
comnter swagrs can be vatued by Pricing Serdces using a series of techmigues,
including simulation piceng models The pricing models may wse inputs that
ane oksenced rom actroply quobed markets such as the uwfnl:_lh', index Fan
e [TOI87), UBOR Torsand sate, sntenest rates, vield cunves and cred
spreads. These secunities are categonzed as Level 1 of the fair value hiersdhy

Lewal 3 trading asants and trading Habilities, at faly vabee When a fair
waluation mbthod i dpplied :r,".lil' r-‘ﬂllulfjl.'l That i '.q'lilu..ln'.
unobsenable mputs, imestments wil be priced by a method that

the Manager or persons acting at thesr direction beleve reflects Fair value and
ane categorized a5 Level 3 of the fair value hrarchy The valuation
techmiques and significant inpats wied in determining she fair values of
portiolo assets and liabilities categonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hieraschy
are & (ollows:

Premy pnceng procedures set the base proe of a baed income security and
subsequintly adjust the price proportionally 10 matket value changes of a pre-
debermined security deemed to be comparabde in duration, genevally all %

Treasury or sovereign note based on country of issuance. The base price may
b brokotr -dealtr quote, transecuion pice, of &0 etennal viaue a3 detnod by
anabysis of market data The base price of the secunty may be reset on a
peniodic basis based on the availabikty of market data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Committee. Significant changes in the
unphsensable inputs of the prooy pridng process (the base price) would resull
in direct and proportional chansges in the fair value of the security. Thesa
securities are categqorized a5 Level 3 of the fair value heraichy

H thad-party evaluated vendos pricing is not avallable of not deemed 10 be
indicative of fai value, the Manager may elect to ohiain indicatie market
quatation directly fram the broker dealer or passed-theough brober quote
{nam a thed-par Ty wirndor. In the ewend that {airvabye i bhased upon aanghe
sourced Broker Quote, these securnities are categorzed a5 Level 3 of the far
value hierarchy. Broker Quotes are typically received from established market
paiticpants. Although independinthy recenved, the Manager does rol b
the eanspatendy to view the underyng inputs which suppart the market
quotation Sigrificant changes in the Birober Quote would have direct and
propartianal :I'.arbg{"_. in the Tair value of the Wity

Shart-term debt mstraments (such as commercial paper) having 2 remanng
miaturity of & days o less may be valued at amortized <ost, so long as the
amanized cost value of such sher-term debt s trumenss s approamately the
same a5 the fair value of the strument a5 determined wathout the we of
amaonized cost valuation. These seaeities are cabeqonzed as Level 2 or Level
3 of the L3 value hierarchy depending on the source of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

{a) Dalayed-Dalivery Trassactions Certain Funds may purchase or sell
secunties on a delayed-delivery bate. These raniactiond ievehee &
commitment by a Fund 1o purchase or sall securdties fier a peedetermined prce
or yiehd, wath payment and delivery tabing place beyond the astomany
spltiermen perod, When delaped-delnery trandactines and oulilanding,

& Fund waill dessgnate of receve as collateral hquid assets in an amoun
suffacient to meet the parchase price o respective obligations. When
purchasing a secunty on a delayed-delivery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and nsks of ownership of the secunty, including the sk of price and yield
fluctuatices, and takes such fluchustions into acoount when determining its
AV A Fund may dispose of of renegatiale a delayed-delevery fransaction
after it 15 emered mie, whach may result an & reafed gan or less. When

& Fund has sold a security o a delayed-deliery basis, the Fund does not
particpate in future gains and losses with respest 1o the security

&) Inflation-Indaxed Bonds  Cean Funds may imves! i iedlation-indased
bands Inflaten-indexed bonds are fued incame secunities whese princpal
value 5 persodically adiusted by the tate of inflanion. The interest 1ate on
these bonds is generally fined at ssuance a1 a rate lower than typacal bonds
Creer the fide af an indlaper-indexed Bond, howeer interest will be frnd
bersed on a pincpal value, which is adjusted for inflation. Ary increase of
decreass in the printipal amaunt of an inflatien-indexed bond will be induded
s interest inoome on the Statements of Operations, even though svestors do
ot eecense thedr principal witil matunity. Repayment of the anginal bond
peinapa upon matunity (as adjusted for inflation) is quaranteed in the case ol
Us TIPS Fow Bands that do ot pll:-r..'lr: a similar guaraniee, the adjusted
petincpal value of the bond repad at maturity may be less than the oeginal
paincipa

il Loan Participations, Assipamaats and Originatieas Certain Funds may
rrvest i diect dishd inkipmeen s whech 366 InEgshs In amounts oneed 1
leraders of lending syndicates by corporate. govemmental, of other borowens
A Fund's investmenits in laans may be in the form of participations in loans ar
atsignments of all ar a portion of loans fromn thind parties o imvestments in or
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originations of loans by the Fund. A laan is often adminwstered by a bank or
other bnancial instiuton (the “lender”) that acts a3 agent Tor all holders. The
aigent administers the teems of the ban, as speafied in the lpan agreement
A Fund may invest in multiple senes or tranches of a lpan, which may have
wanyirg terms and cairy defferent assocated risks, When a Fund purchases
assignenesits e lenders it acguires direct tights against the borowers of the
loans. These boans may incude particpations in bridge loans, which are loans
takens out by boarowers bor a short pericd {fypically bews than one year)
pending amangement aof mate parmanent Tinancing theough, for example, the
issuance af bonds, frequently igh yield bonds issued for the purpose of
auguEtions

The types of koans and relared mvestments i which the Funds may imees
inclade, among others, senicr loans, subordinated boans (induding second
liem loans, B-Notes and mezzanine lpans), whole loans, commerdal real
estate and ather comsmercial loans and structured loans A Fund may
oreginate |eans o acquie diect inbenests in baans thicugh primary ban
distributicns andfor n prevate transactons. In the case of subordinated loans,
there miry be significant indebtedness ranking absad of the bosrower's
ohligation to the holder of such a loan, including in the evem of the
boerower's inschenty Merzanine loans ate typically secured by a phedge of
an equity interest m the mongage bainower that dwns the mal estate rathe
than ah iNBeESE ah & MEFGhgE

Imvestments in loans may include unfunded loan comeitments, which ace
contracteal obligations Tor funding, Urdundied baan commitments may enclude
neghang Cradiy facfities, which ay obligate 3 Fund to supply additonal cash
tor the beurower on demand. Unfursded loan commitments represent a future
ocbligation in ful, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
it b utsisned Bry the boerowes. When iresiing & a lzan PETCRA0N,

@ Fund has the night to recénve payments of prncipal, inberest and amy fees ta
which i ts entitled anly rom the lerder selling the kaan agreement and only
upion neceip? of paymenss by the lender from the boriower. A Fund may
recetve a comemitment fee based an the undran poriion ol the underling
line of credit portion o 2 kean In certain aroumstances, a Fund may recene 3
penalty Tee upan the prepayment of a loan by a bomowes. Fees amed o
paid are reconded a5 & companent of ingérest income of inferest pense,
respectively, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
are reflected 25 2 lability on the Statements of Assets and Lisbilities

|d] Martgags:Ralated and Othar AzsatBached Secwrities [ eman Funds may
imvest in morngage-related and other asset-backed seuities that deecty o
indirectly represent a partiapation in, or are seouted by and payable from,
loans on real property. Martgage-related securties are coaated from pools ol
resaderitial of commercal mortgage koans, including mamgage loans made by
sninegs and boan instiutsans, margage bankers, commedoal basks and
others. These secunities provide 3 monthly payment whidh consists ol both
intefest and poncpal Inteest may be Setemundd by Swed o adjustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underkang mongages will affect the prce and
wilatitty of a mortgage-related secunity, and may have the effiect of
1h|:-'|-n'.-r\-q of extendrsg the et duration af the sty nelatoer 1o what
wirs anticapated at the tme of purchese The umely payment of peincapal and
intesest of certain mvomgage-related securities is quaranteed with the full faith
and credit of the U5 Govesnment. Pools created and quaranteed by non-
geeinmental risuers, indude qovsnmend -spongaied copaiatons, may be
supparted by varous farms of insuance of guarantees, but there can be no
assurance that private insurers or guarantors can meet thewr obigations under
the wrsurance polices of quirantes srangemients hamy of the fisks of
imeesting in mongage-related secuntes secured by commernal morgage
loans raflect the eflects of kxcal and other econome: cenditions on real estate
marets, thee ability al senants 10 make lexde paryments, and the ability of a
property to attract and retain tenants These sacurities may be less iquid and

may exhibit greater price wolatdity than ceher fypes of mortgage-related or
other asdet-backed securities. Other asset-hacked securities ane creabed fram
mamy fypes of ssets, includng, but et limited 1o, auls laans, accounts
receivabhe, such as mednt cand recefwabiles and hospital account receivables,
home equity loans, student loars, boat loans, mobile home loans,
ecreational vehucle baans, manulactured howsing loans, roralt beases,
computer lases and syndicated bank loans. The Fund may imvest in amy kavel
of the capital structure of an ssver of mengage-backed or aset-backed
secuiities, incuding the equity or “first leas” tranche

fa} Collateralizad Mortgage Obgatiens [ CN105") are deby obhgatans of a
legad entity that are oollateralimed by whole mortgage leans or private
gt bonds and drded info dadses ChIOs are sructuned snto multiple
clases, often relered 1o a8 “tranches” vath each dass bearing a didferem
stated maturity and ertithed %0 a different schedule for payments of principal
and intevest, mduding prepayments. ChDs may be less bguid and may exdibal
gt prade volatiley than athes Typis of origage-rslated o Ssel-backed
SBCUNTes

) Stripped Mongage-Bschad Secerities ["SNBS7] ae detmvatiee multi-class
manigage seounites SMES ane waally struciured with two chasses that recese
diffarern peoportions of the interest and pancipal dstnbutions an a poal af
mongage aseets. An SMES wall have one dass that vall recerve al of the
interest {the intesest-only or "I0° dass), while the other dlass will recetve the
enftire peincpal (the prindpal-only or “P0° class). Paymenss recerved for 105
are incleded in inferest income on the Statements of Operations, Because m
principal will be recetred at the maturity of an B0, adusiments ane made to
the cost al the Uity an a manthly baies untl matunty. Thise sduniments
ate included im anferet income o the Statements of Operations. Payments
received for Ps are treated as redudctions bo the cost and par value of the
secunties

g Collateralized Dabt Obligations (" C00S") include Collatensdived Bond
Obligatices {*CBOs" ], Collaterakzed Loan ObSgations ("CLOS™) and ether
semilatly structured seowites CBOs and CLOs are types of asset-backed
securities. A CBO is & trust which s backed by a dwversified pool of high sk,
bl errevsterient grade Foed incomie securiies. A CLO 15 & trust typacally
collateralized by a pool of loars, which may inchide, among others, domestic
and foneign: senice secwed loans, senior unsecwed loans, and subordinate
corparate loans, mcluding loands that may be rated below imvestment grade or
equivalent unrated loans The 1sks of an imvestment in a C0O depend largedy
on the type of the cotlateral seasibes and the class of the CDO in which

2 Fond imvests, In additeon 1o the nomsd risks associated with Tooed mcome
secunifies disourised elseathese in thes repart and the Funds” Offiering
Memoeandum {e.q, prepayment risk, ceedit risk, liquidity risk, market nsk,
structural risk, legal risk and interest rate risk {which may be exacerbated if
the inbezest rate paryable on a structured finanamg chamges based on
mulbiples. of charges in inberest rabes or imversely to changes in interest
rates]h, CEOs, CLOs, and cther CDOs cany additional nsks mcluding, but not
Brninesd va (i) the porigi ety that dismrdubos feam collmersd secuinte vall Aot
b adequate to make imerest or other payments, (i} the quality of the
collateral may dechine in value or default, fii) the sk that a Fund may imest
in (B0, CLDs, of other CO0s that are subardinate to othet clisses, and ()
the complex: structure of the secunity may not be fully understood at the time
aof imvestrment and may produce disputes with the isswer or unexpected
vl egils

k] Paymant In-Kimd Secorities  Certain Fundsd may imeist in payment m-kind
secunties {"PIEs"). PiEs may gve the issuee the option at each interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor additional
debit secunties. Those additional debt securities usually have the same terms,
irecluding matursty dertes and interest eates, and associated risks & the
atiginal bands. The daly market quotations of the original bonds may indude
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the accrued interest {referred 10 a5 a “dirty price "} and require a pro rata
.1|:I|||'.:m{"||[1|-:v11 the unrealued appieciation o deprecution on imasiments
tovinterest recedvable on the Statements of Assets and Lisbdites

il Restricted Sacurities Cerman Funds may hold swestments that are subject
ta legal or contractual restrictions on resale These securities may be sold
pircately, but may be required 1o be regritered or exempted from such
regtranion befare being sold to the public. Private placement secunibes xe
generally consadered to be restncted. Disposal of restrcted imvestments may
imechve Bene-consuming regatiatians and wxpensies, and prompd sale al an
acceptable price may be difficult o achesse Retrted investments eld by
the Fureds at May 31, 2021, as applicable, are disdosed i the Motes i
Schedufie of Imvestments

0} Strocturad Motes Cectain Funds may svest in souctured notes and other
refated instrumends, which are privatefy negotiated debt obligations in which
thee prinapal andr of indecest i determined by reference to the perfamance of
2 benchmark assed, manket o infetest rate (an "embedded index”), such a5
selected secunties, an index of securities o specified interest rates, or the
dilfesential perlormance of two assets of markets, swch a3 indiexes eflecting
bomd: Structured iftruments may be rmsued by cosperaboes, incuding
banks, as well as by govemnmental agencies. The terms of sudh seructured
instruments noimsally provide that thear prinapal anddar imerest payments are
1o be adiusted upwards o dowmwards (but cedinanily not below 2ena) to
reflect changes in the embedded index while the structured irstruments are
puistanding. As a fesdt, the wnterest andlor pincpal payments that may be
made on & shuctuned product may vacy widely, depending on ..w.u'lP'.,'a‘l
factors, imdisding the wolatiity of the embedded index and the effect of
thanges in the embedded index on prinopal andfor inberest payments

[kl 1.5, Gewernmant Agancies er Gevernmant:Sponsered Entarprises

Cestam Funds mary imvest in secuntes of U S Govemenent aganoes af
government-sponsored enserprises. U 5. Government seowities are
obligations of and, in certain tases, quaranteed by, the U5, Government, fs
agenced of irdtnementalites Same U5 Government secunities, yudh
Treasuey bells, notes and bonds, and securities quarantesd by the Government
Nagianal Morgage Association {"GNMA™ or "Ginnie Mae”™), are supported
by the full Tartk and eredin of thie U 5, Government athiss, such & thase af
the Federal Home Loan Banls, are supported by the night of the issuer to
borrow from the U 5. Depariment of the Treasury (the "ULS. Treasury”™ ) and
atheds, such o those of the Federal National Morigage Assocation [*FRAMA®
of "Fannie Mae"), ae supponed by the decretonary autharnty of the L5
Gewerrenent 1o purchase the agengy’s obligations. U5, Govesnment securities
iy include revo coupon secunties, which do not distribute interest on a
current bagis and tend 1o be subjet to 8 greater sk than intecest-paying
securities of similar maturities

Gewverrenent-relabed quararioss [Le., not backed by the Tull faith and credit of
the U5 Geverrenent) snclude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mertgage
Corpaoration {"FHLMC" or "Fredide Mac™]. FNALA 15 a government-sporsaned
corpoeation. FRMA purchases comeentional {1 e, not insured or guarantesd by
amy government agency) redential morigage fram a list of spproved
sollerusenioes which indude s1ate and federally chartened sininegs and loen
assoaations, mutual savings banks, commencial banks and credit uricers and
morigage banken Pass-through securities issued by FNMA are guaranieed as
to fimeky payment of principal and intesest by FNRA, but are not backed by
thee: full fasth and credit of the U 5. Govesnment. FHLMC issues Partcipation
Costheates (“PCL" ), which ane pa:.:.-'.l'ml,u]h secuihies, each sipheienting an
undvaded interest im a pool of readential morigages FHLME quarantees the
timely payment of interest and uitimate collection of prindpal, but PCs are mot
backed by the full faith andl credss of the U 5. Government

I bune 2019, FNMA and FHLMC started issuing Undom Mostgage Backed
Secuntes (TUMBS"] in plhace of thew current alferngs of TRA-shoble
secuities (the " Single Security Initiative” ). The Singhe Seowity Initiathe seaks
1 support the overall liquidity of the TRA market and aligns the
charaxteristics of FNMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects shat the Single
Secunity Inibative may have an the market for THA and ather momgage-
backed senusities are uncertain

il;\ll-hm:nq strategies can be used where a Fund seeks to extend the
Expiration of matundy of a podation, such &% a THA wecurity on an underhang
asset, by dosing out the position belore expiration and cpening a new
pasition wath respect to substantially the same anderying asset with a later
expiration dte TRA secunties purchised or sold e reflected an the
Suaterments of Acsets and Lisbibtes a5 an sset of hability, respeaively

] When-Issnad Transactions Certain Funds may purchase or sell securies
on 3 when-wssued basis. These transactions are made conditionally because a
security, #though authonzed, has not yet been issued in the market
Transactions 1o purchase of sell secuntis on 3 when-ridoed hasis invohoe
a-comenitment by a Fund to purchase or sell these securities for a
predetesmined price of yield, with payment and delvery taking place beyond
the customany setthement perod A Fund fay sl when-issued secunbes
bedine they are deltened, which may resull in a realzed gain of loss

{m) Bank Oblgatheas Eank obligatoes inwhich a Fund may wmeest indude
certificates of deposit, bankess” acoaptances, and fixed time depasits
Cornfcates of depowy ane nﬁ;:ll.lhlr certifated igsued Sganst Jurds
depasited en a commercial bank for 2 definite peviod of tree and eamang a
specified refurn. Bankers' atceptances ane negobisble drafts or bills of
ﬂ-:.'h.r.qr'_ normally drian by an importer af exporier o pay fai spealic
mitchandise, which &e “accepted” by a bank, meanang, in efiect, that the
bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on
maturity. Fowed time deposits are bani obligations payable at a stated
maturity date and Beanng irerest af a fixed rate. Fued tene deposits may be
withdrawn on demand by the imeestoe, bat may be subject to early
withdrawal penafties which vary depending upon market conditions and the
Bl sl RN T n,-al'.!m obligaton

5, BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

I'I‘r‘.all.'lw.:lq dischorfunes congan informaticn on the Funds” abilty 1o lend o
bttt et o Scurtlies 0o the extent permitted under the Offiering
Memoeandum, which may be viewed as borowing or fnancing trarsattions
by the Funds. The Bocation of these instrments is descbed below Fora
detailed deserigbon of credit and counterpary eisks that can be assonated
with boerowings and other financing transactions, please see Mote 7,
Principal and Cther Risks

fa) Repurchase Agreements Cestan Funds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Under the terms of a typical repurchase agreement,

a Fund purchases an underbying debt chigation (collaterd]) subject to an
chligaticn of the selles to repurchase, and 3 Fund to resell, the dhligation at
an sgresd-upon pice and teme In a0 open matunty repuichase agresmen,
there is na pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
teminated by the Fund or counterpaety at any time. The market valoe of the
collateral must be equal to or exceed the tatal amaount of the repuichase
obbgations, including interest Repurchase agreements, including actrued
interesy, are nduded on the Statements of Assets and Lisbiities Interest
eamned is recorded 3 a component of inberest moome on the Statements of
Operations. bn penods of ncreased demand for collateral, a Fund may pay a
{ee for receipt of collateral, which may result in interest expense to the Fund
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[b] Rwwwree Repurchass Agraaments Cermain Funds may enter into reverse
repurchase ageements. In 3 reverse repurchase agreement. & Fund delivers a
secutity in exchange for cach 1o a financial ssbituton, the courterpasty, with
a simuftaneous ayeement 1o repurchase the same o substantiafly the same
security at an agreed upon price and date. In an open mabuity reverse
repurchin agresmant, thige 1§ na pm-l,lrlﬂrnmwl repurchase date a0 thie
agreement can be teeminated by the Fund oo counterparty at any time:

A Fund is entithed 1o receive principal and intenest payments, i any, made on
the security delwernd o the courtemasty durng the term of the agmement
Cash recerosd m exchange Tor securines delwered plus aconoed inenes
paymenis 1 be made by a Fund to counterparties ame reflected a5 a lidbdity
on the Statements of Assets and Lishilites. Inberest payments made by a Fund
1o couniepartees ate recorded a4 & component of intenest expense on the
Siatements of Operatans. In peneds of increased demand for the securrty,

a Fund may recenve 3 fee for use of the security by the counterparty, which
iy fesull an nteres! ndome 0 .a Fund. & Fund will segieqate assety
determined to be liquid by PIMCO or willl atherwise cover its cbhgabons
under reverse repurchase agreements

k) Sale-Buybacks Ceitan Funds may enter inta inasing tramactions
refierred 1o a6 “sabe-buybacks” A sale-buyback findncng rranssction consiss
of a sale of a security by a Fund o a financial institution, the countenparty,
with a simultanecus agreement to repurchase the same or substanbally the
same secunity at an agreed-upon preoe and date. A Fund & not entitied 1o
receive prinogal and intetest payments, if amy, made on the seaity sold 1o
the counterparty during the term of the agreement. The agreed-upon
proceeds far secuntiod 1o be epurchased by a Fund ane rellected a5 a I|.L:||I7:,-
on the Statements of Ascets and Laabdibes & Fund wall iecogmze net ndome
represented by the price differential besween the price recenved foe the
transberred securfy and the agreed-upon repurchase peice. This & commonly
refietred 10 e the ‘price deop” A price drog consists of (1) the Toregone inteest
and inflaticnary income adjustments, il any, aFund would have othersise
receiyed had the security not been sold and (i) the negotiated finanang temms
bevween @ Fund and counterparty. Fodegons imenest and |r.":.r||u-.r|r|manm
adjustments, if any, are recorded a5 components af inberest income an the
Statements of Operations. Interest payments based upon negotiated inancing
teriivs rade by 3 Fund 10 countipanies are recorded 25 a component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. In penods of ncreased
demand lor the secunty, a Fund may recefve a fee for use of the secunity by
tree counterparty, which may result in imenest income 1o 2 Fund. A Fund wall
saqregale asets determined to be liquid by PINCO oe wall athersnse cover its
obligations under sale-buyback ransactions

|d} Short Sabes  Certain Funds may enter anto short sales transachans. Sheet
sales are tramsactions in which the Fund sells a seoanty that it may not own
A Fund may make shoot sales of sequrities to i} offser potential dedines n
long positions in similar secunties, (i) 1o increase the Aexibility of the Fund,
{iith For investmaent return, (v & part of a risk arbitrage strateqy. and (vl =
part of its everall partlolio mansgement strategies imabing the e of
dervatve instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may borow
the security sold shoet and delrer it to the countemparty. The Fund wall
ordinarily hare to pay 4 {0 premagm o bar ow 3 secunty and b obligated
b repay the lender of the secunty amy dividend or interest that accnses on the
sanurty during the petiod of the loan. Seurities soid in short sale transactans
and the drnedend o inlene] payatile on sach secuntes, o any, afe rellected o
payabie for shon sales on the Staterments of Assets and Liabikties. Short sales
exporse thee Fund to the risk thiat it 'will be requined to cower its short pesition
at 2 time when the secunty or other asset has appreaated in value, thun
resaiting in beesies 0o the Fund & short sabe 1 " st the box™ if

tie Furd holds in its portfolio o has the rght o aoquire the seowity sold
shiort, or sequrities identical 1o the security sold short, at no additional oost

A Fund will be subgect to additional resks 1o the extent thas it endgages in shert

sates that are nat " against the bax * A Fund's loss on a shert sale could
thearetically be unlimited in cases where the Fund i unable, Tor whateser
reason, 1o clase put its short pasition

B, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The following dischosures contain infeematicen on bow and wivy the Fumds use
finandal derrratiee instruments and how financial dermative nstruments
aflect the Funds’ Snancial pesition, resulls of cperations and cash fows. The
Iacation and Lar value amounts of thess instruments on the Statements af
Assets and Lishdites and the net realized gain (ossh and net change in
wniealized apprecatian (depeeciation] on the Statements of Dperations, each
categarized by type of inancial decrvateve conract and relased nisk exposioe,
are included in a table im 1he Mates 1o Schedule of Imestments. The finanoal
desative instraments outstanding as of peviod end and the amounts of net
realged gain (orss) and net change in unrealied appreciation [depeeaation]
on financial demvatve irstruments during the period, s disdoced in the
Mobes to Schedule of kvestments, serve as indicators of the volume of
financial derrrateee actnaty fod the Funds

la) Forward Forsign Curmaney Comtracts Certan Funds may engage in
foravaed Fareign cutrency contracs in connection with satthng planned
purchases or sales of sequrities, o hedge the qumency exposise assoniated
wath some of 3l of 8 Fund's Scurites of % r.\;rh;ﬂ a1 et Sirategy A
foravaed Foreign currency contract i a0 agreement bebwesn Two parties ba buy
and sell 8 aurency at 8 set price on a futwre date The market walue of 2
{orwaed Fareign currency contract fluctuates with changes in Teeeign cumency
exchangt 1abis Forwand rD'I:‘1.'_|II cuirincy conliacts dee marked 16 markel
daily, and the change invalue i recorded by a Fund as an unealized gain o
forss. Reealiized gains or losses are equal to the difference between the value of
the conteacs at the tene i was opentd and the valiss i the tme ifwag chosed
and ane recorded upen deliery or recept of the curency. These conracts
ey imvotoe market risk im encess of the ureealized gain o loss reflected on
the Statements of Assels and Liabdites In addimon, a Fund could be expoad
1o ersk i thee counteipames e prabie 1o meed the terms of the cant:acts o il
the value of the oumency changes uniavorably 1o the fundional currengy. To
miitigate such risk, cash or securines may be exchanged & collateral pursuant
10 the teems of the underying contracts

Certain Fumds, hawing a hedged Class, may abso enter inta foeward forsign
curtency contracts designed ta offset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
ardier 0o bearve the Bedged Cliss with an experture 1o cutdencies. other than the
functicnal cumency. These can be ne guarantee that these Class spedfic
forwaed foreign currency contracts will be successhul

) Futnres Comtraets  Certain Fundh may enter into fulures contracts. A
futuses conbract is an agreement 1o buy or sell @ secunty of ather et for a
561 price o a future date and is raded on an exchange. A Fund may wse
futures contracts to manage s exposure b the secuntezs markets of 1o
mwemlris in indensst s and cumency vales. The primasy risks associated
with the use of futures contracts are the imperfect comedation between the
chanige in market value of the secunties held by a Fund and the prices of
Tutuses contracts and the potsbility ol an dliquid maket Futunes contracts
ate valued hased upon their quoted dady serfament prces. Upan entesing
o a futures contrac, a Fund is required to deposit with its futyres broker an
amsunt of cash, U5 Govermment and Agency Obfigatians, o select seveeign
debt, im socoedance with the initial MANGIN (equEeEmEnts ol whae brokoed o
exchange Futures contracts are marked to market daily and based on such
mawerments in the price of the conbracts, an appropriate payable or receivable
for the change in value may be posted or collected by the Fund (" Futures
Variation Mangin® ). Futures Variation Margins, if any, are discosed within
centrally deaned financial devivative instrumaents on the Slatemsents of Assets
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and Lidbilities. Gains or lovses are recognized but not considered reakzed until
thr congracts exping oo code. Fulunes coniracts imadlv, 10 varying degiees

risk of loss im excess of the Futures Vanation Mangn induded within
exchange traded or centraly cleared finandial derhative instruments on the
Statements ol Assets and Lishilines

le) Optinars Contracts  Certinn Fuss may woibé of plechine apborm 1o
enhance fehams of B hedge an eusting powtion of future inesment Certan
Funds may wiite all and put options on secwities and finanaial denmvative
insbruments. Chiey own o i witch thesy sy Bl Wn ling put options Tends
to increase a Fund's exposize to the undeghying snsteument. Writing cal
opbions tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the underdying instnament
‘When a Fund writes a call or put, an amount equal to the premium resered is
recaided and subsequently marked 1o masket to reflect the cutrent value of
the oo waitten. These amounts are induded on the Statements of Assets
and Ligkilities. Fremiums. received Erom writing options which expire are
trisated i redded Giend Prémaots redesed feqm g opleen which e
exercised of dosed ate added 1o the proceeds or ofisat against amounts pasd
on the underlying futures, swap, secuity or cumendy transaction 1o detedmine
the reabzed gan of lods Cemtisn oftond may be whilen with premiums 1o be
determined on a future date. The peemiums for these options ace based upan
implied wolatibty pasameters a2 speafed terms. A Fund as awnter of an
ophion has no control gwed whethis the underrng instiument may be sold
{"call”) or puschased {"put”™) and & 2 result beacs thee market sk of an
unfavorable change m the price of the instrument underying the weitten
ophion. There is the risk a Fund may not be able o enter into a diosng
transaction because of an (liqud market

Cestan Funds may also purchase put and call options. Purchasing call options
tends 10 ndreate 3 Fund s exposure to the underhying mstrument. Puschasing
pul optons sends to decrease a Fund's expoiure 1o the undiedying instnement
A Fund pays a premium which is included a5 an aeet on the Statements of
Assabs and Ligbilities and subsequently marked to market to reflect the
current value ol the opbon. Premiums pasd Tor purchasing aptions which
expire are treated as redized bosses. Cenain cptions may be purchased with
premiums. o be determined on a future date. The premiums for these optirs
ane bumed upin impled wolatibty paramaters '\-;,!Dtl:l-m‘. feird The ek
assocated with purchasing put and call options i keated o the premium
paid Fremiums paid for puschasing options whidh are exercsed o dosed ane
added 10 the ameunts paid or offset against the proceeds on the wderhang
imvestment transaction to datermine the realized gain of loss when the
umderksing trarsaction is executed

Cowdit Dalault Swaptions Certain Funds may write o purchase credit
diefats swapbans to hedge eposure 10 the credit ik of an investment
watheun mking a commutment 1o the ahderkang instrument. A credit default
Swia Bon i an option 10 sell oo buy credit protection to & specific relerence by
entering inta a pre-defined svap agreement by some specilied date in the
Tuture

Foreign Corresey Options Cestmn Funds may waite ar purchase leeeign
cusrency options 1o be used as a short or long hedge against possible
wariations in foeeign exchange rates oo S0 gain exposure to foreign ousmencies

Inflation-Capped Dptioes Cortan Funds may warte of purchase infation-
capped optians to enhance tetums of Bor hedging oppormunines The purpase
af purchasing inflation-capped optaons is i protect a Fund from inflation
erowan ahove a Cerlain rabe on a given naticnal exposue. A& Sloor can be
i 10 geve downgide peolaction 10 imnestmsnty in nflaon-linked products

Intnrest Rate-Cappad Dptions  Cestan Funds fmay winle of purchase infeiesr
rate-capped options 1o enhance returns of for hedging oppestunities. The
purpose of purchasing interest rabe-capped aptions is bo protect a Fund froem

Tloating rate visk above a certain rabe on a gven notional exposure. & floor
can b uiid 10 gre dowrrade protechion B imnesiments i inberest rate hnked
paoducts

Interest Rats Swaptions Certain Funds may waite of puschase interest rate
swaphions which are optans to enber into a pre-defined saap agreement or
1o shormen, extend, cancsl of othemnwise mod ‘.'_-'.]r EATRING SaiD dgredimen],
by semie specified date in the Tuture The weiter of the swaption becames the
countemarty to the swap il the buyer emercises. The interest 1ate swapbon
agreement will specify whesher the buyer of the seaption will be a faed-rase
st of & fined-cate payst upon enstcie

Optisns an Exchange- Traded Futures Comtracts  Certain Funds may wiie or
purchase opbions on exchange-traded fTutures contracts (" Futwres Option”) to
Mdl;t' an exsting positon of futare imvetimens, bt ipicyulative puiposes o 10
manage exposure 1o mket movements. A Fusures Option 15 an cplion
condract in which the underying instrument is a single fubures contract

Optieas on Securities Ceran Funds may wnte or purchase eplions an
secuntied 10 enhance refuns of 1o hqﬂ'ﬁm{ul:.l:nq peesan of futune
ienvestenisnl. An opEion on & security uses 8 spevdied secunity a8 the undering
irestrument for the apton contract

W) Swap Agresments Cerian Funds may imvest in swap agresments. Swap
agreements are bdatesally negotiated agreements between a Fund and a
courierparty o exchange of swap imesment cash Tlows, asets, Toregn
cumendcies of marketdnied retums at speafied, future intenvals. Swap
agreements may be pravately negatiated in the OTC market or may be cleased
through & thind party, bnenm a3 & central counteiparty of devatvis cleanng
olgacezation | ceniraly cleated swapa”) A Fund may enter sito assel, credit
delault, cross-cumency, interest rate, tolal retum, variance and ather forms ol
FEap agreemants [0 Manage it expasune 1o Credit, erendy, mlenes rate,
commedity, equity and inflation risk In connection wath these ajeeements,
secunties or cash may be identified as collateral or maegin in accordance with
the tems of the MEPRCInG S agréemenis 1o provice Joets of water and
et in the event of default o bankiuptoginsobency

Cenirally deared swaps are marked to market daily based upon valuations as
detemmined from the underying contract o n aocedance with the
requiremsnits af the central counterparty of dermatives deanng erganizatan
Changes in marke value, if any, are reflecied as a component of net change
in unrealized appreciation (deprecation) on the Statements of Operations
Dushy changes in valuation of centrally deaned swaps | Swep Vanaton
Margin®), if any, are duclosed within centrally cleased finarcial desative
imstruments on the Statements of Assets aned Liabilities. OTC swap payments
eceived af pand at the beginning of the messurement petiod ae included on
the Statements of Assets and Lishilites and represent premivens paid of
recerved upon entenng into the swap agreement 1o compensate for
diflerences between the stated terms of the swap agreement and prevailmg
matket conditons (credin spreads, cumendy enchandge rates, interest tabés, and
wther relevant factors). Upfromt premiums receded (pad) are initially recordied
a5 liakelities (assets) and subsequently marked o markes to reflecs the curment
ilue of the pwap These uplront premmms. e recorded & realized gairs o
foesses o the Statements of Operations upon bermination or maturity of the
seap. A liquidation payment recetved cr made at the termination of the swap
w tecorded & realized gain o less on the Statements of Operasians. Ne
peniodic payments recened or paid by a Fund ase indudied as pan of realzed
gaines or bosses on the Statermerts of Operabicrs

For purposes ol apphang certain of a Fund's smaetment palicies and
tedlnEhadng, Seap Syléements, Ik itboty clsfraaitiis ifiliuimentd, My b
valued by a Fund a1 market valee, notional value or hall exposuse value fn the
case of a credi defauft swap, m apphying cenain of the Fund's investment
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policies and restrictions, The Fund vall value the credit delault swap at its
nogianal valoe of 15 hdl eapsune walug (10, the Sum of the nobcna amount
Ter thee coevdract plus the market value), but may value the credit default swap
at market value for purposes of applying certain of the Fund's other
imeestment policies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value credit
defaidy swaps at fufl exposre value for purpases of the Fund's credit quality
guidefines. (if any) because such value in general better reflects the Fund's
aciual eqonamis expasune dunng the term ol the cedn default swap
agréement Ag 2 resuiy 3 Fund may, 2 e, hive notonal exposce ba an
asset class (before netting) that is greater or lesser than the stabed fimit or
restiction nabed in the Fund's Oflering Memosandum In this contexl, bath
the nabional amoung and the market valipe may be pasitive of negatnae
depending on whether the Fund is selling or buying protection through the
credit default swap. The manner in which certamn sequrities of othes
instiuments a0 valued by the Fund for puspeses ol spphing imvesiment
policies and restrictions may difier from the mannes in which those
imeestments are valued by other types of investors. Entenng inte swap
aqreermienas imvolaes, 1o varying degress, olements of interest, credit, market
and documentanion nsk in excess of the amouns recogaized on the
Statements of Assets and Liabiliies. Such ks imvobve the possibility that
st will B 7 ||:||,|.~'J market for these agriemints, tha? the countepaty b
e agreements may delault an its obligation 1o perfiarm of deagies a3 to the
meaning of conteactual termns in the agreements and that there may be
unfaveeadle changes in interest rates o the values of the asset upen which
the Swvap 15 baed

A Fund's maximum nisk of loss from counterparty cedit tisk is the discounted
net value of the cash fows to be receved Trom the counterparty over the
cortracts remarang e bo the extent that amount o poditwe. The ek muy
be mitegated by having a master nething arangement betwesn a Fund and
the counterparty and by the pesting of coflateral to a Fund to cover a Fund's
expirsUng B0 T oounbemarty

T the extent a Fund has a policy to limit the net amount owed &0 or ta be
received from a sngle counmiempaty under esting swap agreements, sudh
liemiitation ooy applies to counteparties 1o OTC swaps and does not apply 1o
cengrally cleaed swaps whete the countensarty i a ointral counteqparty of
dervatves cleaning oiganzaticn

Cradit Dofault Swap Agroements CeLan Fonds may &0er mio

credit defauh swaps on colporate, baan, soversign, U S manicipal or U5
Treasury issues bo provide 3 measare of protechion against defauls of the
toguers (e, 10 recduce rsk wehiere & Fund dems o hadd exdodune Do the
referenced obbgation) of 1o take an actiee loag of short pasition with nedpect
1o the Bkellood of a partioular ssuwers default Credit default swap
agreements irvotie one party mating a stream of payments (relered to as
the buyer of peotecton) to ancther party [the seller of pratecion) i exchange
fer the night to receive a specified eetun in the event that the referenced
entity, cbligation of index, as spedilied in the swap agreement, undengoes a
certain credit event A 3 feller of pratection on credit defaull swap
aqresments, a Fund will generally recenve Trom the buyer of protection a fzed
rate of impome throughoot the term of the swap provided that there is no
cridit event As e seller, 3 Fund weuld eflecely add leverage 1o 1t
portialio because, in additaan to % vatad rel assess, the Fund would be
subject to imvesiment exposute on the notional amount of the swap

IF o Fussd i o weller af peobection and a credit event oooess, & deflined unde
the ferens of thay particulae swap agreement, & Fund wall either (1) pay 1o the
buryer of protection an amount equal to the potional amount of the swap and
take delivery of the referenced obligation, ather debvesable cbfigations o
underkaing securitits comprising the referenced index o [il) pay a net
settlement anount in the form of cash or secunitees equal to the notional
ameunt of the swap less the recoveny value of the referenced cbligation o

underying securities comprising the referenced index. f a Fund is a boyes of
preaection and a credit event occurs, a3 defined under the teims ol that
pamicular swvap agreementy, 3 Fund wall either (1) recene from the selfer af
protection an amount egual 1o the notional amount of the swap and defver
the referenced obligation, other delrverable obligations or underiying
seculities compilising the referenced index ot (i) recenve a net settlement
amount in the ferm of cash or secunities equal to the noticnal amount of the
swap bess the recovery vale of the neferenced obligasion or underlying
secuiities compiising the referenced mdex Recovery values e esimated by
market makers considering esther industry standard secovery rabes or entity
spedific factors and considerations wntil & credit event ocows. B a cedit event
hars pecurred, the recovery vabue i determined by a Taclitated auction
wheselry & minimum number of allowable broker bids, together with a
spedfied valuation method, are wsed to calodate the settfement value. The
ity 1o delreer ather oblgaton. may neul in .u.‘.lr'.;:q‘wl-ld-dt-lmﬂ BpEn
(thee buyer of protecton™s nght 1o choose the delverable chligation with the
Eormest vaiue following a aredit event)

Credit default swap agreements on credit indices imvohag one party making a
steeam af payments to another pary in exchange far the rght 1o recene a
speafied return in the event of a wite-down, prinopad shorfall, interest
shortfall oe defady of all or part of the referenced entites compriving the
credet ndenc &, credit indes 152 basket of credit Fstruments of expasures
desagned to be representative of some pan of the cedit market & awhele
These indices ane made up of reference credits that are judged by a poll of
deaters 1o be the modt lquid entities in the credt defacl] dwap market bated
on the sector of the index. Companents of the indoes may incdude, bt are
nat limited o, imvestment grade secunities, high yield securities, asset-backed
secunhied, ameigng markets, andlor varous chedit falngs vtk bch facnor
Credit indhoes are traded using credit delault swaps wath stamdardired tenms
mcluding a ficed spread and standard matwity dates An index credit defaul
swiap rebevences all the names in the index, and i there & a defsalt the cedi
event i settled Based on that name’s weight in the index. The composition ol
the indices changes petiodically, usially every six months, and for most
indsces, each name has an equal wesght n the index. A Fund may use credit
default yeaps on oredit indices to hedge a ponfiolo ol credit default seagrs o
Eamds, which Is less expensive than & would be 1o buy many credit default
swvaps ba acheeve a similat effect Ceadit default wwips on indices ane
truments foe pratecting irveston cwnmng bonds againgt defauly, and
traders wse them o speculabe on thanges in credit quaiity,

Implhied credit spreads, represenied in absofute berms, utilized in detemining
the market value of credit default sevap aqreements on corporate, loan,
soverengn, U S municipal e U5 Treasury issues as of pertod end, if any, are
disclosed i the Mates to Schedule of Imestments. They serve a5 an indicator
ol the currens sttt ol p.r,lmrn[.':lm'wm'r:l: ekt @ repaisent the hiehbood
af risk of default for the referenced entity. The impled credit spread of &
particular refererced entity reflects the cost of baying'sefing protection and
may inchade upleont payments requined 1o be enade to enter into the
agreement. Wider aedit spreads represent a detenceation of the refienced
endity's credit soundness and a greater libelihood or tisk of default or other
credit event occuming as delined under the terms of the agreement. For cradit
dedault swap agresments on asset-backed secunties and credit indices, the
quibed market prices and resulting values serve 35 the indicator of the oument
status of the paymentiperformance risk. Increasing market values, in absolute
1o when companed 1o the notional amount of e FWIE, rEpIESEnt a
deteniceation of the refesenced entity’s credit soundness and a greater
fikelihood or nesk of default or cther aedit event soouming as defined under
the serms al the agreement

The mamuss potential amouwnt of future payments (undiscounted) tha
a Fand a5 a selfer of peotecton could be required to make under a credit
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defaudy swap ageeement equats the national amount af the agreement
Motional amounts ol each indnidual cedic delagls S T
oufstanding as of perod end for which a Fund is the seller of protection e
disclosed in the Motes to Schedule of imvestments. These potential amounts
vl be partiatly offset by any recovery values of the sespectve referenced
sbhigatiams, uplrant payments recered upon entenng into the apeement, of
net amounts received from the settiement of bay protection credit default
sl agreements entened o by a Fund for the same welerenced enkity of
enlities

Iminrest Rate Swap Aprsements Cenain Funds ate sobyedt ta inteest rane
risk exposire in the normal cowrse of pursuing thes imvestment objectives
The wafise of the Timed sane bonds that a Fund kolds iy diecrésae o intenes
ranes e Ta help hedge symeat this ek and to mantam it 2bding 1o
generaie inoome at peevalling market rates, a Fund may ener into eierest
13l swiap agreements. Intenest rabe swap agreements imvober the exchange
bya Fund vtk anather ity T trine TeECtne Commitment 16 pay o8
recedve interest on the notional amount of prinopal Certain fomes of ivterest
rale swap agreements may indude: i) mienest rate caps, under which, in
return Tae & presmm, one oty Mpe 1o make pryments to the ather 1o the
extent that interest rates exgeed a speafied rate, or “cap”, (s) interest rate
foors, under whach, in return fior 3 premium, one party agrees io make
pinyrsints 1o thie athis 1 the extent that snleneit rates Lall below & speahed
rate of "Moo, (i) inteest rate collars, under whach a party sells a cap and
purchases a floor or vice versa in an attempt to protect itself against mnterest
rate movements exceeding gaven minimem o mammurm bevels, (v} callable
interest rate swaps, undsr which the buser pays an wpfrant fee in
corsidesation for the rght b early termenate the swep transaction n whale,
at 2e00 cost and ad & peedetermned date and time pnor 1o the maturity date,
v} spreadiocks, which allow ths stenet rabe swap usen 16 lock o the
Terward differerial {ce spraad) between the intenest rate swap rate and a
speafied benchmak, or {w} basis swaps, undes which two partes can
exchange vanable interest cates based on different segmants of money
maries

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

{a] Primeipal Risks In the noomal oo of Busingds, ke Funds [oe Acguined
Fund{s), if applcable) wrade financial instruments and enter into financal
transactions where nisk of potential loss exists due o siach things as changes
in the market (market rak) or failure ar inability of the cther party to 3
transaction to perform (cradit and counterparty risk) See below for a detailed
description of sehect prinopal rsks

Fund ol Funda To the extent that cevtain Funds imeest substantially all of
thieir respactive assets n Acqpuared Fund{s], the niks assooated with investing
in thisie Fands wall be clodery sidated 1o the reks msocated wath the secunies
amd ather investments held by the Acquired Fund{s) The ability of the Funds.
to achieve their respeciie imestment objectives may depend upon the ability
of the Aequined Fund|s) 1o schieve ther respective imesment objectives

There can be no assurance that the imestment chjecve of any doguined
Fund{s) wall be achieved The NAY of an Acguwing Fund will Auctaate in
e B0 changes in the nespecine KA ol thie Acgred Fundls) in wihich it
imvests

In the normal cowrse of business, Aogured Fund(s] trade fnanoal instnaments
and enter into Fnancial transactions wheee ik of potential loss eists due to
changes in the market {market k], or fallure or insbdfiny of the other pary 1o
2 transaction to perfoem (oredit and counterpacty nisk)

Magiost Risks A Fund's imestments in linancial derivathoe instruments. and
othes bnancal instuments expirse the Fund to variows misks soch as, but not

fimited 1o, interest rate, foreign {non-Uk 5 } curency, equity and commadity
sk

friterest rate risk 15 the risk that faed income sequnties and other instuments.
befid by a Fund may dechine in waize because of an incease in inberest rates If
naminal inberest rabés nse, the valoe of certan tooid income seouwities held by
& Fund would likely decrease A mosminal intenest rate can be described as the
sum o a real inerest rate and an expected inflabion rate. Interest rate
-:h.lnr_lq-s €an be sudden and unprediciabde, and a Fund may lose moxney if
these changes ae not anticpated by Fund management A Fund may not be
able 1 hedge against changes in interest rates of may choose net to do 5o for
©ost or other reasons. In addition, any hedges may not wark as intended

Dutation is & megsure ysed 1o determine the seratnaty of  security’s price 1o
changes in interest rates that moorporates a secunity's yield, coupon, Bnal
maturity and call features, among other charactensfics. Comexily is an
sddmonyl meddune hed to understand a securty’s of Fund' s intenss rane
sexisithaty that measures the rate of change of duration in response 1o
changes in interest rates. Fived income secuntaes with longer durabions tend
1o b e Servatied o0 changes ininferest rates, usualy making them moee
volatle than secuntes with shomer duratiors. A wide vanety of factors can
cause interest rates of yiedds of U5 Treasury sacunities for yelds of other
pis ol bands) 10 rse {2.q, central bank manetary pabcies, inflatsan rates,
genedal econamic conditens, et ) Thes 5 especially troe under curent
conditions because interest rates and bond yields are near histoncally bow
bevels. Thus, the Funds currently face a heightersed bevel of risk assocated
with mang intenes! cates andfor bond welds. This could be dinven By vty
ol fachors, sncluding bart mot limited to central bank manetary pofices,
changing mflation or real growth rates, general economic conditions,
increasing bond neuances of reduced market demand for low yelding
ervestmenis. Further, while U S bond matkets have steadily grown over the
past three decades, dealer " market making™ abiliy has remained relatively
stagrdnl. Green the importande of i ary market making” in creating
& qobust and actve market, fued income secusities are curnently

facing ncreased volatdity and lgudty risks. All of thess fachors, collectively
andfes indnadually, coukd caarse a Fund to lose value H the Fund lost enough
value, the Fund could Tace merezsed Unithalder redempions, which coukd
further mmgpalr its performance. Alsa, the Fund may be adversely affected
when a larpe Unithoider purchases or redeems large amaunts of units, which
cai gotur at afy i and may impact the Fund in the same manoer a5 & hagh
yolume of redemgption requests. Lange Unitholider ransadtions may impact
the Fund's hiquidity and net asset value Soch transactions may aso increase
the Fund's iransachion costs of othersme cause the Fund 1o perform
diffierenly than imended. Moreover, the Fund is subject to the nsk that
othsar Unitholders may make investment dedsicns based on the choices of a
Larger Unitholder

A Fusd may hane sgeuficant exposune 1o is4oees in the United Kingdam. The
United Kingdem's withckawal fram the European Linion may impact Fund
retng. This decision may cause substansial velatility in fareign exchange
matkets, lead to weakness in the exchange rate of the British pound, result in
a sustained penicd of market uncerainty, and destabilize some or a1 of the
wother Eurapean Union member coundnes and‘or the Eurcnone

Feeegn (man-U 5 ) secuntess o thes feport ane cladiifed by the country of
imcovparation of a holding In certain irstandes, 3 seounty’s country of
moprparation may be different fram its country of ecancmic exposure.

H a Fund ierests directly im foreign (noa-U 5 ) cosmencies of in securiies that
trade in, and eecenie peveniess in, foresgn (ron-UF S ) currencies, o in fnancial
dervative instruments that prowvide exposure to foregn fnon-U. 5.0 oemenres,
i wll b Sutbject 0o thee risk that those curmisncies wall diclng i v relatve
10 the base currency of the Fund, o, in the case of hedging pesitions, that
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the Fured's bae curmency will dedkine in value relatnoe fo the curnency being
hisdiged. Cumensy b in ||;ﬂ'.q‘| CoRniLraes miny bﬂlb'zirl‘:c.ull.ﬂ et
short petiods of time Tor @ rumiber of regsons, including changes in intevest
rates, intervention for the fadiee to intervene) by LS. or foreign governments,
central banks or supranational entities such as the Imemational Monetary
Fund, o by the wnpositen of cureency contrals or otker politcal deelopments
in the Uinited $1ates or atwoad As a result, a Fund's investments in foneign

o nengy-denominated securilies may neduce the Fund's returns

The market vahues ol equities, swuch a8 commen stocks and prefered secuntees
o equity related investments such as fiutures and options, have historically
resen and Fallen in periodic ypcles and may decline due to general market
condiions which ane nat mlrll.'dh' rilated %0 a particular company, such as
real ¢ perceded adverse economic conditions, changes in the gereral
outlook for corporate earnings, changes in emterest oo aumency rates, public
health emsegencies, such & the spreasd of infectiows dnes o disease, of
atvesse imvestor senbemint gererally They may alio dedne due 1o facons
which attect a particala industry or industries, such s [3bor shortages or
increased production casts and competithne conditioes within an mdustry
Different rypes of aquety securites may react differently 10 these
dewelopments. Equity securities and equity related imestments generally have
greater maiket price valatility than Tived income secunties

Cortann Funds masy imvest in oertain msiruments that rely in wene Tashion
upon LIBOR LIBOR is an average inferest rate, deceemined by the ICE
Berchmark Administration, that banks charge one anather for the use of
shodl-term moniy. The Unted Kingdom's Finsncial Conduct Authonty, whach
requlaies LIBOR, has anncunced plans o phase ot the use of LIBOR by the
end of 2021, The transition may result in a reduction in the value of cestam
instiuments beld by 3 Fund or & reduction in the efectveness. of telated Fund
transactions such as hedges There remains uncertainty regarding Tuture
utdization of LUEOR and the nature of any replacement rate {e.g, the Secured
Dreernight Financing Rate, ehich is intended to replace 5. dollar LIBOR and
measunes the cost of enernsght bartowings through repurchase syeement
transactions collaterafized wath U 5. Treasury seounitees), and any potential
effects of the tramsiticn away from LIBOR on a Fund or on cerain instruments
inwhich a Fund invests ace not known and could result in losses 1o a Fund

Begirning in January 2020, glebal financial markets have experienced and
may confimue ta experierce significant volablity resulting from the spread of 2
noved eoranavirus known o5 COVID-19 The gutheeak af COVID-19 has
resuifted in travel and border reshrictions, quarantines, supply chan
disrupticers, lower consumer demand and general market uncertaingy, The
global econamy, the sconomies of cenain nations and indnadual Boveds hae
been and may continue 1o be adversely affected by COMD-1%, particulary i
light of the interoonnectivity between economies and financial markets, all of
which may negatnvely impact the Fundi” perfarmance: In addiion, COVID-19
and governmental resporrses b COVD-19 may negatrvely impact the
capabdities of the Funds' senvice providers and denpt the Funds' opeeaticns

Coadit and Counterparty Risks A Fund will be exposed to oedd st o
parties vatk whanm it eades and will alio bl the ik of teresen default
A Fund manireres contentrator s of credy nsk by undertaking iransactions
wilh a kaege number of ozstomers and counterparties on recognized and
reputable mxchanges, whede apphicable. OTC demvatroe tramdactions ane
subject to the tisk that a coumterparty to the transaction will not fulfill s
oniractual obligations to the other party, as many of the protections afforded
to centrally deared demvative transactions maght not be available for OTC
dervatve transactians. For dimmeatives Caded on an exchange of thecugh a
central countesparty, credit sk resides with the creditaaethiness of

Ihe Fund's diearing broker, o the cleanrghouse itsell, rather than wath a
counterparty in an QTC demvatneg transachion, Changes n regulation rn'.!1|m;
tor-a Fund's use of derrvatives and related anstrumenis could potentialy limit

of impact the Fund’s ability to imvest in derreatives, it the Fund's abdlity bo
ermplay certain sirategies Shat use demtives andic aﬁ'['lwh'dll'ﬁ'. e valug
o perfoemance of dereratsves and the Fund A Fund could lose meney if the
Esuer of quarantor of a foed income seourity, or the counterparty to a
financial derivatove instruments contract, reparchase agreement or a kean of
portfolio securites, i5 unable ar uradlling to make oemely principal andior
interest payments, or 1o otherwise honor its obfbgations. Secunities and
fmancial dervative instruments ane subjie<t 1o varying degrees of credy mak,
which may be reflected in credit ratngs.

Similar to credit nsk, a Fund may be exposed to coorerparty sk, or the risk
that an institution or other enfity with which a Fund has unsettled or apen
transactons will defaule FIMICO. as the Manager, minimizes countesparty
risks bo the Fusds through a rusber of wiays. Prior to entering inka
transactions with a new counterparty, the PIMCO Coumerparty Risk
Committee condecty an exyins e credit neview of such Couriberpity and muss
approve the e of such countemarty. Furthermone, pursuant 16 the tems of
the undertying contract, to the extent that unpaid amounts owed o a Fund
exceed a predetermined threshold, such counterpanty shall advange collateral
1 & Fund in the form of cash or seoutities equal in value 1o the unpad
ampunt owed to.a Fund A Fund may imeest such collateral in seowities of
ottt instruments and will Sypically pay inbedest 1 the Counbérparty an e
collateral recered I the unpaid aaunt evwed 1o & Fund subsequently
decreases, a Fund would be tequired to reben 3o the counterparty all or a
portion of the collateral previously advanced. PINCD's attempts to minimize
Sourtipaty ik My, B, e iyt il

All trassactions in listed sequrities are settledipaid for upon delivery using
approved countesparties. The risk of default s considered minimal, as delivery
al secuntees sold s ordy made coce a Fund ke recensed payreent. Payment 5
made on & purchase onoe the secunties have been delreered by the
countemarty. The trade wall Tail il either party fails to meet its chligation

) Oihver Rlsks In genesal, each Fund may be subject to additonal nsks,
meluding, but nat hested 1o, niks selated 1o government fequlation and
mervention in financal markets, operational risks, nsks assocated with
financial, economic and global market desnptions, and oferseourity nsks
Pleace fefer 10 each Fund's affering documents for o mate detailed
descrption of the ks of imseting in the Fund

Mar ket Dissuptions Risk The Funds are subject to irvestment and
operational lisks assodated wath fmancial, economic and other global market
devilopments and daiuphons, ingluding theds Xiking Si0e Wl Do,
matkel manipulabon, govermmend intesvertions, defaults and dhutderas
political changes o diplemanc developments, pubbic health emergencies
{such a5 the spread of indecticurs diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
natutaliemargnmental dradsers, which can all negatneety mpact th secunties
mnakets, inberest rates, auctions, secondany tading, ratings, credet risk,
inflation, deflation and other {actors relating 1o the Fund's imestments or the
Mangge's operations and cause & Fund 1o kose value Thede events may have
adierse bong-tenm effects on the U 5 and woeld econamies and markets
generally. These events can also smpair the technology and cther operational
sysbens upon which a Fund's serace peoviders, mcluding PIMCD &5 the
Furdt' imvessirment adviver, redy. and could athersase disiupt a Fund's semvice
providers’ ability to FuMil their cbiligations to the relsvant Fund. For example,
the speead of an infections respiratory iliness caused by a novel strain of
coranaarus. fkrown as COVID-19) has caused volatility, severe market
deslocatons and luidity constraints in many markets and may adversely
aflect a Fund'$ imvestments and cperations

Gevarmmant latarvntion in Fisancial Markets Feceral, state, and atfer
governments, thesr regulatery apencies, of seli-requlasasy arganatioss may
take actions that affect the requlation of the instruments in which a Fund
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imeests, or the issuers of such instruments, in wirys that are unloeeseeable
Legeifatian of neguulition may alse :ham]r the ey in which a Fund itself is
reqailated. Such legelation o regulation could limit or prechode a Fund's
ability 10 achieve its smestment objective. Furthermaons, volatile financial
markets can expose a Fund to greater matket and lquidity nsk and potertial
diffsculty in valung portfiola irstruments held by the Fund. The value of a
Fund’s holdings is ato generaty subject to the risk of future local, national, or
rjlutncl.’ ecanamic detuchances based on unkngwm weaknesses in the markets
i which o Fund invests In addiesan, if o nod corran that the U S Govemnment
wall imtervene in response b & future market distubance and the effect of amy
such Tutune mtenvention cannot be predicted. It is diffiult for mssuers 1o
prepare for the impact of future financial downturns, althaugh comparies can
seek 1o identify and manage Tuture uncenaintes through risk management
prograems

Regulatery Risk Financal ensties, such as imeestment companies and
imiAment adalecs, are :jl'lH"I.ﬂlg' et 16 extendost Government regulition
and intervention Govermment requlation andioe intercention may chamge the
vty a Fund is requilated, aflect the expenses incusred dinectly by a Fund and
i wilie of 1S ipmistents, and himit andie pl{'f_'.ldl‘ aFund's .'H'||||?:,-'.|':p
ackieve s investment objeaive. Government negulation may thangs
Trequently and may have significant adveerse consequences Moreouer,
goveinment rigulation may have unpredictable and unntended effects

Dperational Risk An imeestment in a Fund, ke any fiord, o arniohee
cperational risks ansing from factoes such as processing erces, human emars,
inadequate of failed mternal or external processes, faifures in gystems and
technology, changes in personnel and erran caused by third-party senace
preniders. The eccurrence of amy of these Falures, erors of breaches could
resuit in a loss of information, requiatory scruteny, reputational damage o
other evemts, any of which could have a material adverse effect on a Fund
While a Fungd weks b0 minmide such evenls Ilqum;h contiok and I‘Hl‘i'rlljh'l_
thete may still be faélures that coubd cause kosses o the Fund

Cybar Sacarity Rlak A the use of technology has become mare prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become petentrlly mone susoep bbde
1o operatonal and misrmanon sicurdty tsks nesulting from hingaches in cybier
sanurity. A breach in opber security refers to both intentional and
unintentional cyber events thal may, among other things, cause a Fund 1o
b proprietany informatmn, sutler data comuption andfar destruction or ke
operational capacity, resulf in the unauthorzed release of ather misuse of
confidential infmation, or othenwise disnspt normal business operations
Cyber security faikures or breaches gy el in fnancial losses 10 8 Fund and
ity Unithodders. Thede fadures o breaches may also result in denuplions 1o
business aperations, potentially resulting in finanoal losses; interlerence with
a Fund's ability Yo caboulate its net avset value, process Unitholder
transactions of otherstse transad business with Urstholders; impediments to
trading vielatoss of applicable privacy and other bws; requlatory fimes;
penalties; reputational damage; resmbarsement of other compensation oosts;
additaanal compluance and cyber security frk manapesen oot and other
aifverse consequences In addimon, substastial costs may be inourred i order
to prevent any cfber incidents in the future

B. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be sabygect 1o vanous netting amangements (7 Master
Agreemants”) with seled oounterparties. Master Agreements govem the
terms of certain transactices, and are intended to redisce the counteparty risk
assooated with relevant transactions by speclying credd protection
miechanesms and providing Hlandardeation that is mended 1o improve hegal
certainty, Each type of Master Agteement governs cetain types of
ransactions Diffierent fypes of tansachons may be traded out of different

egal entities or affiiates of a paticular organization, resedzing in the need for
multiple AReETETY with 4 single counberparty As the Mader -"-'.g:n'.‘flnl"'ll[‘:.
ate speclic (o unigue opetatans of dilferent aiset types, they slow a Fusd 1o
chose out and net its total exposure 10 3 coundemparty in the event of a default
with respect 16 2l ghe ransactions gowerned under a single Master
Agreement with a countedparty For finandal repartng pusposss the
Saaterments of Assets and Liabities generally present derivative assets and
Fabnlitess on a Gross harss, which reflecss the Tull ks aod IS price 19
e

Master Agreements an also help bt counterparty visk by specifying
collateral posting arangements at pre-aitanged eposure lewels. Under most
Master Agreements, collaceral s routinely translered if the tatal net expersure
10 certan transactions (net of edsting coflateral already in place) governed
under the relevant Master Agreement with a countemparty in a gieen aoocunt
exceeds & speciied thresbald, which ypacally nnges Trom fero to 5250000
depending on the counteparty and the type of Masser Aqeeement Unitad
Stabes Treasury Bills and U5, doflar cash ane generally the preferned foms of
collateral, although other secunties may be used depending an the terms
outlined in the applicable Master Aqreement Securites and cash pledged as
collateral are refiected as assets on the Statements of Assets and Liabilives as
withes & componant of Irvestments 8 walse (securmies) of Dhepodits with
courterparty. Cash collmeral recedied i not typacally held in a seqreqated
aorount and as such is rellected as a liabikty on the Statements of Assets and
Ligbilities a5 Deposits from counterparty. The mackel value of any securities
diciredd b collatersl  nod reflectad as & SOt al MAV The Fund's
overdll exposure to counterparty nsk can change substantiafly wathin a short
peviod, as it is affecied by each tansaction subject 1o the relevant Mastes
Bograsment

Master Repurchass Agreemenis and Global Master Repurchass Agreements
{indrvidualy and colectively ”Master Repo Agreements™ ) govern repurchase,
eoersir repiaichase, and sale-buyback transactions between the Funds and
sefect countesparties. Master Repo Agresments mamiain provsions for,
amang other thipgs, initiaton, income payments, events of default, and
maentenance of collateral. The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged or recenesd, and the net expersure by
counterparty & of pericd end are disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Eresiments

e Secohbed Forawvied Transachan .'-'l.-';H!T.{ﬂI-.l;' Mrsie Famward
Agreements” ) govern certain forward settling transactions, such as TBA
securities, delayed-deliveny or sale-baybadk transactions by and

beetween the Funds and select countesparties. Thie Master Forward
Agreements maintan provisions for, among other things, inmiation and
confirmaticn, payment and transher, events of defadit termination, and
mamrtenance af collateral The maiket value of loreard settling traemactions,
collateral pledged or necenved, and the net expeduare by counerparmy a4 of
peviod end are disckised in the Notes to Schedule of Investmends

Customer Acoount Agreemenss and related addenda govemn deared
dethatives Trardactod such a3 fubstes, optoes on Butures, and deared OTC
dernwatives. Such ransactions requere posting of initial margin as determined
by each rewevant diearing agency which is segregated m an actount at a
futuies commiticn mirchant |"FCM) regetensd wath the Commaoday
Futures Trading Commmission ("CFTC™). In the Unted States, counterparty eisk
may be reduced a5 edsters of an FCM cannet have a claim to Fund assels in
the segregated account. Portabilty of epasure 1 the event of an FCM
dedault scenars further reduces sk 1o the Funds. Variation marngin, of
chamges inmarket value, are generally exchanged daily, but may not be
mited Bibasen futunes and cegeid OTC derncatrees unliss the et By
agreed 1o @ sepasate arangement in respedt of fund mangrang  The marker
value or acoumulated unrealized appredation (depreciabion], irtial mangin
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8. FEES AND EXPENSES

wing fees payable at the follewing annual rates (stated as a percertage of the average dady net assets of each Fund, or Class, if

Faas

Advissry Adsinigtrative Agmncy Déstribution

Fod
FIMCO Bermuda Foreign Lows Duration Fund
PIMCO Bermuda U.5. Low Deratien Fund 07%%

FIMECO Eure Total Return Fusd
PIMCO Real Raturn Fund 045% 075% 0z %
FIMCO Short-Tarm Strategy

= AD _ B 010% 1578

=  CUsED

« JLIF - -

= JilEED

a  JF ESR 00 057
s 50 045 % . - 010% 057%
ol Repori | Ma e
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The management
admintsirathee and third-party sanices including awd um:-d.a trustes, |'."|~I-:s o atoul
distribution fees, i applicable, are paid monthly in amears 1o resmburse financial in dianes that provide seraoes and distnbution relating to the units of the
applicable Fund or Class thereal, a5 applicable] In the case of the PMCD Bermuda Fareign Low Du sation | Fund and PIMCO Bermuda U 5. Low Duration Fund, FIKCO
out of iy management 4|'\1°_ well bear the oosts associated with advisory and adenistrative seraces, 0 1% of which i+ dessgnated 1o cover administratve expenses In
exchange foe this fee, PEMCO will bear the costs of certan thied-party sernces required by the Funds, including audit, custodial, testee. portiolio accounting, legal,
ll'dl‘“l" agent and printing senvices. FIMCO, and ned holders, wauld beredit from any price decraase in the cost of such thind-party senaces, g decreates
wuiting feom af incribe B Nt assets bn g an, Witk tespect o Funds that are st 1o an nistratve fse, B erataly makes a piols on such a lee

As poted inthe table above, certain Funds aed CRasses of Funds are not subject to management, advisory, admenistrative, agency o distribution fees PIMCO fapan
Lid, PRJCIY's affliate in fapan, is paed a fee from the Rapanese Imvestment Tll..:-'i of other imvestment vehicles that invest in such Funds or Classes and a partion of
duch Tee i then Miacsned 1o PIMID o comperrale if Tor 118 dénaced

The Funds lor Classes thereal, as applicable) may bear other expenses related to their operaton that are not covered by the management, advisary, admirestrative
agency or distributicn fees, inchuding bt rot imited 1o () tanes and govemmental fees; (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portiolio barsation expenses;
(i} costs al bomows i) mony, inchpding intenesl expenst: (i) exiraondmany expenses, including coses of ksgation and in ifcation eopenses; and (v FY PR
aliocared or alocable 1o & speafic Clas of unity, a5 applicable PRICO has pad the organzasonal experes asooated vath PIMCO Shom-Tesm Srategy’s initial get-

up

PINKCD has paid the amganaational expenses assaciated with the creation of the Trust IF further Funds are launched, such fosts directly attribusable to the relevant
Fund may be bene by the televant Fund
10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imvestmeng Advrer i 3 relxted paety ba the Fursds & s subidiany ol Alllanz Ascet Management AG. Fees paid 10 the related party,
discosed in Note 9, and aconsed related party Fee amaunts, if ary, are disclosed on the Statements of Assats and Liabikties

Certam Fonds are pemitted 1o purchase or sel secunties nom or to certain related albliated funds undier spec H'q"r-' sons cutlmed in procedunes adopt
Th i haree been desigred 1o ensune that any pucchine of sabe ol securitees by al f 10 anather fond that
e by wirtue of hai Ving 2 commen adviser {or affiliated svestment advisers), i eflected at :he cumesnt market price. Duning the penod t-'x:ed May
beedoww ergaged in purchases and sales of seouities among afikated funds (amounts in thousands)

I tmend Achveies
corsidered an af
31, 2021, the Fu

Fund Prurchases:
PINCD Bermuda Foresgn Lo Deration Fund § LI ]
PERADT) Bavemeds 15 Low Moratien Fued FilF

PELCD Emargrsg Mlarkm nd (M 1940
PME Furn Tonal Rt Fund i
PIMCT Rl Returs Fund 1062 44l
PEALD) Shont Teem Stratugy T 143,165

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

el certann babilioes that may aetse out o
5 that contain a vanety of mdemnification dauses

| are indemnified
nds nvties it Con4

ional decumen .a U’: a-r;,ﬂe&-.-ﬁ udire the Trustee and P
course of business, th

Unader the Trust's eegan

oooured. However, the Funds have not had peior claims of losses pursuant 1o these contracts

T2, UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trust may tssue wp 1o 500,000,000, 0K 1 b percent of the net
ach respectneg Fund . Such . el | i i s » et s 1

EOTRTE ARt % of i f dinr g of prud-ang denoemir ! ; i and
carrsent al

AsaatE
withi
commneried 1o the Funds
e Manager, mary in the fu

re creabe and offer an .'r‘ I|I‘1‘: W8 rl_rd o Clarss or Clases ‘“:uf'ul'.-

Roncad Pagert | My 31, 2001

190/381



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements co

f ieres] were 35 Toll | amounts in theasands™ |
oar Ercied four Ended Your Ended Yoar Endledd
My 31, 3021 iy 31, 20210 My 31, 2021 ey 31, 121
Facoipts For ity wold B % 1,855 LI 1,553 b NS S 1 Mk Wik
T WA Wik A Wik Wik KA 4535 b AT
Coat ol wnm el (1L 1] (FH ] 145 ] (Fi} 178756 Mk Nik
50 NIk Wik N i Wik Kk 14,3805 1188, 147)
it |2sermmiad reitng from
Fured vt Tasane it (L T -1 3 8 s (k= TR S LS BANI B fgd3em
oar Ersied Foar Ended Yo Ended Toar [Ended
My 31, 221 iy 31, 30210 May 31, 2021 lay 1, H7
lsim Ampenr sy ! ] Ao ] Amanr
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L L o (5548 Wik NA HE HI&
Nk Kik 150 (X081 Wik L] ik NIk
Wik Wi i, R PET Wik L Wi K&
WA Wik 1 vl 1] Wik KA Hig WK
[ TR 1] 1,6 158 441 134 BUR fE508 | 5184
Vear Ended
My &1, 903
Lnm Amparr
Rwpts For anity mid
A0 LT ]
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3 § 526
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Yiar Erded
May 31, 221

o ULE im ¥ 8BS
JFY i 30,350
LE0 11,40 15150
Hit e vl Fes
Fured it tasmction 143 % 1B5E

13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATIDN MATTERS

e Funds ate nod named & delendants in aey masedal ingacon or siutratan proc

theatensd agains

Tha Fedaning toask+ aik
¢ o igoing speaksd only o

14. INCOME TAX

Ll Bl

FEnN SLEe 10 EXaminanon v

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Manager has evaluated the possib

Romzal Pagart | My 31
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A5 ot OVIS/HED (5] 1,15 2557 d 10T 1,000 1,08
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4 E50% dos TNIETE2Y 500 516 0B den 027004 0 o) | A75% doa 16053021 550 52
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Aiatien Capival Grawp LLC 07705 don 250004 LEM 7413 5 SEE% des 0U07702 00 a0
0 BSE dos 07307001 LN 1,480 | don DE202) L5000 1511 5 B7SH due DS 1080 118
1 1 1% don DE0176021 L] i U A7 o DI04 500 36 GATE Cap.
2H75% doa 010022 L7 LRy Karamaife Bakdng Saciery 0836 dow 1057021 L e
Awnian Holdings Furdisg Lad. EYTH dos BADERE2Y 00 » Garaval Millg, Ins.
1AM do N0 -] B8 MarWen Breagp PLC B 800 dow 105022 0o iy
5500 des DVISTE2] i 53 ) 7517 dn DEZSTI 1,000 g2 Ganeral betees Co
Easen Santandes Chile Keomure Heldinga, bar. 1 B35 e IRHDITY o0 &
13359 don 11282021 1] 2 T do DNVETIES 130 Gamval Maiers Fissngial Co. bas.
Barchn ML T BAE doa DVIEHDS 2000 2550 1411
15383 duw (S804 a0 E1l Nardea Bank Akp 1 155
1 BT o D151 T T ] 78 10753 dow 03307003 L0 L7
EOC Aviation Lid. ORIK Couy. AT den OIS 50 w37
275 dew NSNS ¥ LT LR 2O0R dee OWEEGE 0 Fawlstt Packand Emterprine Ca.
27500 dos DYIEHTY 200 . 1200 due DVIBHZT L o 0 974% doa 15057021 B0 L]
20005 dos (SO mo k) Pauifin Lide Global Fusding 8 Bytwadui Capinal At riea
BOC Aviation UEA Corp. QB3R dow DEDAREDS -] =2 1 E37% dua 0PGS2021 L2 1113
TEYSAE o DAPSI304 B0 -] Park Apvsapace Haldings L, 1, 1505 e | UBIEE 1700 1,
Erixmer Dperating Parsarsbip P 4 500% doe DVESCI 0 5 1I05% dou THHEFHIT3 k) )
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)
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1 750 due DEAEDTE La00 2400
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(880 o 0ADA0M (i ] 1925
Sprimt Commeniations, Ine.
B.000% doa | UTSE2Y &0 115
Sprim Carp,
T KIS don DE/ESAT4 m 115
1 2500 dow OSS021 i} m
Waleis Eaergy Carp.
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0 350 dos 0305006 5000 L1
1 000 dos VTS 30 148
VI don D227 .0H 987
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07500 doe 01172023 250 1T
Tonal U5 Treaswary Db ligavioas 12617
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€5 First Beton Morgage Bached Trust

(R dow [H2570M ]
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5 Marigage-Hatked Bseerities Corp, Tnest

| 7506 den | 2TT063 LY 1]
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VT don D700 L £
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5
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]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)
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2 TR0 dow DAY =] 16
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(1 B37% dow (257004 b 7y ¥l

Magia Sanbey Capinad | Trn
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4 500 dow DSTST053 e i+
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0 TAO% doe DE/TT0LE GEP B 458
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U284 due 0ST0T0GS 1 o5

Farmdepta| Maripage Senwitien 12 FLE

12550 doe DERDCONS o L)
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11 T35 doa DVIRT052 LI T 8316
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03313 dow DADDT055 GAF L6 LTS
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0756 due 0212073 i i} Fi)
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0545 dua 07202063 Gar [
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10 doa 1V 120 L a1 =
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| M5 don 02200054 o1 il
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1 B4EW don DEDDI4S 530 1IN
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1 B3R dow DSBS 1ms 1444

2700 dot 01257063 LR 115
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L e

AT ALLLE
L] Loe T
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1 201% doe 03153 § ne ¥a

1 2000 o DS/VE2035 2000 2068
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05447 can 130000 L 433

1 ¥51% dow 07/FS068 sl riyi}

4256 doa DVESGDES 0 o
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Q0 B1% dow 1HIS0LS B2 £
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2% don BANLOITES (K-~ 14N

MG L0 16 Led,

1 1BE due DU -] o]
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104 do DAZHHET 9% 06
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Flagship Credit Auie Trasi

TR dow 1B 96 36
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16 dod 0112028 m Eal

LS Autn Recwivablen lvsser Trust
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L KM o DWVRERS B0
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Midecwan Cradit 010 WH
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% ot UEST06S e
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(13975 dos DTST08S
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QRK Hill Eurepean Crodir Parimers ¥l DAG

17405 dow 107N ER  15M
P CLO Lid,

05843 do ONISGEN L 155
CaeMain Fnargial lanarce Trast

2370 don DSHATIRY i
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1006 don DRTTETIRS Ne
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DBIEW doe DN EETHRD 1800
0 53E% da DESTAQ o
Pepper SPARKE Trent No.J

15 dou ORI T .
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E51% don D4/ VS04 | 00
0530 dow DTSN L]
SAC Stadeat Lean Trust
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D234 dos D FSTHRT k)
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1 B0 dow S05 1]
Safi Comiumer Loss Program Trest
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L] 100
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1 HEE dos DRT102 270 2381
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0000 dow DSE1ERN LH LA
(1006 dos 0OS202T 1Lar3 1083

b l.t;
i
Cisihask NA.
010057 dos DGT1EY T
BES Bask L.
0S5 e DET2EY 13

Gl Bank ASA
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Schedule of Investments PIMCD Short-Term Strategy (Cont)

NUIES TL HEDULE OF INVESTE % Al -] 1 - EXL L CONTHRAECTSE

*  Azerobalance may reflect actual smownts roursding to less than one thousand,

fa} Theallocation of Tolal Inveriments bry geographés reglon o of May 39, 2027 is H1E% of Netl Assels in the Wnited Slates, 8.1% in the United Kingdom,
2.6% bn the Cayman |slands, 7.6% In Ehe Japan and other countries comprising of 17.0% of Ket Assels in aggeegate.

i When-ssued seourity.

o} Coupcn represents a yield to maturity.

(]  Coupon represents a wekghted average yiekd o matusity.

Market Valse
ai Paicantage ol
Leupen Maturity Date __ Acguisition Dais Ceat Market Valus Mot Assais
2000 12} ¥ AT g Q4
000 01g
b 1] [ 055
[] 31912 BETH

Unrealoed
Fol  Apreciationl  __ VesistiosMasga
Contracts  {Depreciation L Lishility
v [lecembe Fusaer [+ [] vk [ [ 11E
ron March Feteres il 25T 0 1
WS Tremssry 3Yor Nooe Senemde rh 1] i} i
115 Treasary 5 Year Hode Septembe Futorss B 7% 1 0
15 Triaeety Ui 10-Tiew Kot Sestesbe Folusis 1 185 T4 ] L'
Tetal Futures Contracts § 7371 § ] 11251
Unrealized
Freosd Daal Faturiry Moticsal Marker HApgraciation) Waristien Wargn
Insdaoe Mranc hes Amunt® Value {Depreciation) [ Liabitity
0% 15-35 tnden ] ] i ¥ : 12 § ? ] i
COIG-35 ladex o500 155 E i a
¥ M ¥ iE 1 i ¥ 'l
PayFacerm Uirw palized
Flaatisg Paturity Natisial Maikit Lppintiatios] Viiwtion Madgis
Fam ™" Fioating Rate Index Fioed Rats [Diate, Ampunt Walum Dap sciation| Hxset Liability
Fay 1-asth 1S3 BOR LT [ETrw] [! A 90 5 1231 § 1 4 2 .1 [1]
Tatal Swap &poanents i i1l i 5 i [ i
T fofieswine) i & summatry of the marrt value and variation madge of Euchange-Traded or Cenvraly Chesoed Fnancial Deientive dostrumencs e of May 1, 301

Cagh of $2.402 has been pledged as collaeral bor eachange-braded ard centrally cleared Rnancisl dervative inatiements as of May 31, 2021, See Nole 8,
Maatir Naming A angamenta, in th Males ta Financisl S & Fof moes il hofh Piofj A Peling FNERET FETING AFPRNGEME A,
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

Fmancial Derivative Assats Firaaneciad Dharivartive Linbili tes
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)
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T Solltewineg o 0ty by cocelerprty of fon it vikos of [C Sraacal derivady ]

ritrmaes aad collybiral pledged’ il & of May 31202

(M Secusities with an aggregate marked valoe of BB52 have been pedged &5 collateral for financisl derivative instruments as governed by Intennational Swaps and
Deriwatives Assoclation, inc. master agreemens as of May 31, 2021,

Finantial Derivative Assets Finmncdal Deivative Liahilities

Fatveaid Fatward
Feasign Tatal Frasign Takal Mot Markei  Collaberal
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AR VALIDE OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE RNSTRUMENTS
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AR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
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2020 31

2020

31

463,931 50,986
0 0

565 62
1,289 142

1 0

4,670 513
26 3
1,603 176

0 0

TBA 25,176 2,767
2,958 325
1,479 163
501,698 55,137
35,587 3,911
0 0

697 77
2,284 251
3,948 434
TBA 25,097 2,758
1,020 112
2,653 292

0 0

93 10

0 0

0 0

21 2

99 11

0 0
71,499 7,858
430,199 47,279
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467,651 51,395
0 0
24 3
(16) &)
5,000 550
44,979 4,943
57,298 6,297
194,301 21,354
672
623
1,831
66.95 7,358
100.86 8,087
91.91 10,101
9,902
106.12 11,663
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2020 31

13,003 1,439
0 0
13,003 1,439
178 20
246 27
614 67

0 0

225 25
225 25
765 84

0 0

41 5

56 6
140 15
1,945 214
108 12
4,543 499
8,550 940
5,078 .
0 0
(7.728) (849)
4,208 462
(356) (39)
1,202 132
(5.170) (568)
0 0
2,697 296
(7.,038) (773)
14 2
(9,497) (1,044)
(8,295) (912)
255 28
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2020 31
8,550 940
1,202 132
(9,497) (1,044)
255 28
0 0
- 44,274 4,866
44,529 4,894
385,670 42,385
430,199 47.279
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2020 31
255 28
(851,077) (93,533)
871,206 95,746
(19,507) (2,144)
19,502 2,143
(19,178) (2,108)
(5.072) (557)
4,188 460
(547) (60)

583 64

TBA (194) 1)
751 83
(3.569) (392)
(4,042) (444)
TBA (2,091) (230)
(48) ®)
(3,620) (398)

30 3

0 0

0 0

7 1

26 3

(69) ®

0 0

(84) ®
(5,078) (558)
7,728 849
(4,208) (462)
5,170 568
(2,697) (296)
7,038 773

363 40

219 24
(4,015) (441)
234,894 25,815
(188,814) (20,751)
3,209,370 352,710

(3,225,419) (354,474)
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4,547,788 499,802
(4,573,808) (502,661)
4,011 441
* ©
31 3
27 3

1,993 219
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2020 31

69.68 7,658
©) 1.17 129
(3.90) (429)
(2.73) (300)
66.95 7,358
(b) (3.92)
©) 0.29
44,979 4,943
1.52
1.04
1.74

0.01
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2020 31

91.98 10,109
(@) 2.07 227
(2.14) (235)
(0.07) ®)
91.91 10,101
(b) (0.08)
© (0-85)
57,298 6,297
1.26
0.77
2.25

0.01
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2020 31

104.87 11,525
(a) 1.51 166
(0.26) (29)
1.25 137
106.12 11,663
©) 1.19
194,301 _ 21,34
1.56
1.08
1.43

0.01
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2020 31

2001

2017 29
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2006

JITF
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US GAAP
US GAAP
US GAAP

JITF
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FASB LIBOR
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US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP
US GAAP
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US TIPS
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PO 10
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PO
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2020 31

GNMA

FNMA

FNMA
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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LIBOR LIBOR
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LIBOR 2021
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 coviD 19
coviD 19
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0.236
0.236
045 () g5 €D 0.02 0.33 ()
045 () g5 €D 0.02 0.33 ()
0.35 ) 0.08 () g3 ()
0.35 @O 0.08 @V g3 @2
0.35 @ 0.08 9 g3 @9
0.45 10 0.40 10
0.35
5,000
0.25 5,000 0.20
0.15
0.23 10 0.28 10
0.33
0.45 10 0.40 10
0.35
5,000
0.25 5,000 0.20
0.15
0.23 10 0.28 10
0.33
0.0 0.35 0.0
0.5 0.375 0.5
1.0 0.40
1.0 2.0 0.425

2.0 0.45
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0.0
0.0 0.5
0.5 1.0
1.0 2.0
2.0
0.0
0.5
1.0
1.0 2.0
2.0
10
0.35
0.375
0.40
0.425
0.45
11
0.08
0.085
0.09
0.10
0.10
12
0.32
0.42
0.52
0.545
0.57
13
0.35
0.375

0.40
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PIMCO
PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 31
0 2,959
0 1,622
15,038 59,632
1,105 0
543 0

68,085 73,763
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JITF
2020 31 2020 31 2020 31 2020 31
23 2,366 15 1,577 684 27,407
6,157 102,829
@yl 4,242) enl @.82n) @72)|  (30,141)
12,973)|  (216,161)
as)|  (@.87) anl  @,250) @8 @730  (6,816) (113,332)
2020 31 2020 31 2020 31 2020 31
154 9,677 100 1,098 124 2,348
169 6,856
18 1,475
20 1,424
23 1,366
227 3,348
59 1,986
(202) (12,746) ©D| (1,019) @188)  (3,424)
247) (9,673)
(O] (412)
34 (2.349)
7 (2,823)
4,679  (77.821)
(83) (2,820)
48) (3,069) 4,578)  (79,407) 9 79 65| (@,076)

2020 31

313 21,393

3740 | 37,767

49 4,627
18 1,758
99 9,049

1,502 158,694
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ar) | @i,370)

5P| (5,395
(606) | (56.314)
@y | @.osn
@07y | (37,290)
(718) | (75.588)

368 44,274
2019 29 2020 31
13
14
US GAAP
2020 31
2020 31
15
2020
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Statements of Assets and Liahilitiescont)
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Statements of Assets and Liahilitiescont)
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Statements of Assets and Liahilitiescant)
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Statements of Operations [Con)

aE Bk w & UEEC R SR
[ E i f
B 34 10 308

RiA 116 17 Nk

Managemeet fom - AUD Wik W W TH
[ Wik WA [ T
N Wik e E1d

L i ] N2

hl il 1

K4 K i 125

[ i )

al i 185

!.. ! i

[ Wi T

hith L l:

A ik Kid 140

™ 4 Filt o

i 0 0 .

L] £ 10 &543

Nel Investment Income 5EE 124 155 &80

Net Realized Gain {Loss):

ni nsecinieg, et of Inieg te ] 1.1 50

Inancial e patrem FelfuSahE z [ RE]

it (10963 (2571 1R

] 185 IB

13,080 1.3 i i)

Net Change in Unrealized Apprecistion [Deprecistion):

v b s i pecunis, et ol Roregn o ¥ il 1 645
ez Cvosn = i A (18 434 [§ [ ]
i raucil B [0} 3n Fiai T
Dver e WTLITENE 4411 i3 i [
1 a2 4
] Aparacianon [Depreciano I |BET) 34871
Net Gan [ o) 577 ¥ HE

Net Increase (Decrease] in N et Assets Resulting from 0 parati ons 1 018  EUR F5A i TEH 3 %5

Faren ta wathibaldng H 0 EUR [ 3 0 : 0

 ours fenb o ey Bt ar ] ameimty vt B b Elo aow hawsand

[ - Beveas! Papae | My 31, 30000 q

248/381



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Cont)

FRED
trageg PINET Eam
Wrkas Basd Trad Raom MLED Al MNED Thest:
GBS B g el P s Pl Torm Simragy

Increase (Decreazel in Net Aszets from

Opevations

= 58 EUR [ T
13000 1 3 =
122 BEd BETI 1871
&1 20

E=] .
=l
B | 5=

L] N
i N N
KA N N
L5 W 1
5 N N&
J Hilky N N
ot Dembyborne [0S [
Fund Unit Transactions:
Mot rcreven | dey e resubang from Fend enet raneso noms " (79 417} 13 1 0TE A4 774

Total Increase (Decreasel in Net Assels 106, B4 B2 1532 50

Net Assols:

wrey of year Ha.5m6 %112 kfos ]

B B ELR 5] & JE =
A oare Sk & meary reBan ] ety meendeng oo bem thon sre theend
" Beedote 12 18 th e Hetes Do Franconl Sramesmsnts
Tow s e gy WL fovan Bapat | My 31, 30D 1

249/381



Statements of Cash Flows

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Wraaris  havsnd |
Gash flows fromoperating activities:

Het icress i fat sssai naling Irom eperabon:

PURACOD) R FMO Short:
Rertum Fand Torm Swampy

Adjustments to reconcile nel increase (decrease] in net assets resulting from operati ons to

net cash provided by operating activities:

g BT SECUnEE

Satem of over the counter finarcisl dernvarm

Net cash provided by (used for) operating aclivities

& raro balacca mary et aiual amownss roending o Fess tham ore thosand

[ P ————

D0
40
Al
168 B
o 104
143 ]
3 364
] Al
1 1]
a u
] '

14
1 s L1
darraatoe el -] [ En

5382 4, 005)

Beveas Bapae | My 31, 30000 12

250/381



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statements of Cash Flows [cont)
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Finaneial Highlights (cent)
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Finaneial Highlights (tent)
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGAMNIZATION

Each Furd distussed in this repoet (each & “Fund™ and coflectively, the "Funds™), which also indudes eadh dass of units of that Fund (eadh a "Class™ and collectively,
the "Classes™), i 2 senies trust of PIMCO Bermuda Tnst (the "Trust™), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Barmuda a5 2 mulB-senies trust pursyant
10 & brust deed exeqated by Windhester Global Trust Company Lirmited on Apgust 8, 2001 (a5 amended from Sme 1o ime, the ™ Trust Deed™). Effective &5 of te doge
of busmess (Eastern time) on Seplermber 29, 2017, Maples Trushee Senaces (Bermuda) Limeted (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 rustes of e Trust Paalic nvestment
Managernent Cornpany LLC ("PIMCO™, the “Manager™ of the “Inwestment Adviter™) is the spondor of and was mapondble for structuring the Trust

The: Trust i subgect 10 regaation and wuperaton as provided Tor in e nsestment Funds Act 2006 and redated nules relating to standand funds

The: temms of e Trust Deed confer upon the Tustes, with the consent of the Manager, the power, i the future, to establish further funds in additon 1o the Funds
curently in operation a5 of the date of this report

The Funds presented in this report are [shed below:

FIMCT Barmuda Forasgn Low Disration Fund Oarad only to fusds with a “Fund of Fends® stuciure, as defined mn tha rubes of the

FIRCT) Barmada U 5 | Low Duraton Fund Imvestment Trysts Assoaanon, Japan, of bo funds wath & simdar stryciua in sny oghsr

FIMGO Emarging Markets Bond Fund LIITF] junsdchon

FINCT Emenging Barbets Bond Fund {Yan-Hadged)

FINCT) Emrging bAsrkets Bond Fund i

PN Fuso Totsl Aeacen Fund T Fresd i tetail (Messton im Japsn by way of pUhr offang ticugh @ O ot in

PINCT) Raad Rasturn Fend Jagan, and may ba offined to othid imnisions at B dizaBion of the Manager

FIRACL Short: Tewm 5 rategy™ Orffiened toretal investors m Japan by wey of public offanng theough 3 distibaber andior a
sales handling company in Japan, end may be offered to othar imiesioes at the discraion
of thi Mansgir

FINCT Emargin g Markets Bond Fund (M) [ Freeeed coniy e othe Fands o sarve a3 an undardying mwastmean twehide for such Funds

* B LT el (OE Samae f rite PIREET o -Sore Srarogy are s i 1 v it Tond Vil ™ s o ilinwd o 0 ey o i by oty Ao Samam o B o wich p wrmder i Ty o my A pedTO R
Tl (UG (e 2 AR e love Sty of o S il o0 0 Fasteli 1 v i 0 i i) vt et el o ookt Pty

Uit of the PIMCO Euro Total Return fund, FIMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUD, JFY, and USD Classes of PINKCO Short-Term Strategy have been registered under the
Fenancial instrurments and Exdhange Law of Japan. Linits of eadh of the remainng Funds and the O QUSD), J OFY)L and J (USD0 Classes of PIMCO Short-Temn Sirategy
have not been and are not curently expected to be registered under the Finandal Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan. Accordngly, such Units of these Funds may
ot b, cirectly or indirectly, offered in Japan or to any resident in Japan, except i compliance with spplicabde Japanese [aws and regulations

2. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUINTING POLICIES

The followang is & sumensny of sigmficant accouming pofides congstently fobowed by the Trust in te preparation of its finand @ statements in conformity with
accaunting prindples generally acepted in the United States of Amenica (TULS. GAAP™). Eadh Fund i treated 35 an investment comgany under the feparting
requiremnents of U S GAAP The preparation of Snandal statements i accordance with Ll 5. GAAP requines management 1o make estimates and assumplions that
affet the reported amounts of assets and Babilities and dsdosure of confingent assets and Babilities at the date of the finandial statements and the reported amoaunts
of increases and decreates in net assets from operations during the reporting perod. Actual results could ditfer from those estimates

{a} Underying Fand The Tristee and the BManager may apply all or a portion of the assets of PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (0TF), PFIMCO Emerging Markets
Bord Fund (Yen-Hedged, and FIRCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il (each refermed o herein a5 3 “Fund of Funds™ or the " Acquiring Fund”, which invests in other
Funds) to the respective qedit of the PIMCD Emerging Markets. Boned Fund (M) freferred to herein 25 2n "Underhing Fund™ or the ~Acquired Fund(s)™), Arry 3ssets 50
appdied will be held in such Acquired Fund(s) a5 if receled deecty. Where asets are 5o applied, he Acguired Fund(s)will recoed the issue of units 5o e relevant
Anguining Fund at the issee price perunit of sudh units and will repurdhase sudh units at the repurdnase price per unit of such units a1 the dme of repurchase

Ratigs shosvr in the Anandal Highlights do notndude expenses of the Acquired Fundis). See Mole 9, Fees and Expenses, for further informanan regarding fund fees,
a4 applicable

(b} Secunities Transactions and luvestmeont Income Secunlies ransactions are reconded & of the rade date fof inandal reporting purpodes. Securities pudchased o
sold on a when-issued or delayed-delivery basis may be sedtled beyvond a standard settement pericd for the security after the rade date Realized gains and losses
from secunties sold are reconded on the idenfified oot basls. Dividend incoeme is recondsd on the ex-dhidend date, extept certain dvidends from foraign seounities
whenk the exc-dridend date may have paised which ane reconded & s00n 25 a Find i infonmed of the aedadend date Interest income, adusted for the Jdreton of
disoounts and amartization of premiums, i reconded on the acoual bases from seatement date, with the esceplion of searities with 3 fansard Starting effective date,
wihere mnlerest income 15 fecorded on the aconual badis trom effective date. For comvertible seqmties, premsurms altnbutable o the converson feature e not
amortized. Esfimated tax liabilities on certain fioreign secunifies are recorded on an aooual basis and are reflected 2 compan ents of interest income or net change in
unredized appreciation (depreciation) on investments on the Statements of Operations, as approprate. Tax liabilities realized as a result of such security sales are
refiected a5 & component of net realized gain (Joss) on investments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gaens and losses on mortgage-related and other asset-
Buacked tetuiites, i any, s feceaded 42 corponents of inlefedt incame on the Statements of Operations. Debl abligations may be placed on mon-a0udl status and
redabed inbenest incodre may be reduced by ceasng Qarent aomuas snd wris !}g"j':flﬂ'.‘{"l'r':ﬁt receivable when te collection of all of @ portion of interest has become

St Repart | May 31, 2000 ]
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doubstful besed on corsistently applied procedures, A debe obligation is
remacid from non-aoTual status when The iSswer resumes nierest paments
or when collectability of interest it probable

{e} Cazh amd Foreign Currency The Bnandal statements of each Fund ane
presented uang te currency of the primany economic envronment inwhich it
operates (the "funconal curmency™), The functicnal currency for each of the
Fureds is [rsted in the below tatie

The market vakies of foreign sequnties, curmency holdngs and other assets
and lahilities are transhated into each Fund's functional arrency based on the
curent exchange rates each business day Purchases and sales of sequnities
and income and expense [tems denomenated in foreign currendes, if sy, e
trarikated into sach Fund’s respective Juncional asrendy at the exdhangs
rate in effect on the ransecion date. The Funds do Nl Separ abely report the
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates from changes in market prices on
secuities hetd Sudh changes are mdided i ned realized and net chandgss in
unreatized gain of Ioss from imeestments on the Statements of Operatons

The Funds may imvesd in foreign ourrency denominated securities and may
engage in forégn ourmendy ransactions either on a $pat fcath) basis at the
rate prevailing in the qurrency exdhange markel &t the fime or through a
forveard foreign aurrency contract. Realized foreign exchange gairs of losses
anising from sabes of spod foreign qurrendcies, qumency gains or |osses realized
betarien the rade and seddement dates on seoudities ransactions and the
ditference between the recorded amounits of deidends, mterest, and foreign
withholdng taxes and the mnctiona aurency squivalent of the amaounts
achaally received or paid are indudedin net realized gain or loss on foreign
QaTency ransactions on the Statements of Cperaticns. MNet unseabzed foreign
exchandgs gains and lodses anyng fromm changes in foneign eodhanos rates on
bfr:'?‘l denormnated aisers snd leabili Bes other tham Bves Iments in Seounbes
held at the end of the reporting pericd are induded in net change in
unnegliped appreciation or depreciation on foreign quiTendgy 355e1s and
Eabilities cn the Statements of Operaons

The Net Asset Value ("HAV") and toral retums of cenain Fumds (o Classes
thereod, a5 apglicable) are presented in the qumrency forwhich the NAY s
reported fhe " NAY cumency™) a5 detailed in each Fund's Offering
Memorandum {he "Offering Memorandum ™), For the purposes of the
presentation of the NV and the total reum in the NAY urmency, the
beginning and endng MANe are cofveited wsing the pencd beqgrning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dstibutions are comeerted using the
exchange rate at the ime of the distribution. See the folowing table for the
W ourrency of each respective Fund;
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Furesonsl
Frandi Tl HAY Curramny &
PIMCD Shout-Toen Sormiogy
= &0 Aushalion dollas | US dollar
o CusEm L5 dofls UE dollar
¢ JUPT Japasdsa yin U5, dollar
= Jusm Japasesayen US. dollar
. FY Japanse yan LS. dollar
L] LIS U5 dals U5 dollar

FAMCT Bty Formign Lows Dussion Fund Jepanena yen UE dolla
FIMCO Bermuds U5 Row Duranen Fusd RN i i S dollw
PILACH) Emegursy Maskns B Fuund LITE} Jageaneca yen UE dolla
FIMOD Emesgpreg Mashae Boted Furd B 115, dollar U5 dollar
= Us0
| FIMICD Emerging Mk Bond Fund [Tenfisdged] | Japanesayen | U5 dollat
PIMCD Emaspinig Maskne: Bosd Fused ) Jagaan g yn 0% dallar
s JiEnl
. EDA)
= J(RA
* JMON)
L] J [TEW)
»  JER
FaWC Eusres Total Flanars Fuond Eura [T
Pik0D Feal Regem Fund U dollar UE dedla

{d] Multiclass Operations Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
righits 1o the assets of the Fund equal o that of other Chasses of te same
Fund, watept for spedfic assets and gaing and losses designated o a Class
relating to aErency hedgng operations. Incorme, non-Class spedfc expentes,
and non-Class specfic realized and unrealized capital gains and losses are
#ocated toeach (1ass of units based on the relative net assets of eadh Class
of the respective Fund. Qass spedfic espenses qumently indude
managerment, shvisory, adminisirative, agendy and dismitaution fees, wihene
applicable

() Distribution Pelley The folloeing table showes the antidpated frequency
of distributions or each Fund. Distributions fom each Fund may be dedared
and distributed to Unitholders onfy upon the authonzation of the Manager,
wihich authorization may be withheld at the Manager®s desretion

Declared Daiy end Faid Momhiy:

PRACO Ewe Total Ashun Fond
Declored and Peid Monthiy:

PO Emer e Marketz Bond Fand [ITF)
PIMCO Emergeng Markets Bond Fund [en-Hedged)
PRACO Emergng Markats Bond Fund |1
PRACD Short-Term Suateny
a UM
= |l

Doalared and Pad Quartacy

PRACO Berrmisda Forergn Low Durawon Fund
PRACO Barrrudla LS. Lows Duration Fund

Declarad and Paid Annually

PIMCO Rl Return Fond
PRCD Bt Term Strategy
= AU

Thes Munager ¢ oo not expect to declare distributions with respect 12 thia
Fand {or Clezsas 1hereof, if applicable], bus may, in its dizeration, deciers and
dintribulians to the Ursthalders at sy tise.

PRACO Emerging Markets Bond Fund M)

Dustributions, if any, will generally be made from the relevant Fund’s (or
Clags's, if applicable) net imvestment income. In addition, the Manager may
duthorize the payment of net realized capital gains available for distibution
Additional distributiors may be dedared as the Manager deems appropriate
Custriftwtions paid with respect toany Fund (or Class thereod, if spplicabie)
will reduce the NAV of sisch Fund {or Class thereof, if applicable). At the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash distibutions from a Fund (o Class theneof,
it applicabde] may esther be reinvested in additional wnits of a Fund (or Class
thereat, it applicable) or paed o 3 Unithalder in cash. Cath paymen 14 wall be
paid in the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund (or Class thereof, if
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applicable) may declare further distribitions if corsidered necessanyin order
10 intan a reasonabie level of distibutions for 3 Rand (or Class thereod, if
applicable) In the svent that there is inadequate net income and net realized
captal gains 1o pay 4 dstnbubon of 4 Fund (of Class thensal, 11 appdicatde)
redquired by the Cffering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
congsting of a portion of the capital of such Fund {or Class therect, if
applicable). Distributions nof oollected withan sixyears from their due date
will lapee and will acorie to the benefitof the relevent Find dor Class theneod,
if appficable)

il New Accounting Prencmmcements I Miirch 2070, the Hpanoal
Acocunting Standands Board (" FASE") rsaued an Acooiniting Standards
Uipcate " ASUT), ASU 2020-04, which pronedes optional quidance 1o ease the
patential accounling burden sssodiated with rangtioning e ay from the
London interbank: Offered Rate (TLUB0R ™) and other reference rates that are
expected to be discontinued. The ASU s effectively immed ately upon releass
of the update on March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022 At this Sme,
mandgement i evaluatng the implications of thee dranges on the fingndal
statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASLUREMENTS

{a} Investment Valsation Pelicies The price of a Fund's units i3 bazed on
the Fund's NAY. The NAY of a Fund, or each of its Classes, as applicable, is
determned by dividing the: total walue of pontfobo imestments and ather
assels attmbutable to that Fund or Class, kess any ligbilities, by the total
ffeer of units cutstanding of that Furd of Class On each Fund's Dealing
[y {35 desoribed in the aament ':"f'!l?l'lﬂfl Memorandism of the Tnast,

Furd units are ordinanly vaboed as of the doge of regular trading on the New
Tork S1ock Exchange ("NYSE Clote™) Infoemation that becomes kndwn b9
the Funds or their sgents after the Bme as of which NAV has been caloulated
on 3 particular day will not generaly be used to retroactively adjust the price
ofa SEcunfy or the NAY determined eadlier that day. Each Fund resenes the
right o dhange the time &5 ofwhich its NAV i5 calaulated if the Fund diodes
earlier

For purposes of caiqulating a NAY, portfolio seqenties and other assets for
which marker quotes are readily available arevalued at market valpe. Market
wale 15 generaily determined on the bass of official dosing prices or the last
reported cabes prices, of if no Sales are fepcited, baded on quotes obtained
froen established marker makers or peices (nduding evaluated peices) suppbed
by the Fundt” appeoved pricing services, quotation reporing Systems and
ofher third-party sources (bogether, " Fridng Sendces”), The Fynds wil
noirnally e pricng dans for domesic equity seasities received shorty after
the W5E Close and do not nonmatly t3ke into socount rading, dearances or
seitlements that take place after the NYSE Close. If market value pracing is
used, a foreign (non-U 5 ) eduity secunity raded on a foreign exchange oron
mare than one exchange i5 fypically walued using priding information from the
entfiange consadensd by the Manager to be the primany exchange. A foreign
{mon-LU S ) equity sedurity will be walued a5 of the dose of radng on the
Tareign exchange, o the NYSE Chose, if the NYSE Close aoturs before the end
of trading on e foreign exchandge. Domeshc and Tofeign (Ron-U 5. ) teed
income sequrities, non-exchange traded dervatives, and equity oplions are
nomnally vaued on the basis of quotes cbitained from brokers and dealers o
Fridng Semices using data reflecting the earier dosing of the prindpal
fkarkets fof thode secufitied. Prices oblained fram Pricandg Sendoes may be
based on, among other things, infomation provided by market makers or
estimates of market values obtained fFom yéeld data refating to investments of
secyrities with similar characteristics, Certain ficed inoome seqanities
purchased on a delayed-gelivery basis are marked o market daity untl
setriement an the forwand settbernent date. Bcchange-traded options, except

equity options, futures and oplions on futures, are valued at the setdement
pernce determaned by the relevant eidhangs. Swap agreements are valued on
thie hass of bid quates obtained Trom brokers and dealers or market-based
prtced supplied by Friong Seraces of other plang sonces. A Fund's
imvestments in open-end management investment companies, other than
exchange-iraded funds ("ETFs™), are valuad at the NAYS of sudh investments
Open-end management investment companess may indude afSliated funds

& faregn (rom=L05 ) edquity seaunty’s value hat matenaly changed after the
dhose of the sensiny's primary exchange of princpal macket but before e
NYSE Close, the security may be valued at fair value based on procedures
established and approved by the Manager. Foreign (non-U S equity
sequrities that do not trade when the NYSE ks open are also valued at fair
value, With respect to foreigen (non-U 5. equity securities, 3 Fund may
determing the fairvalue of imedments based on information provaded by
Fricing Senvices and other third-party vendors, which may recoemmend fair
value or adustments with reference to other secunities, indices or a2l In
considering whether far valuation is required and in detenmining fair

values, 3 Fund may, among other things, consider significant events fwhich
may be considered to indude changes in the vatue of LS. sequities of
st incheed) that aoour after the dede of the relevant market and befeore
the NYSE Close A Fund may whilize modeling tools provided by thind-pary
vendors o detenmine fai values of foreign (non-U 5 ) seaurities. For these
purposes, amy movement in the applicable reference index of instrument

(" Zenc trigger ) between the eafser dose of the applicabie foreign market
and the NYSE Clode may be deerned fo be a sgnificant event, prompting the
application af the pricing model (effectivety resulting in daity far

valuatbors), Foreign exchanges may penmit trading in foreign {non-U.%)
equity secunities on days when the Trust is not open for business, which may
tesulein & Fund's peatfolio imvestments Being affected when Limtholders ate
unabde 10 buy of sl units

seniior secured floating rate loans for which an active se@ndany market exsts
o a reliabile degree will ba valusd at the medn of the last available bidlak
prices in the market for such loans, a5 provided by a Pricing Sendce. Senior
seaued floating rate loans for which an active secondary market does nat
exist 0 2 relidble deqgres will be valued at tar value, which is miended to
appeorirnale macked value In vauing & senor seduned floatng cate loan at
fair value, the factors considered may indude, but are not lirmited fo, the
following: (a) the creditwartteness of the borrower and any intermedate
partidpants, () the terms of the loan, {c) recent prices in he market for
sarmalar [oans, if amy, and {d) recent prices in the market for instuments of
sumilar quality, rate, penod until naxt inderest rate reset and matunty

Ivvestmen s vakued in cumendes other than the functional cumency

of a Fund are converted to the Junctional currency using exchange rates
obdained from Pricing Services. As a result, the value of such investments and,
in oum, the Hay of he Fund's units may be affecied by changes in e valus
of cusrencies in refatson to the functional cumency. The value of irvesmenis
traded in for £ign markers o denoeminated m curmendes ogher than

the fumcional currency may be affected significanthy on a diy that the Trust is
ot open for business. As a resulk, fo the extent that a Fund holds foreign
fmon-LU5 ) imvesimnents, e value of those nvesiments iy charsge i Gmes
wihien you cannod pundhase, redeem of exchange units and the value of such
Invvesaireen b will e eeflected in the Fund s next calod ated NAY

Inveaments for which mackel quotes o market bated valuabons are nat
readiy available are vaued at fair value a5 determined in good faith by

the Manager of persons acting at their direction. The Manager has adopied
mithads bof valuing secaunies and other assels in ahoumalances whers
market quotes are noT readily available, and has delegated o PIMCO the
responsitafity for applying the far valuation methods. In the event that markset
quites or market based valuations are not ready availatie, and the sequrity
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oF asset cannod b2 walued pursuant to & Manager approved valuation
e, thee vakue of the sexurity or a3set will be determined in good faith by
the Valuation Committes. Market quates are considened not readily available
I arasrsLances wiverd thene 15 an atsence of aurment or nelfaile marke
based data (e g, rade information, bedfask information, ind cative market
quotations "Broker Quotes™), Fridng Sendces’ prices), induding where
events oorur after the diose of the relevant market, bt prioe o the NYSE
Close, that matedaly sffect the values of the Fund's secusities of Gisels
addition, markel quatet are considered not readity avalable when, due to
extraordinany droymstances, the exchanges or markets an which the
secunifies trade do not gpen for trading for the entire day and no other
market priges are available. The Manager is responsibiz for monitoring
significant svents that ey matekally affect the values of the Fund's seaurities
of assets and for determiming whether the value of the applicible seqinties or
Agsets should be réevalisated in light of sudh sigmficant events

When a Rend wees far waluanon o determine the valwe of a porthalio seanty
or ather asset for purposes of calaulating its NAY, sech investments will not
b priced on the bads of quotes from the primany market inwhadn they ane
traded, bul rather may be priced by another method that the Manager o
persons acting 81 their ditection believe refects fair valde. Fairvaliation may
redquine subjective determinations about the value of a secunity. While

the Trust's poibcy is intended to result in a calotation of 3 Fund's NAW tat
fairty reflects sequnty values as of the time of prdng, the Tt cannot ensgre
that fair values determined by thi Manager of persons acing a1 ther
direction would acosrately refiect the price that a Fund could obtain for a
security if it were to dispose of that sequrity as of the time of pridng ifar
instance, in a forced or distressed sale), The prices used by a Fund may differ
froe the value that would be reafized if te seouriies were sold

il Fair Vadue Hierarchy L5 GAAF desorines far value a5 Me pice hat

A Fund wiould recerae to sell an asget of pay 1o ransher a Hability in an orderly
ransaction bebween market participants at the meadusrement date. it
establiches & fair value hierardhy Hhal priclizes inputs 10 waluation methods
and requires dsdosure of the fair value hierarchy, separately for each major
category of ascets and labilities, that tegregates far value Mesurements N
levels (Leved 1, 2, 0r 3). The inputs o methodobody used for valuing seoaities
ane R0t neoetaily anindicaton of the ks astociated with imeting in those
securities Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value Heranchy are defined as follows

» Level 1—Ouoted prices in active markets or exchanges for identical assets
ans iabiliges

* Leved 2—Significant other absenvabie inputs, which may indisds, but are
nal bmited to, quoted prices for Smilar assers o Habeities in markers hat ane
active, quoted paces fof identical of dmilar ssets of lisbikies in markes that
are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are chservable for the
assets.of liabilities (such as interest rakes, yield quves, volatilifies, prepayment
spieck, loss severites, aredit isks and defaull rates) or other market

o obarated inguats

& Level 3—Significant unobsenvable inpts based an the best information
available in the aroumatances, 1 the edent observable inputs ane ot
availabde, whidh may indude assumptions made by the Manager or persons
aciing at their direcsion that are used in determnining the falr value of
invesments

In accandance with the requicements of U S, GAAP, the amounts of ransfers
i and cut of Level 3, if material, are dedosed in the Notes 10 Schedule of
Imvestments for each respedive Fund

For fair valuations wsing significant unchservable mputs, U5 GAAP requires
to discdese wansfers inte and cut of Level 3 of the fair value hierardny and
purchates and iscues of Livel T ascers and liabilites during the pesiod

Addtionally, LS GAAP requires quantitative information regarding the
siqnificant unobsenvable imputs used in the derermination of fair value of
Feets of liabilives categorized 34 Level 3 in the far value hierarchy In
acoofdance with the requiremints of LS GAAF, a fasr vabue Fierarchy, and it
material, details of agnificant unobservable inputs, have been induded in the
Modes to Schedisle of Imestments for eadh respective Fund

{e] Valustion Techniques nnd the Fair Valus Hierarchy

Level 1.and Level 2 rading a=sets and trading liabilities, at bair value The
valuagon methods {or "techniques™) and significant inputs used in
determining the fair valuwes of portinio securities o other assets and liabiiges
categaized a5 Leved 1 and Level 2 of the fair vatue heerarchy are 35 follows:

Fixed income securifies includng corporate, convertibde and minicps bonds
andnates, U5 government agéndes, LS. meaisry obligabions, soveredgn
Iszues, bank loans, comer tible preferred securities and non-lU % bonds are
normathy walued on the bass of quaotes cbtained from beokers and dealers of
Fricing Sendces that use trcier dedler quotations, reported frades or
valuation estimates from their intemal pricing models. The Pricing Senices’
internal rodels ute inpuis that e obtervable wsch 3 issuer details, interest
rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds, credit riskafpneads, default ranes and
quobed prives for Smilar asets. Securiies that use mila vauation
technbques and inputs a5 desibed above are categonized & Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Fiwed mcome secuiies purdhated on 4 delaped-delivery batis or 5 a
repurchase commment in & sale-bayback transacion are marked to mad:et
daily unitil setdement at the forwand settlement diate and are calegonized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Morgage-retated and assel-backed sequrities are usualy issued a5 separate
wandches, of dasses, of secuniies within sach deal. These secunties ane also
reoemally valued by Fricng Sendces that use broker-dealer quotations,
feparted rades of waluation estimates from heir intema pridng models The
peicing madels for these seaurities usually consider trancheJeved atfributes,
qurrent market data, estmated cash flows and market-Dased vield spreads for
each anche, and ingorporate deal collsteral performance, a5 available
Mirtgage-related and assel-badoed seourines thatuse smils valuation
techinbques and inputs as described dbove are categonmed a5 Level 2 of the
fanr value hieranchy

Coremon stodes, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and finandal dervative
ingtruments, such a5 futures contracts, rights and wamants, of opions. an
futures that are raded on a national securities exchange, are stated at the
I3t reported sale of sefthernent price on the day of valuation To the exten
these seounites are actvely traded and valuation sdjusirents sre not applied,
theey are categorized as Level 1 of the fair value hierandhy

Investmen ts valued (denominated) in qumendies other than the lunclional
ourrency of a Fund are converted to the functional oeTency wing exchange
ranes {ourmen oy $pod snd fonward rates) abitaned froem Pricing Serdces. As A
result, the WAV of 4 Fund's uniis may be affected by changes in the vialue of
currénces in relation o the fenctional carendy. The vabae of securibes traded
Infioreign markets or denominated in qumendes other than the functional
qurrency may be affected sgnificantly on a day that the Trustis not open for
buginess. Valuation adustments may be spplied 10 eriain senrities that ae
solely traded on a foreign exchanges 1o acoount for the market movemen(
between the dise of the foreign market and the WY 5E Close These securnities
are valued using Fricing Sendces that consider the correlation of e fracing
pattems of the foreign secunty to the infraday radng in Se U5 markets for
investments. Sequnities usng these valuation adustments are Categonized &
Lewel 2 of the tair value hieranchy. Preferred sedunbes and other equites

vl Repert | By 31, 2000 ]

257/381



MNotes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

traded on inactive markets or valued by reference to similar instruments are
also categorzed as Level 2 of the fair value hierardy

Evuiny-linked securites are valued by referencing the Last repormed sale or
seftlement price of the linked referended equity dn the day of valuaion
Foreign exchange adjustments are spplied to the last reported price 1o
convert the linked equity"s rading cumency to the conlract’s setting cumency
These imestments ane categotized a5 Level 2 of the far value heerardhy

Irvesiments in regisiered open-end mvesiment gpmpantes (oiher than ETF)
will b valued based upon the NAVS of such invesirmenits and ane cateoonzed
as Level 1 of the far value hierarchy Investments in unregistered open-end
imvestment companies will be calod ated based upon the NAVs of wich
ivestments and are considerad Level 1 provided that the MAVS are
obsenvable, caloulated daty and ane the value Jtwhich both purdhases and
sales will be conducted

Equity exchange-traded options and over the counter finandal denvalive
mamrusmenty, sich &% fonyand fersgn Currendy Conract and oplions conracs,
derive thesr vaue from underbang asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
other inputs o 3 coenbination of these facors, Thess conracts are normally
valued on the bases of quates abrsingd from a qualason repaorting Sysbm,
estabiithed market makers of Pidng Seraces (normally determined a3 of the
NYSE Clase). Depending on the product and the temms of the ransaction,
financal derivative insuments can be valued by Fridng Senices using a
series of bechiniques, induding simulation pridng modsls. The prcing models
use inguts that are atrserved from acively quoted markets sud &5 quoted
prices, Bsuer detals, indioes, badiask spreads, inmteredt rates, implied
walatilities, yield curves, dividends and exchange rates. Finandal derivative
instruments that use similar valuason tedniques and inputs 25 desdibed
abiove are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hieranchy

Cenfrally deared swaps and owver the counter swaps derive their walue from
underlying assel prices, indices, refierence rates, and other nputs of a
combination of these factors. They are valued wing a broker-dealer bid
quotation of on matket-based prices pronded by Fricing Services (nomnally
determined as of the NYSE Close), Centrally deared swaps and over the
Courter Saaps oan e valued by Pricing Sendces using 8 senes of technogues,
induckng simutation pricng models. The pridng models may use inputs that
are obsineed l'-‘l'.ll'l'ldl]l'\ﬂ':hf quioted rmarkers sudn &5 the cverright index Svag
rate (TOIST), LIBOR forerard rate, mterest rates, vield cunvet and aedt
spreads. These sequrities are categovized as Leved 2 of the far value hierandy

Level 3 trading assets and bading lbilities, at fair value 'When a fair
valration method i apgiied by the Manage thal uses domficant
uncdservable inputs, invesoments will be priced by a method that

the Manager of perwons s78ng a1 their direction believe reflects fair value and
are ctegarized a5 Level % of the fair value hierarchy. The valuation
techniques and sigeficant inputs used in determining the fair values of
porifolic assets and Rabilites categonized as Leved 3 of the far vakie hierardy
ane a5 follows:

Procy pridang procedures set e base price of & fooed income seqinty and
subsaquently aust the price propartion dby 1o market value changes of a pre-
determined secunty desrmed o be comparable in duration, generally a LIS
Treasuny or soversign note based on country of issuance. The hase price may
be & broker-cealer quote, ransaciion price, of an internal valwe a5 derived by
analyas of markel dala. The bate price of the sxurily may be resst on 3
peericadic bass based on the availability of market data and procedures
approeed by the Valuation Commattes Significant dhanges in the
unokservabe inputs of te proxy pdng process (he base price) would result
in direct and propostional changes in the far value of the sequnity. These
securities are cabegorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierandhy

i third-party evaluated vendor pricing is not available or not desmed to be
indicative of fair valise, the Manager may ebed (o obtain Broker Cuotes
direcy from the broker-dealer or passed through from & thindparty ven dor
In the event that f2ir value i$ based upan a single sourced Broker Cuote,
these sequmities are calegonzed a5 Level 3 of the fair value hisrarchy. Brober
Cuates are typically received from established market parSapants. Although
independently recenved, the Manager does not have the transparency o view
the undething inputs which sepport the maket quotation Significant
changes in the Broker Cuote would have drect and propcetional deanges in
the fair value of the sequrity

Short-term debt instruments (sudh a5 commerdial paper) having a remaining
maturity of 60 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, solong as the
amioetized cost value of sudh short-temm debtinstruments i approvimately th
saire & fhe fair vaue of the instrument a5 detemined without the wse o
amiortized cost valuation These securities ane categorized as Level 2 or Level

3 of the tar valwe hierardy depending on the sounce of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

() Delayed-Delivery Tramsactions Certan Funds may purchase o sell
senurifies on 3 detayed-delivery basis, These transacmons imvobve 3
comimetment by @ Fund fo purchase or sell securities for a predetermined price
o yiekd, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the qustomary
setement penod. When delayed-debvery ransactons are IZII.II.‘.-‘ui‘"jI'II;.

3 Furedwill designate of recee a5 colfateral Bigusd assets in an armount
sufickent Lo meet the purdhase price of respective obligations. When
purchasing a seasity on 4 delaved-delivery basis, 3 Fund assumes the ghts
and ks of ownersup of the seaunty, induding the Ak of prce and yield
fuctuations, and ties such flecuations inta aocount when detemmining i
MAV. A Fund may dispase of or renegotiate a del aped-delivery ransaction
after it is entered into, which may result in a regiized gain of loss. When

& Fund has sold a sequnity on a delayed-delivery basis, the Fund does not
partidpate in future gains and losses with respect to the sedurity

(b] Inflstion-Indexed Bomds Certain Funds mayinvest in inflation-indexed
bonds. inflation-indied bonds are fixed income securifies whose prindpal
valug 15 pediadically adusted by the rate of inflaton. The miened rae on
these bonds is generally fixed atissuance at a rate bower than typical bonds
Creer the life of an inflanon-indeoed bond, however, interest will be paid
based on 3 principal value, which is adusted for inflation. Ay increase o
decrease in the prindpal amount of an inflation-indeced bond wil b2 induded
5 interest income on the Statements of Operations, even though investors do
o Fedino their prnapal untd matunty. Repayment of te ongna bond
peindpal updn matuity (s adjusted for inflation) is guaranteed in the cate of
U5 TIPS, For bonds that do not provide 3 smilar quarantee, the adusted
prindpal value of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the ongina
peirdpal

{e} Leam Participations, Azsignments and Driginatieas Certaln Funih may
imeest in direct debt inmstruments which are interests in amounts cwed 10
lemders of lending Syndcaties by corporate, govemmental, of ofher bormowers
A Fund's investments in [oans may be in the form of partidpations in loans or
Fxsignments of 3l or a partion of eans froen thisd perties of imvestments in of
caiginanons of laans by the Furd. A losn is often admirestensd by 4 bank o
other Srand 8 mstitstion (he “lepder”) that acds a HEnL for all holders. The
agent adminessters the tarms of the ban, &5 spedhied in the loan agreement

& Funed may ireest in mulBple series or Tanches of 3 loan, which may have
vanying terms and camy different assodiated risks. When a Fund purchases
assignments from lenders it Joguines dredt fights sgainst the bomowers of the
laans. Thiede loans may ndude pariapations in brdge loars, which ane [ans
taken out by bomosvers for a short period (ypically less than one year)
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pendng amangement of more permaenent finandng through, for example, the
issuance of bomds, fregquently high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
ACUiE N,

The types of logns and related inwestments in which the Rands may irest
indude, among athers, senior [oans, subcrdnated loans (nduding second
fien boans, B-Motes and mezznine loans), whole loans, commiercial real
estate and other commerdal loans and structured Ioans. A Fund may
afgnate |oans of oquine dinect iIntenests in loans through primary boan
distributhons andror in private ransacions. In the case of subordinated boans,
there may be sgnifcant indebbedness ranking ahead of the bomowers
obdigation to the hodder of such 3 loan, indleding in Se event of the
Domower s insolvendy. Mezzanine loans & typicaly sequred by a pledge of
an equity Entersst in the mortgage borrower that owns the real estate rather
than an inberesl in 4 morgage

It in Boans may indude uwifunded loan commilrments, which ane
contractual obligations for funding Unfunded hoan commitments may indude
revohing credit fadlites, which may obdigate a Fund to supply additional cash
tos thie Bovrower on demand. Unfunded loan commitments represent 3 future
obligaton in full, seen ihough a percentage of Se comenitied Amount may
nat be utized by the bomower When ifvesting in a loan partigpation,

3 Fund has the Aght to receive payments of pincpal, interest and any fees o
which it is entifled anly from the bender calling the loan agreement and only
upen receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
recene 3 commitment fee based on the undrdwn portion of fie undelying
e o crecht podtion of 3 loan. I certasn cinuenstances, 3 Fund may recene &
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a ban by a bomower. Fees eamed or
paid e recorded as 3 component of interest income oF interest expense,
respectively, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
are refiected a5 a liabiling on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites

{d} Mertgnge-Related nnd (ther Amsel-Backed Securities Certin Funds
iy invest in mortgage-retated and other asset-backed searities that dinedly
or indirectly represent A partiopation in, or are secured by and payable frorn,
lesanis on real propenty. Morigage-related sequrities are aeated from poods of
residential or commendal morigage loans, incuding mortgage kuens made by
savings and loan instilutions, rmomgage bankers, commeraal banks snd
others. Thede wcurities provide 3 monthly payment which consasts of both
nterest and principal. intefesd ray be determinied by foed or sdustable rates
The rate of prepayments. an underying martgages will atfect the price and
volatlity of a mortgace-related seourity, and may have the effect of
shortening of extendng he etectve duraton of the Secunty relaive towhal
wears antapated ot the dme of puschase. The Gy payment of principal and
imierest of certain morlgage-rel ated seaarities is quaranteed with the hl faith
and gedt of the U S, Govemmend. Fools oeated and guaranteed by non-
govemnmental issuers, induding government-sponsored corporations, may be
supported by varows forms of ingurance of guarantess, but there can be no
A%urance that prvale inuaners of QUARANTGN can maet thist obligaticons under
the insuranoe polides of QUarantes arangements. Many of te rsks of
imeesting i morigage-related sequnties secured by commendial morgage
lpans reflect the effects of locd and other ecomomic conditions on real estate
rearicers, thie abwlity of tenants 1o make lease payments, and the absity of 3
property to atiract and retain tenants. These sequrities may be less liquid and
iy exhibel greater price volatlity than other bepes of mangage-related o
other asset-backed securities. Other asset-backed sequnties ane created from
many types of assels, induding, but not limited 1o, 3uto loedns, acounts
recedvable, such as aredt cand receleables and hospital acoount recefvables,
hirre equity loans, sudent koars, boat loaans, mobde home baans,
rereational vehicle loans, manufaciured housing loans, snraflt leases,
cofrputer |eates and syndicated bank loares. The Fund may irvest in any kel

of the capital stnuchere of an issuer of mortgage-backed oo asset-badied
sequnties, indudng the equity o “first|oss” ramche

(] Cellateralized Mertgage Obligatiens (" MC:") are deb cbliganoms of &
legal emiity that are callateralized by wihole martgage loans of pivate
mortgage bonds and divided info dasses. CMOs are siructured into multiple
diazses, often refemed to as “tranches”, with each dass bearing a different
stated masurity and entitled o 3 different schedide for payments of prindpal
and inderest, induding prepaymnents. C MOS Py be s liquid and may exdilat
aqreater price volatility than other types of morigage-related or asser-badeed
Learilied

(1 Stripped Martgage-Backed Secwrities |"50ES") are denvative mult-
(a3 mortgage sequities, SMES are uswally stuctured with twg dasses that
receive cifferent propoetions of te interest and princpal ESmbuons o &
pocl of mortgage assets. An SMES will have one dass thatwill recesve 3l of
Bhe i keredt (e inberestanly of 710" dass), white the other dass wall necene
the entire prindpal {the prindpa-only or "PO” dass), Payments received for
1025 are included in interest ingome on the Statements of Operations. Because
oo princpal will be recesved at the maturity of an 10, adustments are made
10 the cost of the security om 3 monthly bass untl mananty. Thes
adustments e induded in interest noome on the Statements of Operations.
Payments received for P05 are rested as reductions to the vost and par vake
of the ssamities

{g) Collsteralized Debt Obligations ("C00<") indude Collateralized Bond
Cidigations ("CBOs™), Collateralized Loan Cbligations (™CL0s™) and other
cirraladty structured securities. CBOS snd CLO ane types of astet-backed
securities. A CBO s a rust which is backed by 3 diversified pool of high rigk,
beliowr investrment grade fied income securities A CLO0S 8 st hypecaly
collateralized by a pool of loass, which may indude, among others, domestic
a0 Todengn sereor Secured loans, sermor unsedured loans, and subardinate
corparate loans, indudng hoans that may be rated below nvestment grade of
equivalentunrated kans. The risks of an investment in a CDO depend largely
e The type of the coll ateral seurities. and the dass of the (DO in which

a Fund irmeests. | addibion 1o the normal nsks asso0ated with fixed indome
sengifies dsoussed elsewhere in is repoet and the Funds’ Offering
Mernodandum (e.q., prepayment risk, aedit sk, Bgusdiny risk, marked risk,
structural fisk, legal risk and inberest rate risk fwhich may be exacerbated if
the witeiedt rate payable on & stiuctred Snandng dhanges based oh
multiples of changes in interesk rates or inversely 1o changes in interest
ratesfh, CBOs, CLOS, and other COOs camy additional risks indudng, butnot
lirmbed 16, (1) The podsabality that destibubons feonm collateral secunBes wall nol
Dot acdeeqquate 10 make inberestof other payrents, () te quality of the
collateral may dedine in value or defaulr, (i) the risk that a Fnd may imest
in CBCrs, CLOs, or ather CD0s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (v)
the complex struchire of the sequrity may not be fully understood at the time
of investment and may produce despu tes with the issuer or unexpectesd
Imvesermen D nesudrs

{h} Payment In-Kind Secwities Certain Funds may imeest in paymentinind
sequrities (TPIKS™). PIES may give the issuer the option at each interest
payment date of making interest paymenis in éither cash andior additional
debt securities, Those additicnal debt, securigies usually have the spme term,
indluding rratuity dates and interect rates, and assodated fids 25 e
ceiginal bonds The daby market quatatsons of the ongnal bonds may indude
e docrussd inbenssd (referred o &5 2 "dirty price ™) and requice 3 paorata
adustment from the unrealized appredation or depredation on imvestments
ty interest receivatle on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

{i} Restricted Secwrities Ceriain Funds may hotd investments that are
subyect 1o bega of coniractual resmchons an resale. Thete secunibes may be
Sobd provanely, but mury be required i De registined o exemphed from: such
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reqistration befone being sobd o the public. Private placement securifies are
generally conggered o be restricted. [isposal of resiricted invesiments iy
imvobve Gime-Consumng negatatons and expentes, and prompt sale at an
Acceplable price may be diHiculn to achieve. Restricned imeestments held by
the Funds at May 31, 2020, as applcable, are disdosed in the Notes 1o
Lchedule of Invesiments

(i} Strwetured Motes Certan Funds may imest in struchured notes and other
redated indruments, which afe privabely negotiated debit obligations in which
the prindpal and’ or interest ks detemnined by reference 1o the performance of
2 bendimark assel, mankel of interest rate (an “embedded index "), sudh &
selected securities, an ndex of sequnities or spedfied interest rates, or the
differeniial performance of Te 255218 of markets, such a3 indexes reflecting
bands. Structured instruments may be isoed by corporations, induding
baariks, o wedll 3% by governimental agences The terme of widh siructured
instmements nommially provide that their prindipal andfor interest payments are
T b jursbed pevanck OF dowTmirands {ut ok 'hﬁl’lh' nat below zeng) (o
reflect changes in the embedded mdex whibe te Sructured instments ane
outstanding. As a result, the interest andiod prindpal payments. that may be
meadk on & sructured pooduct rdy vary widely, depending on a variety of
factors, induding the volstility of She embedded index and the effect of
changes in the embedded index on principal andfor inferest payments

ki LS. Gavermment Agencies o1 Gavernment-Spansared Enterprizes.
Certan Funds may imvest in securiies of U5 Govemment agentes or
govemiment-sponsored enterprises. U5, Government secunities are
obligations of and, in certain cates, guaranteed by, the LS Govemnment, its
agendies of instamentalites. Some U5 Government seounities, such s
Trieasury bills, nabes and bonds, snd tecuitied quaranteed by te Govermimen]
Hational Mortgage Assodation (TGHMA™ or "Ginnie Mae ™), are supporied
Ery the full Laith and credit of the U5 Govesnment; others, such as those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
ot from the LS. Departrment of the Treasury (the "5 Treasury ™) snd
ofhers, such a3 thode of the Federal National Morlgage Astoiation (" FNMA™
or “Fannie Mae"), are wpponed by the decretionany suthority of the 115
Gowemment to purchass the agendy’s obligations. U5 Govemmend secunities
My incude 2en0 coupon Seounties, which do not dstribute interest on a
qument basks and tend o b sulbject 1o a greater risk. than interest-paying
SECuribes of Smldr matunmes

Govennireni-relabed quarantors (ue , nok badded by the full Tach and redi of
the U5 Govemment) indude FNMA and the Federadl Home Loan Morigage
Corporation (TFHIMC™ or " Freddie Mac™). FNMA is 3 government-spon sored
corporation. FMMA purchases comentiona {.e ., not insured or guarantesd by
amy government agency) reshdentia momgages from a listof spproved
sellenfoenaoers which incude state and federdly chamered savings and baan
assodations, mutuad savings banks, commendal banks and aedt unions and
martgage bankers Pass-throwgh securities sased by FNMA are quarantesd as
to timehy payment of principal and intersst by FNMA, but are not Backed by
the full faith and credit of the US. Goverament. FHLMEC isues Pt Qpaon
Certificates (" PCS™), whidh are pass-theough seourities, each representing an
undbvided meerest in a pool of residential morigacges. FHLMC guarantess the
temely paymment of interest and ultimate collection of piindpal, but PCs are not
barckied by the full faith and credit of the LS. Govemment

I e 2009, under the Singls Sequrity initative, FMA and FELMC started
issuing Uniform Mongage Badeed Senmities (TUMES”) in place of their
aurent offerings of TEA-eligitle securles The Sngle Seasity initative seeks
b supepoet thee gweer all liuidity of the TBA market and aligns the
charactenstics of FHMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Sequnity initiatve may have on e market for TEA and ather mortgage-
backed saouiies are undertan

Roll-timing strategies can be usedwhere 2 fund seeks o extend the
expiration or maturity of a position, such a5 & TEA sequrity on an underiying
Fesel, by choding oul the potion bedore sqaration and opening a new
podaticen wath respect o subdstantally the Saime undedying asset with a | ater
expiration date TBA securities purchased ar sobd are reflected on the
Statements of Asses and Liskelites a5 an asset or ligkality, respechively

(1) When-lasued Tramzactions Cerlain Funds may purchase or sel securnitios
on 3 when-isswed basis. Thess ransactions are made condifionally because 3
seaurity, dthough authonzed, has notyer been fssued in the marke
Trardactions 1o punchase or sell searities on 3 when fewed basis imaodve

A comimitment by 4 Fund to purchade or sell these seaurites for a
peedetemined price or vield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
e austomany setthement perod. A Fund may sell when-ssied senunties
befiore they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain of loss

(m] Bank Obligatiens Bank cbligations inwhich a Fend may mwvest indude
centificates of deposit, bankers aoceptances, and fixed dome deposis
Certificates of deponit are negotiable certificates iswed against funds
deposited in 3 commercial bank for & definite penind of time and eaming a
spedfied return Bankers' acceptances are negotizble drafis or bills of
exchange, nommall drawn by an importer or exporter 1 pay for spediic
mierchandiie, which are " atcepted” by a bank, meaning mn eftect, that the
bank unconditbonally agrees o pay the face value of the imstrument on
maturity, Foed tirme deposits are bank obligaticn: payable a1 a stated
maturity date and beating inferest 21 a fimed rate. Fixed time deposits may be
withdraw on demand by the Imveston, but may be sbjec 1o eary
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market conditions and the
remadining matenty of the obitgation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The following disdiosures contain information on the Funds” abelity 1o lend of
borrony cash of seourities 1o the extent perrmiited under de Offering
Memnorandum, which may be viewed a5 bomowing or fnandng ransaciions
Loy the Funds. The locaton of these instruments is desaibed bedow, For 3
detabed desaipgion of cedt and cunterparty risks that can be awsodated
wilth bewrosings and ather finanding transacions, please see Mote 7,
Frindpal Risks

{a] Repurchase Agreements Certain Funds may engage in repurchate
aqreements. Under the terme of 2 typecal repurdhase agresment,

& Funed purchases an underhying debit obdigation {collateral) subject to an
obligation of the seller to reprchase, and a Fund to resell, the cbitgation at
an agresd-upon pice and time. In an open matunty repunchase agreement,
there is no pre-getenmined repurdhate date and the agreement can be
terminated by e Fund or counterparty at any time. The marked valpe of the
oollateral must be equal toor exceed the total amount of she repurchase
obligations, induding interesi. Repurchase agreements, induding aorued
interest. are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabalities. nerest
eammed 1s redorded a5 a companent of intefest income on the Statements of
Cperations, In penods of inoreased demand for colaterd, 3 Fund maypay a
fee for receipt of coflateral, wiich mdy resull in mlerest expense 1o the Rund

{b) Reverse Repurchnse Agresments Cerlain Funds may enter into reverse
repurchase agreements. In 3 reverse repurdhase agreement, 3 Fund delivers a
secufily in exchange loe cash 10 Tmanaal mettubon, the counterparty, with
A simultanecys agreement 10 repunchase the same of substantialy the same
Lecrily at an agréed upon price and date. In an apen Maturity remeree
repurchase agreement, Bere is no pre-gdetermined repurchase date and the
Sresrnenl Can be termi nabed by thvé: Fund oF COUNTRIDarTy AT 40y Dime

A Fured i% en 0tled bo receive prindpal and interest payments, i any, made on
e security delivenad 1o Bhe counterparty during the teim of the soresment
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Cash received in exchange for senenities defivered plus acorued interest
MmNt o be made by & Fund 1o counterparties are refleded as a ligbfliy
on the Staterments of Assers and Liabdities interest payments made by a Fund
10 COUNTEMparties are recorded % & component of interest expense on the
Staternents of Operations. In periods of increased demand for the security,

a Fund may receive 3 fee for wse of the seourity by the counterparty, whidh
may result in interestincome toa Fund. A Fundwill seqgregate asseis
determined o be laguid by PIMCO of will ashenase cover its aligations
under reverse repundhate agresments

{e} Sale-Buybacha Certain Funds may enter inta finandmg transadions
referred to &5 "sale-buybacks’, A sale-buybadk finandng transaction consists
of asale of asecurity by & Fund 10 a finandal institution, the counterparty,
with a dmiltaneous agresment 1 repurdhzee the same of substantially the
Sarme Secunity at an agresd-upon price and date A Fund is not entided 1o
receive pindpal and interest payments, if avy, made on he security sdd to
the counterpar ty during the tenm of the agreerment. The agréed-upan
proceeds for securitees 1o b repuschased by @ Fund are reflected a5 a liability
on the Stabements of Assers and LabiliGes. A Pund will recognize net income
represented by the price differential bedween the price receied for the
traerefir ed sty and the sgieed- upan repufchate pice This is cormonly
refermed to & the "price drop” A price drop consists of () the foregone interest
and il ationaey income adustments, if any, 3 Fend would have othensise
reqetved had the sequrity nof been sobd and (i) the negetiated finandng terms
betarien 4 Fund and counteparty. Foregone interest and inflations ny o
adustments, if any, are recorded a5 components of interest nodme on the
Statements of Operations. Inferest payments based upon negotiated financing
terrns made by a Fund to counterparties are recorded as a component of
interest expense on the Satements of Operations. In periods of inmeased
dernand for (e wsonity, & Fund may receive 3 fe for ute of the secunty by
thit counterpaty, which mdy resull in mnterestincome 0§ Fund A Fund will
seqregale ssdels determined b be liqusd by FIMCO of will otherwise cower its
obfigations under sale-buybad: ransactions

{d} Shert Sabes Certain Funck may enter intd short sales transactions, Shart
calet e ransactons in whidh the Fund sells Secunty that it may not own

A Fund rmay make short sales of secumbes to () offset posential dediines in
long posiBons in sirmdar seoumies, (i) b imdedse the feblity of the Fund,
(i) fior imvestmen & retumn, (v as part of a sk arbitrage strateqy, and () a5
part of its overall portfioko management steategies imvahving e use of
derivative insiruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
[hie secunty soid short and delnver it o the counterparty. The Rand will
ordnanly have to pay a fee or premium 1o bomow 3 security and be obligated
Lo repny e lender of the Security amy dvidend or intenedt thatl aodues on the
securify duning the period of the boan Seamities soldin thort sale Farsactions
and the dividend or interest pavable on such seourities, if amy, are refecied as
payabie for shodt sales on the Statements of Assets and Liabifities. Shom sabes
expose the Fund o the risk that itwill be required to cover its short positon
2t a time when the security o other assal has apprediated in value, ths
resulting in losses to the Fund, A shoet sale is " against the bow” if

the Fend hiolds in its portfolio of has the right 1o acquire e sequrity scéd
shoet, or securifies identical to the sequrity sold short, at no additional st

A Fuind will b sibject 1o sddbonal nsks 10 the extent tat it engages v shart
sales that are not "against the b ® A Funds boss on a short sale could
theceeticalty be uriimited in cases whena the Fund is unable, for whatever
reasan, to dose ouf its short position

6. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thee followang disdosures contan information an how and why the Funds use
finandd derivative instnements and how finandal derivative instuments
affect the Funds” finandal position, results of operatons and cash flows The

location and far value amounts of these instruments on the Stalements of
Assets and Liabdites and the net realized Qan (o5 and net dhange in
umrealized apgredation (depredation) an the Statements of Cperations, sach
categarized by type of finandal derivatve contract and related fisk exposure,
are induded in a table in the Motes to Schedule of Investments. The finandal
denivative mstuments outstanding as of period end and the amounts of net
redized gain doss) and net change in unrealized sppredation (deprediation]
on finandal demvative instruments during the perind, & dedosed in the
Motes 1o Schedule of imvestments, serve a8 indicators of the valurne of
financial derivative activity for the Funds

{a} Ferward Fereign Corrency Comtracts Cerfain Funds may engage in
fonwand foreion Cumency conirads in connection with settling planmed
pairchases of sabes of sequrites, b0 hedge the aumency exposure sssodated
wath some of 3l of 3 Fund's seauntes of a3 pa of &1 imestment sratsgy. A
forward foreign cumency contrad is an agreement bebwesn two parties to buy
and sl 3 currency at a $e1peice on a future date. The market value of a
fonwand foreign cumency contract Suctuates with dhanges in foreign cummency
exchange rates. Forward foreign ouimency coniracs are marked 1o market
daily, and the change in value is recorded by & Fend 25 an unrealized gain oo
lorss. Realized gaind of lodees aé equal 1o e dithr ende bebaneen the valoe of
the contract af the time it was opened and the value at the dme it was dosed
and are recorded upon delivery of receipt of the curvency. These confracts
may invoive market fisk in exgess of the unreglized gain or loss reflected on
e Statements of Asets and Uabdties. i addiion, a Fund could be exposed
fo itk i the counterparties are unable to meet the temns of the contracts of if
the vatue of the qurrency changes unfaworabdy to the functional cumency. To
mitigate such risk, cash or seqxities may be éxchanged as collaterdl pursant
1o the tems of the uderying contracts

Certan Fundk, having a hedged Class, may 3o enler nto fonsard foreagn
currency contracts desigred to affset the effect of hedging an the Fund bevd in
ceder o leave the hedged Class with an exposure to dsmendes other than the
functional asrency. There can be no quarantes that these Class spedafic
forwand foreign cumency contrads will be successiul

{b) Futares Comtracks Ceriain Funcs may enter ino fulures confracts &
futures conract is & agreement o buy of sedl & seouniny o other asset for 3
et price on A future date and i traded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fulufies CORrACT Bo fruan e ite axpodure 10 the Sedumtes markets of to
morvements in inferestrates and qurmency values. The primany risks assodated
with e yse of fulres contracts ane the imperfect correlation between the
change in maxkel value of the securines bedd by 2 Fund and the priges of
futures comracts and the |:l.'l55'[5|l'.:|' of &0 illquid mankel. Fulures conlradas
are valued based upon their quated daly setlement prices, Upon entering
into a fulwres confract, 8 fund is required to deposit with its fstures broker an
amicunt of cazh, US Government and Agency Obligations, of sdect sovereign
debt, in accordance wath the inifial margin requisements of the broker o
achiange. Futunes confracts ane marced 1o market dady and based on such
mvements in the price of the conbracs, an approphiate payable of recevable
for the change in value may be poted or collected by the Fund (7 Futuret
Variation Margin™), Futues Yariation Margins, if amy, are disdosed within
cienrally deared firanaal demvative instruments on the Statements of Astets
i Liabili Bes. Gains or bosses are recognized but not considered relized until
e coniracts ogire of dote. Fulunes CONacts imeodve, 1o vaneng degrees,
risk of loss in excess of the Futures Vanation Margin nduded within
exchange traded or centrally deared finandal dervative instruments on the
Statements of Assets and Liakeliges

(] Dptions Contrmets Cirtaim Funds mdy wite of punthade cpbiont 1o
efhance rebams of 10 hedde an easting posaton o future irvestment. Certain
Funds may write call and put options on securities and finandal derivative
instnuments they oam of in which they may invest Writing put options tends
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toindrease a Funid's exposure 1o the underying instrument. Writing calf
Opons tends o dedredse & Fund s expodure 1o thie shderddng Insument
When a Rendwrites a call of put, an amount egqual o the premium fecened is
recorded and subsequently marked 1o marke? o reflect te anment value of
the option written. These amaunts are induded on the Statermnents of Assets
and Lizbiktes Premiums received from wriling options which expire are
treated &5 reafized gains Fremiyms received from wiiting options which are
exercised or dosed ane added b the prodeeds o offset agaimt smounts ped
on the underhying hutures, svap, Securily OF currency ransaction Lo determine
the realized gaen or loss. Certain options may e wiitien with premiums fo be
determined on a future date. The premiums for Shese opBons are based upon
impdied volatility parameters & specified tenms. A Fund as 3writer of an
option has ro contnil over whether the undelyng instament may be sod
("3l ") or purdhased ("put ™) and as a result bears the marketosk of an
untavarable dhange n the price of the instrument underhing Se written
option There is the risk 2 Fund may not b= abde to enterinto a desing
transaction because of #n iliquid market

Certan Funds i aluo purchase put and call options P'Llrﬂ'iﬂf-fll; cal options
tends to increase 3 Fund's spodure 1o the underhying instrument. Punchasing
put optiond bends 1o decreate & Fund s expodune 10 the underdyng indmment
A Fund pays apremiumwhich is induded a5 an asset on the Satements of
Assets and Lisbities and subsequenty marked to market to refledt the
curent vaiue of the option. Premiums paid for purdhasing options whidh
expire ae reated ot realized loses. Certain optaons iy b punchasesd wath
premiums to be deterrined on a future date. The premiums Tor these options
are based upon implied wlatlity parameters at spedified tems. The risk
assodated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the premium
paid. Fremiums paid for purchasing options which are exerdsed of dosed are
acidied to the amoums pad of offser sgainst e procesds on the underdying
imvEstment ransacion 1 determing fe realized Gain o |ass when the
underhing ransaction is executed

Credit Delault Swaptions Certan Funds may wite o purchace gedt default
swapsons to hedge exposure to the gredit risk of an investment without
rzking a comeritment to the undelying insument. A aredt default swvaption
5 an oplice 10 sl or buy credit protedion 1o 4 speahic reterence by entering
it a pre-Gafined svap agreement by some tpecfied date in the future

Inflation-Capped Dptienz Cerlain Fundt oy wite of pur chace inflstes-
capped oplions to enhance refurns o for hedging opportunites. The purpose
of purchgsang infl ation-Capped options & 1o protect 3 Fund from eifiation
enosion abive 3 0HMMN rate oh 4 ghven ROBoNal expotune. A Boor can be
s [0 give downside proTeCTon 1o investmients in inflation-in ked products

Interest Rate-Capped Optioms Cerin Funds syt it of puichiase innees
rate-Capped oplions o enhance retums o for hedgng cpportunities. The
purpose of purchasing interest rate-capped opdons is 1o protect a fund from
floatng rae risk above & cerain rate on & given notional exposure. A floor
can be used to give downside profection 10 investments in interest rate linked
prodincts

Interext Rate Swaptions Cortan Funds may weite of purchase interest rate
swapions which are opSons to enter into a pre-defined swap agresment or
to shomen, extend, canoel or othenwise modify an existing swap agresment,
bey some specfied date in the future. Thewriter of the swaption becomes the
counberparty 1o the svap i the buyer exerdses. The interest rate svaption
agreement will spedfy whether the buyer of the avaption will be 3 fieedrate
recever of 3 Boed-rate payer Upon exergse

Optiens om Exchange-Traded Futures Comtracts Certain Funds may wite of
purchase options on exdhangeraded futures coniracts {Futures Opion ™) o
hedge an exising pesition or funure invesiment, for speulative purposes of to

manage expasine bo market movements. A Futures Opdion is an option
coniract in which the underying instument is & single fueies conbrac

Optioms om Securifies Certan Funds may wiile of purchase opions on
Lecunilies o enhance refums of bo hiedde an exsing position of fulure
Investment, An option on 3 security uses a spedified sequity 35 the underlying
Instrument for the option contract

{d] Swap Agreements Certan Funds may imvest in swap ageements. Swap
Jgeements are bilaterally negotated agreements between a Fund and &
countenpanty 1o exhanae of aaap imcectment cach flows, et foneign
currencies of marketdinked retums at spedfied, future ntervals. Swap
agresments may be povately negatiated in the OTC market o may be deared
through 3 thind party, known 35 2 central counterparty of derivatives dearing
oeganazation ("centrally deared swaps™) A Fund may enter into as5et, aedt
default, coss-aamency, interestrate, wial reum, vanane and other foms of
UMAD BONEEMENTS D0 Irn S0 (18 epotine 10 credit, QUrmemdy, intenesl rate,
commodity, equity andinflation risk In connection with tese agresments,
seqxities or cash may be |dentified a5 oollateral or mangin in aooordance with
the terms of the respective swap agreements to provide assets of value and
s in the event of defaultor bark Tup iy insolvency

Centratly cleared Swapd e marked 1o mankel daly based upon walustions a5
determined from the underying contract or in accrdance with the
requirements of the central countenparty of derivatives dearing organization
Changes in maket value, if any, are reflected a3 2 component of net change
inurrealized appredation (deprediation) on the Statements of Operations
Dualy changes i valuaton of centrally dearsd Seeaps (T 5wap Variason
Margin™), it any. are disdosedwithin centrally deared financial derivative
instruments on the Statements of Assels and Liabdites OTC twap payments
received or paid at the beginning of the measurement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Uatdines and Fepresent premiuns pad o
received LpOn Entenng into Be swap aresment 10 compensate for
diflerénces benwsén the stated térme of the Swap agreement and prevailing
marked conditions (Tedt spreads, curmency exchange rates, inberest rates, and
other relevant factars). Uptront premiums recerved {pand) are mibaly regonded
&5 liakalities (ascats) and subsequently marked fo market to refect the aament
value of the swap. These upfront premiums are reconded as realized gains of
lersges an the Statements of Operations upon bermination of maturity of the
Swap. Aligudation payment recerved of made at the termenation of the Ywap
5 recorded as realized gain or loss on the Statements of Operations. Met
pefiodc payments receved of pad by a Fund are induded as part of realized
gaing of lasses on e Staterments of Operabons

For purpeses of apphing certain of a Fund's irvestment palices and
FESTRCBONS, Swap & greaments, like other derivative insrumments, My be
valued by 3 Fund at marke? value, notiona value or full expodure value in the
case of 3 oredt default swap, in applying certain of the Fund's investment
poticpes and resancmons, the Randwill value the credin default Svap At i
neofional value or its full exposure vaue (e, the sum of te notional amount
for the contract plus the market value), but rmay value the aedin defaull svap
at masket vaue for purposes of apphing certain of the Fund’s cther
investment pobdes and resrictions. For example, the Fund may walue gedit
default swaps at full exposure value for purposes of the Fend's aedit qualiy
guicknes §F any) because wdh value in general better reflects the Fund's
actual econamec expodure during e termn of the credit default svap
Sipesmenl As a result, & Fund may, at tirmes, hiave noticn 3 expodune 10 an
asget dass (before neting) that is greater or lesser than the stated limit or
restiction noted in the Fund’s Offering Memarandum, In this aontea, both
the notional amount and the market value may be positive or negative
depending on whether the Fund is selling or buyéng protection through @e
aredit default swap The manner in which cerlain saamities of other
instnuments are valued by the Fund for purposes of apphying invesiment
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polides and restrictions may differ from the manner in which thess

i tments are vahsed by other types of investors. Entening inio swap
Agresmenly invahves, tovaning degress, elements of interest, dredit, markes
and documentanon nd in ecets of fie AmoUnLs redognized on he
Staternents of Assels and Liakilities Swch risks invohe the possibility that
there will be no ligued market for these agreements, that the counterpariy to
the agreements may cefault on its obligation to perform or disagree as to the
- 1E ] of comractaal terms in the agresrments snd thal tere may be
untavarable changes in interest rates of the vaues of the asset upon whidh
the avap is based

A Fund's masimum risk of loss from counterparty aredit sk is the discounted
netvalue of the cash flows 10/ b received from the Counterpany over the
contract’s remaining ife, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
e rriGgated by having a master nerting srangement betwedn 4 Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collateral to a Fund 1o cover & Fund's
expiure 1o the colmberparty

To the extent a Fund has a paicy 1o limit the net amount owed to or to be
recewved from 3 single counterpanty under existing swap agresments, sudh
famitation only applies to counterparties to OTC swaps and does not apply o
centrally desred swaps where the counterparty i a central conberparty of
derrva trvet. o earing ofgani Zabon

Credit Delault Swap Agreements Corlan Funds may enler mio

it Gefaull swaps of cofpedate, koan, doeerengn, LS. munkdpd of US
Treasury issues to provide 3 measure of protection against defaults of te
issuers (e, 10 redsoe risk where 3 Fund ownis o has exposure to the
referenced obligation) or to take an active long or short position with respect
oy the fikelibood of 4 partioular isseer's defaut, Credit default swap
agpesments invohve one party making a strearn of payrnents frefered to as
the buyer of profection) o another paty (the seller of protection) in exchange
far the nght Lo recéive a spedfied retum in the evenlt thal the referenced
entity, obligation or index, & spedied in the wvap agreement, undergoes a
certain credht event. AS 3 seller of profection on aedt default swap
agreements, 3 Fund will generally receive from the buyer of protection 4 fixed
rate of incomse throwghout the temm of the wwap piovided that there i< na
oedt event. As the sefer, 3 Fundwould effectively add leverage toits
poartfolio because, in addifion toits tolal net astets, the Rend would be
subject b investment eposure on the noliond amount of the swap

If a Fundis a seller of protection and 3 gedt event ooours, 35 defined under
thie terrre of that pariosar swap ageement, 3 Fund will either §) pay (o the
Buryer of protection an amount equal o the notonal amount of the wvap and
take celivery of the referenced obdigation, ofher deliverable obligations or
underhing securities compaising the referenced index or i) pay a net
settlement amount in the form of cashor securities equal to the notional
amount af the vaap less the recovery vialue of the referenced obligation of
uniderbying sequrities compiang the refirenced index I a Fund is a buyer of
protection and a dredit event oocurs, 35 defined under the terms of thal
particular swap agreement, a Fund will either i) receive from the seller of
profection an amount equa to the nofional amount of the swap and deliver
the rederenced cbligation, other defiverable obligations or undetying
secyrities compiisng the referenced index or i) recéive 4 nel seldement
amountin the form of cash or sequnties equal to the notional amouwnt of the
swap bess the recovery walue of the referenced obligation of underlying
sequrities cornpeising the referenced inde Recovery valies e esimated by
kel makers considenng either industry standand recovery rates of entity
spedfic fa0iors and considerations unil a gedit event ooowrs. If 3 gedt event
has ocumed, the reowery valis |5 defenmined by a fadlitated aucton
whereby a minemam number of aliowatle broker bids, together with a
spedied valiation method, are used to caloalate the setfement value. The
ability 10 deliver ottver obligations may result in & dheapesi-to-geliver opiion

(the Baryer of protection”s right to dhoose the delverable obligation with the
Icwest value Tollowing aaedt event

Creadr cefaudt s a0 sgreements o dredil ndices involve one party makng a
stream of payments to another paaty in eochange for the nght o redenve 4
speified return in the event of a write-down, prindpal shortfall, interest
shortiall oo default of all or part of the referenced enBlies comprising the
aredlit index. & creditindex is 3 basket of qedt insiruments or exposures
cesignid to be representaiive of some part of the medit market a5 a whole
These indices are msde up of reference aedis that are udged by a pal of
dealers 1o be the most liquid entites in the aedt defaull swap market bated
on the sector of the index Components of the indices may indude, but are
nod limited 10, investment grade securities, high yeld secqunties, asset-badked
sequrties, emenging markets, andior various aredit ratings within eadh sector
Credit indeoes are traded using o edil default Swvaps with standandized terrre
induding a fxed spread and standard maturity dates. An index redht defauit
twap references Al the names in the index, and if there 15 3 default, the dedin
event is settled based on that name’s weight in the indsx The composition of
thee indices changes perodically, ussally every six months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weightin the index A Fund may wse cedi
et swaps on credt mdoed 1o hedge a portfolio of credt defwilt swvaps of
bords, which is less expensive than it would be to buy many credit default
swaps 1o achieve a smilar effect Credin default swaps on indces are
instnuments for prokecting investors owning bonds against default, and
fracers use them o speulate on changes in aedi quslity

Implied credt spreads, represented in sbaalute temr, utilized in If-é[l:fl'r'L!'L'l'l-:_T
e market value of qedt default swap agreements on corporate, [oan,
coveneign, U S, municpal or U S, Treasury issues & of period end. if any, are
disdosed i the Notes to Schedule of Investments. They senve a5 an indcator
of the aument status of pamentiperfonmance risk and represent the loelihood
of ridk of dedault for the referenced entity. The implied credit spread of a

par il referenced entity reflects the cost of buying/selling protecBion and
may indude uplront payments required t be made o enler into te
Jgeament. Wider credit spreads represent a deterioration of the referenced
enlity’s aredit soundness and & greater likelihood of itk of default or ather
arechit event aoouming a5 defined under the terms of e agresment. For gedit
detault Sardp MOPEETRALS 0N 25581 badked Secuntes and oredl indiced, the
quoted market prices and resulting values sene a5 the indicator of the current
status of the paymentiperformande risk. inoredsing market valiees, in absolute
fenms when compared to the nofional amount of the swap, represent a
diteriorateon of the referenced entitys aedt soundness and 3 greater
likelihood or sk of defaidt or other aredit swen? aocurring a4 defined under
e berms of the agreement

The maximum patenfial amount of future payments (undscounted) tat

a Fund a5 a seller of protection could be required to make under 3 edit
default swap agreement equals e notional amount of the agreement
Moticna amounts of each indvidual credt defaull wap sgesment
outstandng as of penod end for which a Fund is the seller of protecion ae
disclosed in the Mates 10 Schedube of Investments. These potential amounts
wiould be partialy offset by any recovery vafues of the respective referenced
obligations, upfront payments receved upon enteing into he agreement, o
et smounts regeived from the setiement of buy protection aedt default
Lwap agreements entered into by a Fund far the same referenced entity of
enlities

Interest Rate Swap Agreements Certzin Funds are subject fo inferest rate
sk exposure in the nomal course of pursuing their investment objectives
The value of the $aed rate bomds that 3 Fund halds may decréae if imtefest
raties nise. Tohelp hedge against this sk and o maintain it ability o
generale intome 31 prewaling market rates, 3 Fend may enter inko interes
Tate avap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exhangs
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by & Furd with another party for Sheir respective commitment to pay of
reeive intenest on the notonal amount of princpsl. Certsin fonms of inbenest
rate avap agreements may ndude: () interest rate aps, under which,
PN 10F 3 Premium, one paty sgnees 10 make payiments 1o Sie ofher Lo e
extent that inberest rates excesd 3 spedifed rate, or "cap”, (i) inlerest rate
flooes, under which, in rebam for 3 premium, one party agrees to make
payments b the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
pate, of "Hoor”, (i) interest rate colars, under which & padty sells & cap and
purnchases 3 Boor oF vice versa in An aftempl o protect itself against interest
rate movements exceeding given minimum of macimum bevels, (v) callable
interestrate swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consideration for the right to early terminate the svap ransaction in whok,
AN g ookt and At a predetenmined date and time paoe 0o the manenity date,
{v) spreadodes, whidh allow e interest rate Svap users olok in e
farwiand differential {or spread) between the intenest rabe swvap rate and &
spedfied bendhmark, or () basis swaps, under which two parties can
enchange wariatie interest rates based on different segments. of monesy
markets

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

I thye mcemial course of business, e Funds (or Acquired Fund{s), if
appicable) rade finandial instruments and enter into finandal transactions
wihere sk of potential loss exsts due 1o wch things a5 changes in the market
{market risk) or failure or inakality of the other party o a ransaction to
perform (redt and counterparty rick). See below for a detailed desaniptaon of
selet pringipal risks

Fiind of Famds To the extent that certain Funds invest substanSially all of their
rESpRCivE ARsets in Acquired Fund(s), the ks dssodiated with IVESTNG IR
thece Funds will be dosely related to the rsks assodated with the securities
and other ifvestments beld by the Acquired Fund(s). The atality of the Funds
1o achieve their respective imestment objectives may depend upon the ahility
of the Acquired Fundis) fo achieve ther respecive investment objeciives
There can be o assuramos that thie Frestmient objecive of any Aoquired
Fursd(s) will b acteeved. The MAV of an Acquiring Fund will fleoneate in
resporse o changes in the respective NAY of the Acquired Fund(s) in which it
imvests

In the noemal course of business, Acquired Fund(s) irade Snandal insruments
and enter it finandal rarsactions where ik of potEntM 058 edsts doe
changss i the market drarket i), of failure of inabilty of the other party b
A transacton o perform (oredil and counterparty nk)

Markat Rk A Fund's investments in §nancal derivative instuments and
other finandal mstuments exguose the Fund bo vanious ks such as, but not
femited fo, interestrate, foregn (von-LLS ) qamency, equity and commudicy
risks

Interest rabe risk §5 the risk that fimed income secunties and other instuments
et by & Fund may dedme in value because of an increase in intenest rates. If
nominal interest rabes rise, the value of certain fed income securities hald by
a Fund would likety deqease. A nominal interest rate can be desaibed as e
sum of a real interest rate and an expected infation rate Interect rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money if
Ihece chamges are Aot antdpated by Fund mansgement A Fund may not be
able so hedge against changes in interest rates or may chocse not to do so for
oost of other reasons. in sddition, amy hedges may not work as intended

Duration is & measure psed to determine the Senfnaty ol a SECURIRY"S prce 1o
changes in interest rates that Incorporates 3 seourity's yiedd, coupon, fingl
ratumty and cill featunes, among olfier charscenaios. Comeity is an
addsonal measure wsed W underitand a secunty’s or Fund's interest rase
sensitivity that meatures the rate of dhange of duralion in fesponse to

changes in interest rates, Fed income securities with longer dirations tend
o ke e Sersitig to changes in interest rates, usually making them more
vl atile than seqritied with shorter durations. A wide vanety of faciors ¢an
Caure Infenest rabes of yields of LS. Treduury Seountes (o welds of other
types of bonds) o ree (e g, central bank monetary policies, inflation rates,
general economic conditions, etc). This is espedatly tnse under ourent
condBons because interest rates and bond yiekds are near histonicaily low
Iiviels. This, the Funds currenthy face 4 heighitened level of risk assodated
wath msing inberest rates andior bond yields This could be driven by a vanaty
of factors, induding but not Bmited to central bank monetary palides,
dhangnginfason or real groweth rates, general economic conditions,
inreasing bomd issuances. of reduced market demand for low weldng
Imvesermenits Further, while US. bond markets have steaddy grown over ihe
past three decades, deaber “market making ™ ability has remained relatvely
stagnant Given the importance of intermeadany “markel making” in Geating
a robust and active market, feed income securites are qumently

facing inareased volatility and liquidity riges. All of tese factoes, oollectvely
andior indvidualy, oould cause a Fund 10 lose value: i the Fund lost enough
value, 1he Fund could face indreased Unithol der redemptions, which could
further impair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely atfected
wihen a large Unitholder punchases of redesrms large amounts of units, which
€an ooour 3t any ime and may impact the Fund in the same manner a5 a high
volume of redempition reguests. Large Lnitholder ransacons may iImpad
thie Fund's liquidity and net assat valoe Such ransactions may also mcnedse
e Fund s ransactaon costs o othenaise cause the Fund o perfarm
differently than intended, Moreover, the Fund is subject 1o the ngk Sat
ather Unitholders may make imvestment dedisions based on the choices of 3
large Unithelder

A, Fund rray b siorifl cant exposire 10 icsers in e United Kingdorm The
Linited kingdom’s deciaon b0 beave the Eurapean Unicn gy irnpeact Fund
returns. This dedision may cawse substantal volatility in forsign exchange
markets, fead toweakness in the exchange rate of the British pound, result in
& sustained period of marker Lsncertanty, and destabdize some of o of the
other Buropean Unkon member couniries andior the Eurozons

Fareign (mon-U1 5 ) securitess in this report ane dasatied by the country of
incorporation of a holdng. (n certan inslandes, & weaurity's countny of
incorporation may be different from its country of ecomomic exposure

i a Fund imvests drectly in foreign (non-U 5 ) aerendies. or in secunities that
track in, and receive revenues in, foreign (ron-Ui S ) oamendes, of in finandial
dimvaina Instruments that proside expadure 1o Tamegn (nof=UL5 ) demenaes,
10 wetil b subajiect 00 She ik that thode curmencies will dedine in valee relathe
to the base currency of the Fund, or, in the case of hedging positions, that
the Fund's base cumency will dedling in value relative to the cuemency being
hedged Cumency rates in foreign aountries may fluctuate ggnificantly over
<hort periods of ome for & number of regsons, induding dhanges in interest
rates, intervention (or the talure 10 intervene) by U5 or foregn governments,
central band:s or supranational enfiies such a5 the international Mionetary
Fund, or bey the imposition of Qumency controds or other poditical devel cpaments.
in the United $iates or abroad Asa result, a Fund's Bvestments in foreign
cumenCy-denorminated seounBes gy reduce the Fund's returns.

Thie market vialbies of equities, such a5 coremon $ieds and |:l".'-‘l?l fed Secunities
o equaty related invesirments sudh as futures and options, have Fstoncally
fesen and fallen in periodic opdes and may dedine due o generd maroet
condtions which are not spedfically refated to a parSodar company, such as
real or peroetved adverse economic conditions, dhanges in the general
cutlock for cofporate eamings, dhanges in mberesl of Cumendy fabes, pudblic
Ivealth ermergencies, sudh & te spread of infectious dness or dsease, of
adverse investor sentiment generally. They may o dedine due to factors
wihich affect a particular industry of industries, such a5 labor shortages or
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increased producticn costs and competithve conditions within zn industry
Diffierent types. of equity seqmities may neadt differendy to these
developrnents Eqquily seaxities and equity related immstments generally have
greater market prioe voladlity than foed Income ssamities

The Funds may invest in certain instruments that rely in some fashion wpan
LIBOR . LIBOR is an average interest rate, datermined by the [CE Banchmark
Administration, that banks charge one ancaber for the wie of shor-ferm
ey The Lirsled Kingdorn's Financdal Conduct Authony, whad regulates
LIBOR, has anmeunced plans to phase out the use of LIBOR by the end of
2021. The wanston may resullin a reduction in the value of certan
instraments held by the Funds or & reduction in the effeciveness of refated
Fund transactions such as hedges. There remains uncertainty regarding futune
unlization of LIBOR and the natere of sy replacement rate (e.q., ®e Sequred
Crvernight Rnandng Rate, which 5 intended to replace LS. dostar LIBOR and
measines the oost of ovemnight bomowings throegh repurchase agreement
transactions collaterabzed with LS. Treaswry secunties), and any patental
effects of the ransition away from LIBOR on the Funds or on certain
Invsbrusmens an wihich the Funds imest ang not known and aould result in
lasses 1o the Funds

Beginding in January 2020, gobal finandal markets have expetienced and
ey continue bo experience sgnificant voladlity resulfing from the spread of 5
noved cononavinis known as COVID-19. The cutbreak of COVID-19 has
resulied in ravel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply dhain
disiuptions, Tower condwmes dermdand and general markel uncertainty. The
global econairy, te econeemes of certyin natons and indrvideal Bsiers hive
been and many continue B0 be adversely atkected by COVID-19, partiailady in
light of the interconnectivity between economies and Snanda markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds' performance, in addition, COVID-19
and governmenta responses o COVID-19 may negatively imgact the
capakulites of the Funds” serioe prodders snd daupt the Funds” operations

Credit and Counterparty Riska A Fund will be expoted tocredit risk 1o
parties with whom it rades and will also bear the ik of setement default
A Fund minimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertaking ransactions
with a large number of Qestomers and counterparties on recognized and
reputsble exchanges, where applicable. OTC defvative transactions. are
subject to the sk that a counterpanty bo the transaction wall not fulfil its
contraciual abligations 1o the ather party, 8 many of the protechons affonded
to cendrally deared derivative transactions might not be available for OTC
derivative Bransactions. For dervatives raded on an exchange o thiough a
ceniral countenparty, redif ek pedices wath the creditw orthiness of

thie Fipnl s deaning Droker, of the dearnghouse itseld, rather than to 8
counterparty in an OTC derivative ransadion. Thanges in regulation relating
to & Fund's use of derivatives and related ins nsments could potentially Bmit
or impact the Fund's bility bo invest in derivatives, limit the Fund’s abikty fo
employ certain strategies that wse derivatives andfor adversely affect the value
of performance of dervativis and the Fund. A Fend could lo%e maney if the
fssuer of guaranics of 3 ficed income security, of the Counterpany i &
finandal derivatve insinements coniradl, repurdhase agresmentor 3 loan of
portfolio securifies, is unable or wwilling te make fmely pindpal andior
MIERest payimenis, oF 1o othenwise honof it obfgations. Sedinies &nd
finanda derivative instnaments are sulject fo vargng degrees of gedirisk,
which may be reflected in credit ratings

Samilar b credin risk, & Fund may be exposed to counberparty risk, of the sk
that an institution or other entity with which 3 Fund has urgettied or open
transacicns will default. PIMCO, a5 the Manager, minimizes counterpay
ks bo the Funds through a nurnber of wanyd. Priod B0 entefing int
transactions with 4 new counteparty, e PIMCO Contenparty Risk
Commuttes conducts an axtensive dedit reviaw of sudh counterparty and must
approse thee use of such counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant o the temms of

the underhing contract, bo the extent that unpaid amounts cwed to 3 Fund
exceed 3 predetermined threshold, sudh counterparty shall advance colatera
e a Fund in the form of cash of securifes equal in value to the npaid
araouint cwivéd to & Fund. A Fund may ifmvest Sudh collateral in secunties of
other instruments and will typically pay interest 1o the countengarty on He
oollateral received.  the unpaid amownt owed o 3 Find subsequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be reguired 1o return to the Ccounterparty all o a
portion of e collateral previously scdvanced. PIMCO'S attemps b minimize
counbenparty sk may, hiowewer, be untudoesshul

All ransachions in [sbed sequnties are setdedipaid for upon delivery using
appeoved counderparties. The nisk of default s considered minimal, a5 delivery
of securiies sold is only made ance a Fund has received payment. Paymment is
made on 3 purchase once e securities have been delivened by the
counterpanty. The trace will fail if either parsy fails to meet its obligation

Market Disruption Riak The Funds are sulbject winvesment and operational
neskes associated with finandal, economic and other ghobal market
developments &nd disnprions, induding those arising from war, fmonism,
miarket manipils tion, govemment intenventions, detaults and shutdowrs,
political dhanges of diplomatic developments, public health emergendes
(such as e speead of infecticus diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalfemdronmental disasters, which can all negatively impact the seaurities
markets and cause e Funds to bose walue These events can also impair the
technology and other operational systems upon whidh the Funds” senvice
peronvidiers, including PIMCO a5 the Funds” investrment adviser, rely, and coukd
athiensise darupt the Funds’ sendce providers” abulity 1o Tl ther sbligations
to the Funds. For example, the speead of an infections respiratony iliness
caused by a movel strain of coron aanss (nown as COVID-19) has Caused
volatility, severe maket dislocations and hquidity consiraints in many
markets, incluckng markcets for the securities with the Funds hoid, and may
adversely affect the Funds” investments and operations

4 MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Fiands may be subject (o varous netting arangements (et
Agreements ™) with select counterpanties. Master Agreements goven he
tenmes. of certaim transacions, and are intended 1o reduce the counterparty risk
assodated with relevant ransactions by spedtying credit pratection
mechanisms and providing standardzation thatis intended to mprove legal
cenanty. Exch type of Master AGreement govems cemain bypes of
wansactions. [ifferent types of mansadions may be traded out of different
legal enttes of aMfikates of 8 parscular organization, rewltng in the need for
multiple agreements with a angle counterparty. As the Master Agreements
are speafic 1o wmque operations of different asseq types, they allow a Fund to
diose out and net ifs tokal exposure to 3 counterparty in the event of a default
with respect o all the ransactions th?lﬂed umdér 3 Sll"rj'h: Master
Agreementwith 2 counterparty. For financial reporting purpdses the
Staterments of Astets and Liabelifes generally pretent derndafive astets and
lizbilites on a gross basis, which refects the full nisks and exposures prior to
feetting

Mster Agresments can alio help Brit counterpanty fisk by spedfing
collaberal por Gng Srangements Al pre-armamded exposure levels. Linder most
Mxther Agresrents, collaneral is routinely trardfired of the total nel expodne
b certain transactions (nef of existing collateral already in place) gorverned
tenger the relevant Master Agreement with 2 counterparty in & given account
excends 3 specified threshold, which eypdcally ranges from 20 10 §250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agreement. United
Saaties Treasuny Bills and U5, dallar cash ane generally the preferred forms of
oollateral, athough other securiies may be used depending on the tems
cutlined in the applicable Master Agreement Securities and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected a5 assets on the Statements of Assets and Lisbiliies a5

BeveaiRapert | Wiy 31, 2000
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gither 3 component of investments at value (saomities) or Deposits with
counberparty. Cash collateral received i not l‘r.’.1 y b In @ Segregated
Aacoount and a5 such & reflected a5 al on the Statements of Atsels and
Leabelitiies a5 Dipotits Troem counterparty. The markel value of any secunbes
recedved as collateral is not reflected a8 a component of NAV, The Runds
ceeral| Bxposune o counterparty risk can chang 13 withen a shoet
d by each ransaction suby vank Master

period, a5 it i affect
Agresment

et to ther

e EpunChiase Agresmments
dually and col '-:-:Ii'n enis ) Gowen repurchase,
; ase, and saledn wyba ions between the Funds and
N EparTes. Washer F-::.u Ay BIES. M LS ponasio i
ther things, inifiation, income payments, events of default, and
ance of collateral. The market value of rarsactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collatera pledged or received, and the net exgousre by
couriberparty a5 of peniod end are dsdosedin e Mobes 10 Schediile of
Inevestments

Master Sequrities Forwand Transadtion m'-ur“-"nh (" Master Fonward
SrsaCuons, such as TEA
ansactions by and

rities, del _-we Jhielivery or 'ad'L-uJ:..J-JZ

between the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Forward
Agresments maintam ;:-r.'.'nsinns fior, ameon g other thnigs, initiation and
coninm

o, praymient and
ance of collateral. Tk
collateral pledged of rec
period end are

|._-n. IP ‘fd|i.:'.' of forwand seting transactions,
d. and the net exposure by Countepanty a8 of

rcdoted in the Notes 1o Schedule of Investments

of Actount Agreements and related J_lﬁ‘“IU.J govern deared
deriva fives. fransactions sudh as fulees, options on futures, and dea
derivativel. Sudh ransacions require posing of mital mangn a5 deter
by each refevant dearing agencywhidh |5 segregated in an acoount 3t 3
futanes commissaon mendhant (CFCM™) n_q",lxn_d wiilth e Comimd 1
Futyres Tradng Commission {TCFTCT). In the United States, counterpaty
ey be reduced a5 cred tors of an FCM cannot have a daim be Fund assets in
the segregated acoount. Forts exposure in the event of an FCM

default soenanio further reduces the Funds. Variation mangn, of

=4 i market waloe, are gener wdhanged daily, but may not be

e wnien fulunes and dedfed diernvatives inlias the partied hive
31&*-‘ d to a separabe arrangement in respect of fund margining The market
alue of acoummlated wnreali 2ed appred ation (depredaion), inital margn
:.'-.-s.':-.--J, and any unsectled vanation mangn as of penod end are disdoted in
thie Miates &0 Schiedule of Invesments

Imtesnanondl Seeaps and Defivalnes ASSODSU0N, e Master J-'-f_j:l_'ﬂl’l_—’
Credit Support Annexes (T I50A Master Agre ) gowemn blateral OTC
derivative fransactions entered inso by the Funds with select countaparties
15008 AR .fu:]'-_ 1S MsnLaEn prosducns fioe ;__v_-'n_-.'.jl -):-f:g-]f"’"_,: L
represenianons, 4 enits, collateral poseng and events of defaudt or
nation. Ew erranation indude conditions that may e
cournterparties i elect 10 terminate eary and cause settbement «
ourstanding ransactions under the applicable KL
election to temminate eatly o
[reted droumstances, the ¥
provisaons that add coonterparty protection b .-'Cl"d Coveragge o
expure if the counleparty has 3 deckne in aredl qualty bélow  pred
lewel These amoungs, if any, may be seqregated with a third-party custodian
The market vakue of OTC finandal dervative Instruments, collat
or pledged, and net exposune by counterparty as of period eng
in e Wotes 1o Schedue of knaesimients

and

of 2l
DA Master Agreement. Any
e fnandal statements, in

S| Repert | My 31, 2060 £
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund is sulbject 1o thie following fees payable a1 the following annweal rates (Stated o 3 percentage of the avrage daily net assers of each Fund, o Class, if
applicable, 1aken separately)

Feag

Furd M anagemanit Adwiecry Adsinistratve Agancy Diseribution
PIMCO Bermwada Foreign Lew Daranon Fend 0Z36% - - - -
PIMCD Bermuda UL, Low Duiation Fund 0756% - - - -
PIMED Euro Total Return Fusd - nas%™ it (i el 3 (15,
PIMED Rual Retwan Fund = nEE uE%" D% 033%"
PIMCO Shost-Term Steategy

= an 035%™ - - nEE® [1Key

& G us) — — — —_— —

s JUPY) - - -_— — —

LY ] — - — — -

. JPE o™ - - nme™ ik A

. U 0E%E™ - - neR™ 037%™

T PRLACE) S Tl Popes Fuodf i a1 10 % ot i S il e rd 15 diiitd vl o ik el v ool (15 2 aiver®e il ot Pt LRS00 vt oo B Fuocl i i 0 O o deacioss oo
ot e vt SN SO it of it Foncs e ettt ool TS apydien et ol of Dl P A it et ot el TSR P it

et FRRICEY Foryr Tl Bipinasty Fiohdl o sttt 00 St suliwscitvanine Vi Dot viw'nd il oot B it vl o - it st Pl 1 50 e e gl o 2o b et D0 50 omilfeows of lar Fimalln Ml sciiat O 000 e aeviiars
Sops o7 B spnied U 50 meltann o e R s st pasits wad O 159 pix s mpders o 88 oF D Fona®s net pasets Bveeces s of S ) malien

That FRLACE Far Toind Bintaem Fasoe oy sty 10 B clestrbendionn M DO vy Dot v e Bt et o et i i adbowss. &) 25196 i inacsce oy o i Fr st SUIR S il o e Pl s vk s sty €6 2508 o v
et o S et LIS ST il oF B ol i ks, s 1 T el Brtents gy 2o S8 oF Pk Rl A el ot il oF SUIR T il

et FHRA P Gl Satiam Farief 3 Scabioer 5 Y ek ik e VBT Sl BAS st e O P A iy i o0 S5 0 SN e O I At ) el o D LS O ATARY (S0 i RN RV e
ke PR il 2ot M et gty g 3TH agpiies o el o S s st ssrady n amoass of 31 Bslion

et ST B! Ratuer Pl ia sl 5w sl i tive ot S vawiees Sl oan 0 ot kv of B P a3 Podlowes: 5 P50 e o sl ey e et 00 il o Bt Fumnel™s e st 01 009 pa macsars: ity o0
iy oo’ 50T sallierr of e Foradn ced periedts et &) 56 pan mewoate popslery o gl of e Fomas st ety i ot of SO0 mallor

Tie FRMTEY e 3 Rt Pl o Sodieie 10 F cASTR00elct Mt BRE e el o0 Dl Bart Lesvin! oF e P e Moo £ 2T o e gty oot O S5 ¢ S0 e o ot s vt b ) 120, it etimcate et 0o O
el S smallies o Shet Rt s it @ TR pi mviets il ot ol of i R AT BERHS 0 i o 5V balliens

Tt s o3 ST i 3 PRI o Dt Vit Dmsodt o e AL Gt s St 0 ooy e 7 o D s’ B oo e 8 iy o’ D ooty ety o e st ey s o5 kw010 e e Vi woi it
QA5 of Dptr oal anseds . ' the oo poly rte v Betwasas 0 0%-0.5%, Do Db der well B A1 179 o Cler ne? sl ' e roed policy it 5 Befwenes 0 55 T0, PR DR Viier ol fop 1 B0 o (e ot i o
o gy vt o7 s [ 07 G e e o il e O 8 o iy ot e ot oF B it s sy i i 200 o gt B0 e owr ¥ e (106 o (et st 1 e iy et O s o7 ok st
B erpony wall falnct per poundineld sty P of vy seprnpeo i

et Cimsd b5 Syt 10 0 Scsay P BT ety i ¥ oo et R (CFVCe Dol et (0 el v T o et e o el riatd ol oF ek (et ieaelt F O s el vt o Do (1T, S S o il O 1SR
o Cines nad preaty of B sovped poliy i i Sebeaen J08-0 0%, Buo By S wall e 000 o Cinxy ool pesate 3 B invoad podey ro in brtasssn 0 5% 109, S S o wall b 0 008 o Derr naf praaly of S iemuad
iy ror o Satwont | 0%-0 0%, Bt the for el B 0% of Do i ivdsats o B snsomsd Sodiry ity iv Z0% v ormitint. it P o wanlf o ) 000 o Dhpir el it F e o oty Mot B (il i i vialelly. e
Adnrpsar wal zadect s sl rpde ! o iy ppenpreste

T Clpes a5 polyect to ¢ dainbestion fee Bl vwdes besicd o She R (S Cpol Rl (the oty e T s oof oo thind i e Bosinass: day of B povicos ottt & Bia i iond policy mis s Bedaar | (6. thow bhe e wall &
B3 of Oess el ssseds e rosel podey et 25 Btweer (L0 0 5, o B e well S O L08 o Clers ol paratn o' the i S0aeY ey Pl o Sebrvsent FER 10K, Ber fe foa wal b S of Cless ot sss08, o e
e iy et o bt [ E-2 0, e the dow ol o O K o Cleae oetmepnts o e i s prodiyy ot s 6 o et Do Dl e walfl e £ 06 o Coemr ot maante. e oyttt Clens o5 ot mvmednies,
S Miwnager Wall et BT SQUARRRY rle B T dieeis RIERIDNaGE

Thar Llar v Pl 10 5 MEgRmn Mo DY Vi s o e v oo e Clossonae’ Shismaty U880 Rute Sxpectoa’ (e Jrodeyridt 7 i o e e S diad Dotnans 5 ey o O v oot e e plcy 1 o8
Sl 0, Dy e o el St 8 20 o Car e paails. Wi i ody snde i Betvees 000 1 TR thao B e wall b T 20T of Diser et pniafs o e it foed polcy e 55 Dedweet 0 08 - 106, Dha B flse el e
AR o s e ety f the fsr et poley ride i Setwaet |0 0, Mo D e il B £1 29008 o ey et st o e i soedd podey ride i 0 o geeser, S the thee wall B 45 o Cleas naf ssoetn I e poley
i o et Sl o Aot deciealadi, B Aol i w1k o ity il iy S o i YOy

T (i 15 Pyt B Y ey o DO vy i o0 e Bash of gy (lnsincntin Ohviget ol vt Sgiote! (i "podicy Fate 15 of e el b0 Jo! Bt f ol o e oo Jmonh Y e asiod poley Fte 11 Divlowe
G D P S el e (1O o it it il " Dl il Pl e i ot [T PR, i D e il o TR ol it i o B il vy v o Bt 1 - TP i P e el g 00 7
Cps o s Br e oo sy ot o Gy 706 R, 0 hen dowr el B 1 TG 0" ety st il e e o iy ity o 0 o o, e Db S il i I T o (e el ety I P poiicy e o e
Pt af aeviiakilids. P Ml ool el i dnuane il il Bl o chpeiel pednivinnle

- e Elpar 15 sadyect to. 3 dhainbeton fee B venes besed o dhe Rpel of ,wmww Ol Kot Lnprteod Ehe '.!'u-'\qrr:rr‘.-'rs of P Bhare £ R Bt iy o et oo i F Bl i el prceley e
Sk 0, han the the well b (I of Cloer cod masats, & the resoad policy rate e Betwesar (0N -0 5, theo i o will o 2% of Clars et wazaty & Boe sxrond poley vt v belwsan .55 -1 0%, Bar S doe will e
DR of Tier ol piveds. & e moad polcy Fide o Betvieie® 10 0. Dhies Bhr e vl B ) SEF o i B i’ ol e iy et Jr DK o el Mt Bl e el B G5 o i T il I e palicy
iy for B ivas 1% mod sy, e Alpmicger wall ol s acpuivples cale B & e maovopeae

- T Ligar i st o i emcpgemeet fa Stul vares Susod o B Facders! Fuads Faret Ste bt “podarote s of S thacd b bae B oy of S prevesons imortdy B D ixepef gy vt o bolowr (10, ot the for well

o 25 o iy S e pitn o e resicd ol Fide o (et (TR0 PR, P b for w0 RPF R o Dl it it o Pl iemeed 50l At o ettt [T SR-T 00K, et P Mk wnlf g 10 o (e 0 el o D
g POl FOF A D TOR-2 R, et e B T TS o G T e O OO i iy AR o T o RS, O I g el B TS o Dl Y ittt 0 iy e o P 0 A il
St Mg il Sl T A Sl RAF I T BRI
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o Tee e 1 PRt 10 890 Sy Ve R oo gm0 B Pl Moy Tiagpat i (e “oiodicy rote 0 oo Bl i Bt ot o iy o Pl o st O g pcepef pidery e i ko (1P, ot i el
QN & Dk ol il ' e i podcy forle v Bubvieseler 0006 0L 5. P Dl g el B VDT o it o il W0t oy ponnd iy it o B et (0 50 - 1 O, it 8 Mo ol (0 O o i it i, o i
gl iy vots 1 bedwaea T OR-L 0% thar the foe woll Sur ! O of (lasr oot assats o B ks poliy o8 i 20% or grastes B B foa wall b 8 10N of Clpss nefassals ¥ e podoy rpte S e Dlasr o mof svadebie,
e Miimanger wall 2kt st igenainnd rxie Dt of dbaes ARt

L et Elear 15 syt b0 5 crindoston fae B venes D o e ok feads ."sprr-\?ﬂ't.h Ty vt T 5 oo S e by il Doy ol oo Bher e esodt | F D o pody vt o Sunowr (MO, Bt et Pt el
&K of Opar el wevely. o' the roed poliy e i St o 0 4 5, o e e vl B 1N o Cipcr oot et o e i s podcy rte Jr et 058 TR, Bl SR o wall e 1 S o Cles it asrel o
e ey it o D O LR, e D i el e O SR o e e e it F Pl 3 el sy i 4 O o g, Dl Ot et Do £ PR o e o iats. F P gy et dh O s 1 ¥ el

e Wammgmr wall sl BT SQENRET TR (1 i ey A0prigTRt

The management, advisory and adminisrative fees, If applicable, are pald monthly in armears to PIMCD for providing or aranging for the provision of advisory,
admindstrative and Shird-party serdces incuding audit, arstodial, rustee, poctfiolio sccounBng, routine legdl, ransfer agent and printng sendces. The agendy and
distribution feet, il appicable, ate pald imonthly in afears b e e B and o temmedianes that provide tervices and distnbution realng to the urels of the
applicable Fund (or Class thereof, as applicable) In the case of the FIMCD Bermeda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PIMCO Benmada U5, Loss Duration Fund, PIMCO,
outof its management fee, will bear the costs assodated with advisory and administrative services, 0.1% of whidh is designated to cover admenisirative expenses. In
exchange for this fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of certain third-party senvices required by the Funds, indpding audit, qustodi, tustes, portiolio acoounting, legal,
transier Jgent and pri I'II.II"'I:I sendces. PIMCO, and not Unithol ders, would benefit from &y price degredie in the oost of such thind-perty sendces, nd Jlj‘lg OBTeases
resulting frorn an increaze in net assels, In addition, with respect to Funds that are subject 10 an administratve fee, FIMCD generaly makes a profiton sudh afes

A5 noted o the table above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are nof subgect 1o management, achisory, administrative, agency of distribution fees. PIMCO Japan
Ltd, MINMCO"s affiliate in Japan, is paid 2 fee from the Japanese irmestment Trusts or ofher Emestment vehicles that imeest in such Funds of Classes and a portion of
such fee is them allocated to PIMCO to compensale it for i sendoes

The Furd {or Clagses thereot, a5 applicable) may bear otver expenses related to Mar operation that are not covened by the man agement, ad sory, adminisrabe,
agency o dsmibution e, induding but not Brated bo: () taoes and governmental fees; () broberage fees and commrssions and ofher portiolio bamacion epenses;
(i) costs of Bormowi ng moniy, indudng interest expense; () extracndinary expémies, indudng cets of Rigaten and indemnification expenses; and (V) amy sqinies
allecated or abocable to 3 spedific Class of units, as applicable. FIMCO has paid, or will pay. the crganizational expenses assodated with PIMCO Short-Term Srategy’s
Initial set-up

FRWCO andior its afiliates will ini I'In'ﬂl'faﬂ\'ﬂl"it [0 FINCC Short-Term Strategy &1 costs and expenses, ind ud ng legal expenses, noumed in connecion with the inita
pubdic oftering of the IPY and LSD Classes of Units of the Fund in Japan (TORefng Expénses”). Alod near the commencement of the Fund's opérations, the Fundwill
redmbarse PINCO andfor its affikanes for the Offering Expenses advanced and will smortize sudh Offering Expenses over thi first 83cal vear of its operatsons. However,
PIMCO has agreed towanve reimbursement of the Oflenng Bxpenses to the exten? that such expenses exceed 0 05% per annum of te sum of the JFY and LSD

Classes’ Met Asset Value (the " Offering Expense Limitation™). Any Offesing Expenses waived due to the Offering Bxpense Uimitation may be recouped by PIMCO andior
its affiiates for 2 petiod not exceeding five yeaes from the commencement of the Fund's operations; provaded, the amount recouped by PIMCO anddor its affiliates shall
ok exceed 005% per annum of the sum of the JFY and UED Classes” MY B exther of the JPY and USD Classes of Units of the Furd is tenmanated price 1o the fill
reimbarsement of all Offening Expentes, PIMCO andior its affiliates shall not seek reimbursement of any remaning unee mbursed amounts froem that Class
Furthermore, if both of the JFY and LED Clactes of Units of the Fund are terminated prior to the full reimbursement of all Offering Expenses, PIMICO andior it affiliates
shall mot seek reimbursement of any remaining urreimbursed amounts from the Fund. PIMCO has paid, or will pay, all costs and expenses, induding legal expenses,
incumed in connecen with the irtial publec offering of the ALD Class of Units of the Fund in Japan. As of May 31, 2020, there were no recoverable Offering Bxpenses
1o PIMICO andior s ffillates

PIMICO has soposnted SMEC Nikko Se0anties nc. b s00 a5 Agent Cormparmy and Drainbuabor for e distibution and servicng of enits of he FIMCO Euro Totsl Rem
Furd, PIMCO Real Return Fund, and the IPY, USD: and ALD Clatses of PIMCO Short-Tem Stratedy to retail investors i lapan. Mo agent companies haee been
appoented for any of the ather Funds

PIMCO has paid the organizatonal expenses sssodated with e ceation of the Trust. Hfurther Funds are [sunded, such coats dinectly atmbutable to the relevant
Furd mmay be bome by the refevant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

The Investment Adviser is a related party to the Funds and is a majority-owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees paid to the related party, if ary, are
disdosed in Mote 9, and aogued related party fee amounts, if amy, are disdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabilties

Certam Funds are permitted to purchase or sell sequrisies from or o certain related affiliated funds under spedfied cond fions cutlined in procedures adopted by the
Imvesiment Adviser. The procedures have been Qesngned 10 ensure thal any purdh a5 of Sae of sequrines by a fund from oe 10 another fund that is or could be
contidered an atfiliate by virtse of hindng & common adviser (o atfliated imestment advisers), i eflected at the curent madket price. Duwring the period ended May
31, 2020, the Fundis) below engaged in purchases and sales of securities among affliated funds {amounts in thousands):

_fand Purchms Selsr
FAMCD Bermusda Fromign Low Doragon Fund 3 03 258
FIMCD Bermuda L 5. Loe Draton Feed a 162
PAMCD Emsrging Markes Bend Ford (M 15,008 B2
FIMCD Ewsn Toal Requn Fand 1105 1]
FIMCT] Feal Retum Fend 24l 1}
FIMCD SereTenm Suwegy i S 13,061

Ay Bapat | Mgy 1, 200 1]
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11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

L (i chr ._1I| e T
e normal course

s that may anise out
n a vanety of indemnificat
the Funds hat have not yet

Ol CRaUses

& significant concentration of risk, as ¢

I M age

follows (unats and amounts in thousands™)

Changes i units of benefidal intenest were a4

Vst Ended Year Ewded Yrar Euded Vear Fuded

iy T, 0D Blay T, AOAN By T, AT ey . 20
lmits. Amumt (1518 Hmsmnt [T Amsant liwits At
Poca jp for units sold = = 558 15 ¢ 157 2] § AW Rtd LI
. e Lt e 2] Lt i e
Lot of i e mad (11]] H2E ki (2 BT UL L A
k0] LES 3 N ] Ha T ] 18 161)
Nt (decruass] mauling from
Fund unit Tnmaciions e &  [FR na ok 11,250 B & 2130 HEE & (11137
Yaar Ended Tearbnded Year Faded Tear Ended
ey 31, 2000 By 71, D0 Bay 31, AT eary 1, 200
IS Ampmt Dk Amsant Wasti Amsani Usiti Amerst
Amceipts for unil cold ik 1 L1 N L2 i EuR 1,088 [k} ] 134
JEBAL) W HA 189 2 EREE Ha NEA ReA His
J B0} L R ;] 14T N NiA R LI
J BN K& N4 n 1AM & N4 KA LT}
LR ] (1) i A 1,366 Ha N L LT
} TR} K KA m 338 N Nk KA [
ZaR) tim e ] 1,824 L] Nk Hik s
Coxt of i redsamnd [ 112746 N N& 11 [.ma [NEE 3424
JEAD R [ (71 (BEIT HA Ni# R i
] K& A Wi Wi L] NEA A His
J @HR) W [ k] (2349 N Nk L] HiA
J I LU s 14m FLril] LY Nk s Hia
J (TR KA KA (.67 (TTAZ1) L] A ik LY
J 2aR) (] [ e} (2820 N NEA Rk Hin
Nt ircremn s
refing from: Fand unit
T o [ T e 1] WS™ & [modn 9 EUR i} B & (e
gy Bapary | Mpy J, 2000 m
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Your Dusded
ey T T
mts Amaml

Plmca it e unie eokd
AL anz L]
C NGm Jm wmm
A 82T
1,758
2040
u=n 1 153 04
Lot of i rodonmad
AU 11 LM
C s [Tl 6, amm
JUFT |GEE {3140
U {03}] s
JPY [4m (3v.180
=0 ITHE) (T3.5880
Nt ircreans rmuling fom
Fund urih T action o HWIN

Bel=s

Ay b ey ot o i 2 et ol madenitl Py b |

" faes b o 35 TOVE Deceapise ey

13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

The R

theat

are not named a5 defendants in amy matenal

o aware of sy matena litgation of daem pending of

w1 e thes
QRS Ee
The foregoeng speaks only a5 of the date of this repor

14, INCOME TAX

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

d the possibelity of subsequent events existin

nager hias determin

i 1o bie Issued

dvgy| Papary | Mpy 31, 2000 w
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2021
601,869 66,145,403
21,239 2,334,166
580,630 63,811,237
3,298,542.611
541,133.704
738,099.000
108.33 11,905
10,073
102.77 8,240
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2021
1,053,391,472.93 1,157 6,772
850,000
74,190.47
850,000
250,000
2017 308,558,334
2018 302,158,349
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
2021 1,053,391,472.93
Managing Member
agreement
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

limited liability company

2021

Daniel J. Ilvascyn

Kimberley Stafford

Sudi N. Mariappa

Marcellus Fisher

Craig A. Dawson

Ryan P. Blute

Chris Dialynas

Scott A. Mather

Mark R. Kiesel
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Alfred T. Murata

Stephen A. Rodosky

Peter G. Strelow

Joshua Anderson

(Sachin Gupta)

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

David C. Flattum

Ryan Korinke

(Alejandro Kersman)

Lorenzo Pagani

Philippe Bodereau

Richard R. LeBrun

(Rene Martel)

Andrew Balls

Libby Cantrill

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

Whitten, Candice Stack

Jonathan L. Horne

Jamil Baz

Alessandro Gandolfi

(Robin C. Shanahan)

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Joshua Davis
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Mohit Mittal

David Fisher

Daniel H. Hyman

Jerome M. Schneider

Robert 0. Young

Christian Stracke

(Eve Tournier)

Stuart T. Graham

Anna Dragesic

John W. Murray

Eric M. Sutherland

Marc P. Seidner

Jason R. Steiner

Russell Gannaway

Andrew R. Jessop

David L. Braun

Harin de Silva

Jason Mandinach

L
Adam Gubner

Andrew Bosomworth

Frank Witt

Qi Wang

Patrick Feigley

Ravi K. Mattu

Caleb Pitters

Greg E. Sharenow

(Michael A. Cudzil)
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David Hammer

Sonali Pier

Pramol Dhawan

Rick Chan

Mohsen Fahmi

Joachim Fels

Geraldine Sundstrom

(Emmanuel Roman)

(Gregory W. Hall)

Dirk Manelski

Sung Hee Suh

Stephen Chang

John J. Studzinski

Erin Browne

Adam Shukovsky

Jamie Weinstein

Nicolas Granger

Mathieu Clavel
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1940

BMA

BMA

BMA

BMA
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2021 329
843,590,546,837

113 489,491,030,920
22 16,020,341,254
12 26,029,811,779
69 226,409,151,066
9 10,952,145,385
30 8,781,238,191
36 22,010,152,587
15 25,945,297,919
3 902,235,321
5 2,565,713,255
15 14,483,429,159
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2021 31
109.90
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019
2(d) 670,905,056 73,732,466 422,556,446 46,438,953
2(e),3 30,870,470 3,392,665 30,623,395 3,365,511
2(H) 798,701,996 87,777,349 698,851,736 76,803,806
2(H) 314,822,326 34,598,974 282,546,439 31,051,854
45,702,592 5,022,715 36,373,824 3,997,483
2(H) 23,912,871 2,628,025 25,219,844 2,771,661
2(k),8(e) 19,755,282 2,171,105 19,239,181 2,114,386
7 17,306,918 1,902,030 13,010,339 1,429,836
64,128,683 7,047,742 60,915,714 6,694,637

1,986,106,194 218,273,071  1,589,336,918 174,668,127

2020 12 31

213,677,355 2019 12 31
183,689,431 2(9),5 121,111,682 13,310,174 139,127,937 15,290,160
2().10 195,322,419 21,465,934 209,441,754 23,017,649
2(k),8(e) 855,055,452 93,970,594 669,472,591 73,575,038
2(i) 30,865,176 3,392,083 30,865,176 3,392,083
2(h),6 35,265,467 3,875,675 30,124,648 3,310,699
2(b) 14,710,139 1,616,644 16,086,963 1,767,957
9 51,541,356 5,664,395 33,253,757 3,654,588

1,303,871,691 143,295,499  1,128,372,826 124,008,174

3,289,977,885 361,568,570  2,717,709,744 298,676,301
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2020 2019

398,802,753 43,828,423 409,454,573 44,999,058

7 228,000,000 25,057,200
8 216,289,372 23,770,202 208,752,447 22,941,894
4 122,043,872 13,412,622 124,895,219 13,725,985
23§).10 33,157,779 3,644,040 30,057,351 3,303,303
7 37,379,146 4,107,968 21,460,619 2,358,522
2(s).8(e) 19,755,282 2,171,105 19,239,181 2,114,386
4,928,294 541,620 11,190,145 1,229,797
832,356,498 91,475,979  1,053,049,535 115,730,144
2(s),8(e) 855,055,452 93,970,594 669,472,591 73,575,038
2(j).10 204,137,201 22,434,678 220,717,637 24,256,868
8 152,799,181 16,792,630 164,382,884 18,065,679
4,306,979 473,337 3,022,510 332,174
1,216,298,813 133,671,240  1,057,595,622 116,229,759
2,048,655,311 225,147,219  2,110,645,157 231,959,903
850,000 (103,214,782)  (11,343,305)  (683,902,349)  (75,160,868)
150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103  1,288,040,853 141,555,690
2020 12 31 58,608
2019 12 31 48,876 43,399,986 4,769,658 28,952,832 3,181,916
2020 12 31
148,726 2019 12 31 153,400 8(a) 37,843,422 4,158,992 32,501,945 3,581,855
2(p) (44,741,570)  (4,917,009)  (58,618,694)  (6,442,194)

1,241,322,574 136,421,351 607,064,587 66,716,398
3,289,977,885 361,568,570  2,717,709,744 298,676,301
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019

2(f) 4,012,403,139 440,963,105 3,801,610,877 417,797,035
2(f) 1,095,151,513 120,357,151 1,011,008,189 111,109,800
2(f) 1,155,727,878 127,014,494 1,152,533,169 126,663,395
2(f) 360,487,808 39,617,610 380,555,089 41,823,004
2(f) 46,057,465 5,061,715 23,903,886 2,627,037
6,669,827,803 733,014,076 6,369,611,210 700,020,272
8 2,283,500,614 250,956,717 2,125,025,461 233,540,298
4 777,771,809 85,477,122 857,070,964 94,192,099
2(t) 605,822,180 66,579,858 637,010,892 70,007,497
235,901,474 25,925,572 214,712,229 23,596,874
5,10 168,804,503 18,551,615 159,176,036 17,493,446
2(0) 108,835,693 11,961,043 120,596,262 13,253,529
43,316,136 4,760,443 50,264,299 5,524,046
44,512,301 4,891,902 27,702,379 3,044,491
4,268,464,710 469,104,272 4,191,558,522 460,652,282
2,401,363,093 263,909,804 2,178,052,688 239,367,990
52,168,123 5,733,277 57,347,069 6,302,443

23D,
10 (6,676,919) (733,793) (10,703,929) (1,176,362)
2(b) (1,321,069) (145,185) (1,278,635) (140,522)
2,445,533,228 268,764,102 2,223,417,193 244,353,550
9 103,991,820 11,428,701 98,821,295 10,860,460
2,341,541,408 257,335,401 2,124,595,898 233,493,089
2(p) 13,877,124 1,525,096 6,577,523 722,870
2,355,418,532 258,860,497 2,131,173,421 234,215,959

282/381



2018 12 31

PIMCO

2019 12 31

PIMCO

2020 12 31

2020 2019 12 31
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850,000 (792,957,184) (87,145,995) 150,000 1,267,204,122 139,265,733 45,705 23,722,086 2,607,057
1,556,133,972 171,019,124 472,136,883 51,887,843 96,325,043 10,586,122
(1,459,197,453)  (160,365,800) (451,300,152) (49,597,887) (91,397,156)  (10,044,547)
1,444,428 158,743
10,673,888 1,173,060 302,859 33,284
850,000 (683,902,349) (75,160,868) 150,000 1,288,040,853 141,555,690 48,876 28,952,832 3,181,916
1,694,470,162 186,222,271 520,315,348 57,182,657 126,755,898 13,930,473
(1,133,305,426)  (124,550,266) (500,320,683) (54,985,243) (116,146,639)  (12,764,516)
12,785,179 1,405,091
6,737,652 740,468 3,837,895 421,785
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,343,305) 150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103 58,608 43,399,986 4,769,658
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2018 12 31

PIMCO

2019 12 31

PIMCO

2020 12 31
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2020 2019 12 31

143,858 28,576,118 3,140,515 (65,196,217) (7,165,064) 461,348,925 50,702,247
2,124,595,898 233,493,089
(2,001,894,761) (220,008, 234)
1,444,428 158,743
14,992,574 1,647,684 14,992,574 1,647,684

(10,976,747) (1,206,344)
6,577,523 722,870 6,577,523 722,870
153,400 32,591,945 3,581,855 (58,618,694) (6.,442,194) 607,064,587 66,716,398
2,341,541,408 257,335,401
(1,749,772,748) (192,300,025)
12,785,179 1,405,091
15,827,024 1,739,390 15,827,024 1,739,390

(10,575,547) (1,162,253)
13,877,124 1,525,096 13,877,124 1,525,096
148,726 37,843,422 4,158,992 (44,741,570) (4,917,099) 1,241,322,574 136,421,351
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019
2,341,541,408 257,335,401 2,124,595,898 233,493,089
15,508,853 1,704,423 14,579,559 1,602,294
65,464,604 7,194,560 65,882,645 7,240,503
6,676,919 733,793 10,703,929 1,176,362
1,321,069 145,185 1,278,635 140,522
12,114 1,331 59,310 6,518
(44,308) (4,869) (99,913) (10,980)
14,256,907 1,566,834 28,852,954 3,170,940
15,010,423 1,649,645 14,132,707 1,553,184
(11,695,316) (1,285,315) (11,771,410) (1,293,678)
(146,673,050) (16,119, 368) (133,320,387) (14,651,911)
(6,762,761) (743,227) (10,822,134) (1,189,353)
(130,819,174) (14,377,027) (168,718,254) (18,542,136)
(25,708,793) (2,825,396) (28,864,869) (3.,172,249)
103,679,079 11,394,331 175,692,797 19,308,638
10,538,563 1,158,188 3,895,278 428,091
2,252,306,537 247,528,488 2,086,076, 745 229,259,834
(51,884,452) (5,702,101)
6,500,203 714,372
(7,078,726) (777,952) (29,716,676) (3,265,863)
(13,730,247) (1,508,954) (640,695) (70,412)
(18,000) (1,978) (4,017,970) (441,575)
(14,326,770) (1,574,512) (86,259,793) (9,479,951)
416,000,000 45,718,400 2,239,000,000 246,066,100
(644,000, 000) (70,775,600)  (2,223,000,000)  (244,307,700)
(1,749,772,748) (192,300,025)  (2,001,894,761)  (220,008,234)
4,984,931 547,844 1,444,428 158,743
(30,720,464) (3,376,179) (28,608,691) (3,144,095)

(2,003,508,281) (220,185,560) _ (2,013,059,024) __ (221,235,187)

13,877,124 1,525,096 6,577,523 722,870
248,348,610 27,293,512 (6,664,549) (732,434)
422,556,446 46,438,953 429,220,995 47,171,387
670,905,056 73,732,466 422,556,446 46,438,953
1,300,045 142,875

233,931,730 25,709,097

(274,626,538) (30,181,457)

40,694,808 4,472,359
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2020 2019 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2020 12 31 58,608
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PI LLC
FINRA
2020 2019 12 31
0.00206 0.00190

2020 12
2020 12
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PEG

PIMCO

PGA

FINMA

AREOA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS
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2021 23

PIMCO

PIMCO
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IAS 17

16

2018
2019

2019

2019

2020

12 31
12 31

IFRS 16
IFRIC
2019 12 31
2020

2019
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2019

274.6

347.1

2019 12 31

289/381
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2.3
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IFRS 16

2.59

IFRS 16

IFRS

206,586,026

(96,826)
106,291,903
90,806

(38,245,371)

274,626,538

AAM LP

27

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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12

12

IFRS
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PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO
30

2020 2019 12 31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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2020 2019 12 31 30.9 30.6
2020 2019
2020 2019 12 31
NAV
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
Pl LLC
P1 LLC 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 39.8 51.4

PIMCO
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Pl LLC 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 5.2
2.0
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2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

PIMCO

2020
36.1

PIMCO
PIMCO
31
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50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
18,961,101 12,515,207 31,476,308
(353,453) (353,453)
(19,443,474) (7,912,294) (27,355,768)
49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
2019 27.8 27.4
11,501,756 11,501,756
640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
(5,180) (5,180)
(6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000) (9,412,623)
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 - 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
2019 8.7 9.4
AAM LP AAM LLC
2019 24.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 2019
8.6 11.1
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LIBOR 0.2
90 AAM LP PIMCO 2020 2019
PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
228.0
PIMCO 2020 2019
373 3.7
2020 12 31 822.6
2019 724.1
2020 2019 52.4
45.8
PIMCO
2020 2019
7.8 8.6
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020
PEG PEG 92.2
2019 40.3
PEG 2020 PEG
41.3 2019 33.3
2020 12 31
13.5 2019 9.8 PEG 28.8 2019 10.3
PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20
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2020 12 31 0.278
LIBOR LIBOR
AAM LP PIMCO
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP EDCP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2020 2019 12 31 148,726
153,400 58,608
OPAD

2020 2019
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2020 2019
17,806 14,519
3.84 3.84
25.1 17.9
11.1 13.2
0.6 2.4
2020
2019
2018 12 31 143,858 143,858 13,606
39,751 39,751 14,519
23,492 (23,492)
(23,492) (23,492) 16,178
(6,717) (6,717) 12,618
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
2020 12 31
2020 12 31 11,319 17,806
2.52
17,806 2020
14,622 2019 2020 27,775
2020 30
9,732
2020 12 31 58,177
431 AAM LLC
2019 23,492 2019 29

3,171
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PIMCO

14

LTIP

AAM LP

AAM LP

401

13

2019

2019 12 31

48.4

24.5

LTIP

1974

15.5

LTIP

401
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2020 2019
14.6
2020 12 31 2025 12 31
2020 2019
LTIP
2020
54.8 50.5
2020
116.3 111.1
100
2020 2019 55.1
201 301
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2020 2019 12 31
874.8 688.7

250,000

2.0
2020 167 2019
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12 31
2020 2019
29,332 11,770
3,432,731 2,022,507
121,394,722 100,158,160
124,856,785 102,192,437
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
103,991,820 98,821,295
2020 2019 12 31 23.2 36.7
2020
2019 12 31 44.8 21.4 2020
2019 12 31 247 61
10
2020 12 31
29,593,350
6,304,014
240,983
376,312
2,179,123
2020 12 31 39.8

12 31
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2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
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38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267

(24,146,287)

237,294,980
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AAM LP

Pl
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2020 12 31

2020 12 31 2020 12

13

PIMCO
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2020

13
Pl LLC

14

731.2

15
2020 10
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2020

12 31
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15
66.8
2019 12 31
250

2019

2019

covibD 19
PIMCO CovID 19
CovID 19
1934
2020 12 31 Pl LLC
250 66.5
Pl LLC 57.5
57.2
2020
535.5
2020
582,606,016
222,021
AREOA AAM LLC AAM LP

AREOA 7.8

305/381
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16

2021 23

2021 15 40,974 PIMCO
2021 31
15,582
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Note 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(d) $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(e), 3 30,870,470 30,623,395
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(f) 798,701,996 698,851,736
Private accounts 2(f) 314,822,326 282,546,439
Prepaid expenses 45,702,592 36,373,824
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(f) 23,912,871 25,219,844
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Receivables from affiliates 7 17,306,918 13,010,339
Other current assets 64,128,683 60,915,714
Total current assets 1,986,106,194 1,589,336,918
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $213,677,355
and $183,689,431 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively 2(9), 5 121,111,682 139,127,937
Right-of-use assets 2(j), 10 195,322,419 209,441,754
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Goodwill 2(i) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(h), 6 35,265,467 30,124,648
Investments in associates 2(b) 14,710,139 16,086,963
Other noncurrent assets 9 51,541,356 33,253,757
Total noncurrent assets 1,303,871,691 1,128,372,826
Total assets $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 398,802,753 409,454,573
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 - 228,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 216,289,372 208,752,447
Commissions payable 4 122,043,872 124,895,219
Lease liabilities 2(), 10 33,157,779 30,057,351
Payables to affiliates 7 37,379,146 21,460,619
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Other current liabilities 4,928,294 11,190,145
Total current liabilities 832,356,498 1,053,049,535
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Lease liabilities 2(j), 10 204,137,201 220,717,637
Other accrued compensation 8 152,799,181 164,382,884
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,306,979 3,022,510
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,216,298,813 1,057,595,622
Totd liabilities 2,048,655,311 2,110,645,157
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,214,782) (683,902,349)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,308,035,518 1,288,040,853
Class M members (58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020
and 48,876 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2019) 43,399,986 28,952,832
Class M unit option holders (148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020 and 153,400 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2019) 8(a) 37,843,422 32,591,945
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(p) (44,741,570) (58,618,694)
Tota capital 1,241,322,574 607,064,587
Totd liabilities and capital $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Revenues: Note 2020 2019
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(f) $  4,012,403,139 3,801,610,877
Private accounts 2(f) 1,095,151,513 1,011,008,189
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(f) 1,155,727,878 1,152,533,169
Distribution and servicing fees 2(f) 360,487,808 380,555,089
Other 2(f) 46,057,465 23,903,886
Total revenues 6,669,827,803 6,369,611,210
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,283,500,614 2,125,025,461
Commissions 4 777,771,809 857,070,964
General and administrative 2(t) 605,822,180 637,010,892
Professional fees 235,901,474 214,712,229
Occupancy and equipment 5,10 168,804,503 159,176,036
Marketing and promotional 2(0) 108,835,693 120,596,262
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 43,316,136 50,264,299
Other 44,512,301 27,702,379
Tota expenses 4,268,464,710 4,191,558,522
Operating income 2,401,363,093 2,178,052,688
Other income, net 52,168,123 57,347,069
Finance costs 2(j), 10 (6,676,919) (20,703,929)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,321,069) (1,278,635)
Net income before income taxes 2,445,533,228 2,223,417,193
Income tax expense 9 103,991,820 98,821,295
Net income 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(p) 13,877,124 6,577,523
Comprehensive income $ 2,355,418,532 2,131,173,421

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2018 850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 $ 1,267,204,122 45,705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 $ 28,576,118 $  (65196,217) $ 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 - - 2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) - - (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 - - - - 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 14,992,574 - 14,992,574

Reallocation of basis on vested options 10,673,888 - 302,859 (10,976,747) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694) 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Baances at December 30, 2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035,518 58,608 ¢ 43,399,986 148,726 3 37,843,422 ¢ (44,741,570) $ 1,241,322,574

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,508,853 14,579,559
Depreciation and amortization 65,464,604 65,882,645
Finance costs 6,676,919 10,703,929
Equity inloss of associates 1,321,069 1,278,635
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 12,114 59,310
Unrealized and realized net gain on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (44,308) (99,913)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 14,256,907 28,852,954
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,010,423 14,132,707
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,695,316) (11,771,410)
Income taxes paid (146,673,050) (133,320,387)
Interest paid (6,762,761) (10,822,134)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable (130,819,174) (168,718,254)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (25,708,793) (28,864,869)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 103,679,079 175,692,797
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates 10,538,563 3,895,278
Net cash provided by operating activities 2.252.306,537 2086,076,745
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - (51,884,452)
Cash acquired through acquisition 6,500,203 -
Purchases of property and equipment (7,078,726) (29,716,676)
Purchases of intangible assets (13,730,247) (640,695)
Purchases of investments in associates (18,000) (4,017,970)
Net cash used in investing activities (14,326,770) (86,259,793)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 416,000,000 2,239,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (644,000,000) (2,223,000,000)
Distributions paid (1,749,772,748) (2,001,894,761)
Contributions received 4,984,931 1,444,428
Principal elements of lease payments (30,720,464) (28,608,691)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,003,508,281) (2,013,059,024)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 13,877,124 6,577,523
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 248,348,610 (6,664,549)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 422,556,446 429,220,995
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 1,300,045 -
Initial recognition of right-of-use assets - 233,931,730
Initial recognition of lease liabilities - (274,626,538)
Derecognition of future lease obligation - 40,694,808

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2020, 58,608
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financia
statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by

PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00206% interest and 0.00190% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUSL P. as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branch in Italy until December 1, 2020, at which time the branch was sold to the Italian branch of PIMCO
Europe GmbH (PEG), formally PIMCO Deutschland GmbH.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Austraia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor inthe U.S.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) is acaptive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 23, 2021.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(©) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted |FRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under IFRS 16, the Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for all leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the right-of-use assets.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initially
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538

(d) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $347.1 million and $179.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $2.3 million and
$27 thousand at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Management considers investments in money market
accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash
equivalents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign
programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage.

(e Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value

are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Transactions in these
investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

() Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually at the
end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and the fees
are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(i) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(K Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

() Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(m) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generaly distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after
the end of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably
necessary or appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(n) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(0) Marketing and Promational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(p) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been tranglated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

() Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evauation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(f)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(s Defared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

(u) Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.9 million and
$30.6 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2020 and 2019.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership, at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2020 or
2019.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed as incurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at arate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (primarily on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. Pl LLC incurred $39.8
million and $51.4 million in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, respectively, and isincluded in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an
applicable exemption applies such as if the redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested
dividends or capital gain distributions or appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. The
contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generaly 1% if redeemed during the first year following
purchase for applicable PIMCO Mutual Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initial
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $5.2 million and $2.0 million in
contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively,
which isincluded in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(5) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Total
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 $ 50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
Additions 18,961,101 12,515,207 - 31,476,308
Disposals (353,453) - - (353,453)
Depreciation and amortization (19,443,474) (7,912,294) - (27,355,768)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.8 million and $27.4 million during 2020
and 2019, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(6) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
software relationships  technology name Total
Carrying amount as of
December31,2018 $ 11,501,756 - - - 11,501,756
Additions 640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
Disposals (5,180) - - - (5,180)
Amortization (6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000)  (9,412,623)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2019 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467

The Company recorded amortization expense of $8.7 million and $9.4 million during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.7 million and $36.1 million
during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
aliability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services and payables to other &ffiliates
in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of
PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $8.6 million and $11.1 million as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2020
and 2019, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term loans, and at December 31,
2019 had outstanding short-term loans of $228.0 million, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2020 and 2019, PIMCO incurred
$373 thousand and $3.7 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which isincluded in other expenses in
the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $822.6
million (2019: $724.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $52.4 million and $45.8 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.8 million and $8.6 million during
2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2020, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services alocated to PEG was $92.2 million (2019: $40.3 million)
greater than the revenue allocated from PEG and is presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - pooled
funds in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for
performing other shared services are alocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors.
During 2020, costs alocated to PEG were $41.3 million (2019: $33.3 million) and are included as a reduction of
compensation and benefits and general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had a $13.5 million (2019: $9.8 million)
receivable from PEG and a $28.8 million (2019: $10.3 million) payable to PEG, which are included within
receivables from affiliates and payables to ffiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financia condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.278% as of December 31, 2020) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the magjority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuas
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 8
(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If,
at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option
award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to
receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit
Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.
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A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and no further M units shall be
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, 148,726 and 153,400 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 58,608 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options.

Thefair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed to M unit
holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers
using the Merton Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one
third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806 14,519
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1% 17.9%
Expected dividends 11.1% 13.2%
Risk free rate of return 0.6% 2.4%

A summary of the activity in 2020 and 2019 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Total fair value
Outstanding at
December 31, 2018 - 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:
Granted - 39,751 39,751 14,519
Vested 23,492 (23,492) - -
Exercised (23,492 - (23,492) 16,178
Forfeited - (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,416
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2020 - - - % -
(Continued)
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The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2020 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.52 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $17,806 for 2020 and $14,622
for 2019. M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised
under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732
M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2020, 58,177 M units are owned
by current and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 3,171 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2020 and 2019 was $15.5 million and $14.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2020, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $24.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation recorded under these programs was $1.4 billion
and $1.3 billion during 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(©) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $54.8 million and $50.5 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively.
LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $116.3 million and $111.1
million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included within current accrued compensation and
noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LPisthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Interna Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2020 and 2019 was $55.1 million and $48.4 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the election
of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a
select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3),
and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the
plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the
employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2020 and 2019 was $874.8 million and $688.7 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz SE
determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines the
discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and totaled $2.0 million in 2020 and $167 thousand million in 2019, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2020 2019
Current:

Federa $ 29,332 11,770
State 3,432,731 2,022,507
Foreign 121,394,722 100,158,160
Tota current 124,856,785 102,192,437

Deferred:
Foreign (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total deferred (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total provision $ 103,991,820 98,821,295

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.
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At December 31, 2020 and 2019, income taxes payable amounted to $23.2 million and $36.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, deferred tax assets amounted to
$44.8 million and $21.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
amounted to $247 thousand and $61 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying

consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2020 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of |eases of low value assets

$ 29,593,350
6,304,014

240,983

376,312

2,179,123

For the year ended December 31, 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $39.8 million.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

(11) Financia Risk Management

$ 38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267
(24,146,287)

$ 237,294,980

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk

Market Risk

(Continued)

327/381



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(8 Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2020.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;

this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 7.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions also occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2020, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2020 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(Continued)

329/381



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. During periods of high
volatility and uncertainty experienced by markets in 2020, PIMCO Funds and private accounts experienced net
asset outflows and negative returns relating to the disruption caused by COVID-19, but it did not result in a
material adverse impact to the Company during the year. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. As of December 31, 2020, Pl LLC had net capital of
$66.8 million for regulatory purposes, which was $66.5 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was
$57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250 thousand.

(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $731.2
thousand and $535.5 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the accompanying statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

December 31
2020 2019
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 582,606,016 $ 493,340,219
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 222,021 170,996

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(15) Acquisition

On October 1, 2020, AREOA was contributed to the Company from Allianz of America, Inc., an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, through AAM LLC and AAM LP. Asthe contribution qualified as a transaction
between entities under common control, AREOA was contributed at a net book value of $7.8 million, which is
included in contributions in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financia condition
through April 23, 2021, the date the consolidated financia statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following event to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 40,974 vested on January 15, 2021. On March 31, 2021, these vested awards
were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,582 M units.
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2021 30

1,218,980,021 133,965,904
24,143,992 2,653,425
640,599,756 70,401,913
323,112,265 35,510,038
45,041,939 4,950,109
21,334,131 2,344,621
23,002,042 2,527,924
26,850,035 2,950,819
63,200,555 6,945,741
2,386,264,736 262,250,494
226,717,390 114,004,405 12,529,084
189,975,621 20,878,321
974,184,449 107,062,871
30,865,176 3,392,083
33,187,129 3,647,265
39,183,015 4,306,213
55,254,579 6,072,478
1,436,654,374 157,888,316
3,822,919,110 420,138,810
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395,823,404 43,500,992
602,171,423 66,178,639

97,046,294 10,665,388

31,084,922 3,416,233

63,658,292 6,996,046

23,002,042 2,527,924

5,815,416 639,114

1,218,601,793 133,924,337

974,184,449 107,062,871

200,119,987 21,993,187

155,480,580 17,087,316

4,060,949 446,298

1,333,845,965 146,589,672

2,552,447,758 280,514,009

850,000 (85,381,560) (9,383,433)
150,000 1,313,915,921 144,399,360
74,190 62,594,657 6,879,153
103,555 26,537,533 2,916,475
(47,195,199) (5.186,752)

1,270,471,352 139,624,802

3,822,919,110 420,138,810
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2021 30

2,077,603, 355 228,328,609
605,560,698 66,551,121
611,553,473 67,209,727
174,139,153 19,137,893

18,174,820 1,997,413

3,487,031,499 383,224,762

1,256,149, 699 138,050,852
389,891,600 42,849,087
312,358,275 34,328,174
109,509,733 12,035,120

84,905,818 9,331,149
52,028,090 5,717,887
23,765,858 2,611,868
20,100,930 2,209,092
2,248,710,003 247,133,229
1,238,321,496 136,091,532
98,732,681 10,850,722
(2,910,107) (319,821)
995,294 109,383
1,335,139, 364 146,731,816
46,340,393 5,092,809
1,288,798,971 141,639,007
(2,453,629) (269, 654)
1,286,345,342 141,369,353
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2021 30
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,343,305) 150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103 58,608 43,399,986 4,769,658
910,405,280 100,053,540 290,446,808 31,920,104 87,946,883 9,665,362
(909,072,477) (99,907,065) (284,566, 405) (31,273,848) (77,649,354)  (8,533,664)
8,451,432 928,812
8,048,987 884,584 8,897,142 977,796
850,000 (85, 381,560) (9,383,433) 150,000 1,313,915,921 144,399,360 74,190 62,594,657 6,879,153
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2021 30

148,726 37,843,422 4,158,992 (44,741,570) (4,917,099) 1,241,322,574 136,421,351
1,288,798,971 141,639,007
(1,271,288,236) (139,714,577)
8,451,432 928,812
5,640,240 619,862 5,640,240 619,862

(16,946,129) (1,862,380)
(2,453,629) (269, 654) (2.453,629) (269, 654)
103,555 26,537,533 2,916,475 (47,195,199) (5.186,752) 1,270,471,352 139,624,802
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2021 30

1,288,798,971

141,639,007

5,527,181 607,437
32,361,814 3,556,563
2,910,107 319,821
(995,294) (109, 383)
(327,452) (35,987)
2,103,482 231,173
15,036,589 1,652,521
(7,960,091) (874,814)
(54,843,368) (6,027,286)
(2,910,107) (319,821)
152,391,041 16,747,775
(11,554,500) (1,269,840)
413,326,409 45,424,572
26,920,238 2,958,534

1,860,785,020

204,500,274

(6,180,581) (679,246)
(1,488,667) (163,605)
(23,500,150) (2,582,666)
(31,169,398) (3,425,517)
337,000,000 37,036,300

(337,000,000)

(1,271,288,236)
8,451,432

(16,250,224)

(37,036, 300)
(139,714,577)
928,812
(1,785,900)

(1,279,087,028)

(140,571,664)

(2,453,629) (269,654)
548,074,965 60,233,439
670,905,056 73,732,466

1,218,980,021

133,965,904
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1940 15
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2021
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO
2019 24 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2019 12 17 PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
2020 PIMCO
PIMCO 2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 11 18 PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO

2021 18
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2021 1,053,391,472.93 1,157 6,772
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2021 25 2,748

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2021 10 1,000 1,109 9,900

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2021 1,209 13 2,869

1989
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2021 100

2021 1,251

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Maples
Trustee Services Bermuda Limited
BMA
BMA

BMA

2001

BMA

BMA BMA

BMA
60
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1981
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1989
1989 2001
2009
2001
2009
1989
100
15
100 21
2009 2009
2009 2009
2035 31
2006
2007
1998 BMA CIS
BMA
BMA Institutional
fund Administered fund Standard fund

Specified Jurisdiction fund
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and
the financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights
are hereafter collectively referred to as“financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (2)
PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2021

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2021

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of

each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Rea Return Fund each of their cash
flows, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 12, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changesin

capital, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financia position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it

accounts for leasesin 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 23, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real
Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods
indicated in the table below. These financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as
“financia statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31, 2020

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year ended
May 31, 2020

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2020, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financia statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of

each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2020, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their
cash flows, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 5, 2020
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